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Our Strategy

Our strategy 1s to grow the value of our business
for the benefit of our members

To achieve this we aim to put the customer at the
centre of everything we do and live by our three
brand promises

Easy to do business with
Great value
A canng approach

Throughout our 170 year history, this focus on the
customer has been key to the products and services
we have offered and 15 the guiding principle behind
the ongoing success of the group

Today with over 5,600 employees working in 17
offices across the UK, we are the UK s largest fnendly
soclety and a leading financial mutual, with more than
five milion members and customers

1 7ofﬁces

®

Our Heritage Business

Whilst growing our successful general and lIife
insurance businesses, we are also very mindful of
our heritage and our members who have contributed
to it We define our “Hentage” business as

With-profits policies onginally written by

Liverpoal Victona Frendly Society, including

new with-profits sales

With-profits and other policies onginally written
by the Royal National Penston Fund for Nurses
(RNPFN} before its transfer to LvV=1n 2001
Non-profit annuities purchased from the proceeds
of with-profits pension policies together with a
minor number of other policies which includes
some transferred from other companies

We are committed to offenng our with-profits members
a far return on their ivestments, honounng any
guarantees we have made on our policies and
providing all our members with great customer service

We also have a mutual bonus scheme, designed to
reward eligible members for therr ownership of L=

and the nsks taken in supporting the estabhishment
and growth of the group’s trading businesses

5, 600 g—mployees
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Chairman Statement

Dennis Holt
Chairman

Our purpose remains to help people look after
what they love and to dehver on our vision to be
Britain’s best-loved 1nsurer

Mutal bonus for with-profits members

2012 I £20 9m
op11 I (11§{) £18 &m
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Enterprise Value

+3%

With-profits

asset shares
outperformed
henchmark by 1 5%
producing a total
averall return for
the fund of 9 9%

The banking crisis of 2008 caused an enormous
shock to economres throughout the world, and the
consequences are still with us Businesses and
consumers continue to be financially stressed as
a hesitant recovery 1s attempted It will clearly be
some years yet before stability 1s fully restored In
thss context, LV= 1s well placed to help customers
with our focus on offering good value, relevant
products, backed up by award-winning customer
service Our purpose remains to help people look
after what they love and to deliver on our vision to
be Britain's best-loved insurer In so doing, we are
confident that we will achieve our overnding geal of
creating value for the benefit of our members

General insurance

The general insurance bustness has been
completely transformed over the last six years

to become a major player in retall markets, and
one that 1s known for its award-winning customer
service We are now number three in private motor
insurance (cars and motorbikes) with an 11%
market share and a significant player in our other
key lines, particutarly home insurance and small
business insurance

We have a good mix of products across personal
and commercial ines and we are now well
established in both the direct and broker channels
We have 2 7 million customers in our direct
business and, having come from a standing start
in 2007, the broker business now has 1 4 million
customers, both considerable achievements in a
market that 1s highly competitive

This business 1s now self-supporting i terms of
cash and capital generation, and for the first time
returned £38 million of funds to the group following
a year of record profits in 2012

Life

Qur Iife business has stmifarly refocused over the
same penod, concentrating on market segments
with attractive margins and good growth potential
As a result we have strengthened our market share
posittons whitst bullding profitabiity We are the
market leader in advised income protection and a
top three provider for penston drawdown, enhanced
annuities and equity release

Our with-profits policies continue to be among the
hest-performing 1n the market The first full year
with Threadneedle Asset Management Ltd {TAM)
managing the assets has seen continued good
performance and as a result we have maintained
our record of exceeding relevant benchmarks in the
short, medium and longer terms

Group

V= now has a well estabhished and strong

brand This awareness along with our distinctive
and award-winning customer service proposition and
products means that we are well placed for future
profitable growth Fundamental to this 1s that we
put our people at the heart of our business We
have been externally recogmsed by Towers Watson
as a high performing organtsation and we believe
that the culture we have created for our people
results in high performing teams, focused on
driving the business forward for members

Member value

As V=15 a mutual and not a guoted company,

we use Enterprise Value as a way of measuring our

market value 1n a way that 1s broadly equivalent to

a quated company Our gverall Enterprise Value has
increased hy 3% this year, after taking mutual honus
into account, and follows a 9% wncrease in 2011

In line with our core ambition of creating value
for the benefit of our members, | am pleased to
confirm that, for the second consecutive year,
the board has approved a mutual bonus for
with-profits members of £20 9 million

(2011 £18 6 miliicn) reflecting the impressive
full year performance and the strength and
sustainability of the Society’s financial future
Group total balance sheet assets are also up
11% to £11 4 bithen from £10 3 bilhion in 2011

Maintaining standards

The board continues to guide the development
and delivery of our strategy, and to oversee all
matenal aspects of the management of risk and
return We continue to apply the same standards
of best practice corporate governance that an
equivalent shareholder-owned business would
be expected to meet

Board changes in the year included welcoming
James Dean as a new non-executive director and
chair of the Audit Committee, and saying farewell,
with our thanks, to lan Reynolds who stood down
having served a term of four years

We have well established competitive positions In
attractive markets across general and Iife insurance
which provide the group with a diversity of earnings
Our capital position remains strong enabling us to
retain a high equity backing ratie for the benefit of
our with-profits members as well as paying a

mutual bonus

t would like to thank all our members and
customers for therr loyalty to LV= and our
employees for thewr commitment and hard work
We will stnve to ensure that we continue to retain
your confidence
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Chief Executive
Statement
Mike Roguers
Chief Exeoutive
We are now estabhshed as one of the UK’s top three I'm pleased to report that 2012

saw a strong strategic and financial

performance from all areas of the V=

group This is the fifth year of increased
growth and underlying profitability As well as a

Group underlying
_ 126 2 profit strong trading performance, we made significant
steps in embedding our vision to be Bntain's

private motor msurers with over 70% brand recognition

1058 £1 2 6 m best-loved insurer

+19%

Group underlying operating profit increased by 19%

to £126 2 million contributing to an operating profit
increase of 31% to £83 8 mitlion and a profit before
tax and mutual bonus of £103 2 milhion (2011 loss

_ 838 Operating of £16 9 million) LV="s financial position remains
profit strong and we have over £1 billion of capial

MR ] > |£84m s 31 O 201
+31% We participate in markets where we have a
compeutive advantage and where there are
good prospects for continued manageable and
profitable growth Our composite model provides
_ 103 2 Statutory profit/{loss) diversity of earnings, a good balance between
before tax & mutual bonus capital generating and consuming businesses, a
powerful shared brand and customer proposition
. (16 9) £103m as well as important operational leverage across

business support functions These strengths
mean we feel well placed to continue to be
2012 @ successful in the future
2011 @
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83%

employee engagement

85%

of our employees think we
are an ethical orgamsation

88%

feel positive about our
brand and values

We are now established In top five positrons
in the majonty of our chosen markets in both
Iife and general insurance and we have clear
strategic visions for each business which are
coming to fruition

General Insurance

I'm pleased to report that general Insurance

had an extremely good financial year Stronger than
expected return from investments delivered

an underlying operating profit of £117 1 miflion
(2011 £76 4 milhon) Profitability was achieved
despite some £25 million of exceptional weather
related costs and further strengthening of our
reserves During the year we saw a return to pnce
competition in the general insurance market with
downward pressure on motor and home rates,

which we do not believe 1s sustainable into 2013,
given continuing personal inyury costs and low
projected investment returns Our pre-tax return on
capital employed was also significantly ahead of our
expectations Our focus on key product lines such
as car and home n the last five years means we are
now established and profitable in these markets and
we can increasingly focus on broademing our offenng

We were particularly pleased to see the continued
strong growth of our SME business line with GWP up
40% to £74 6 million and a strong improvement in
our combined operaung ratio for this business Most
of the growth in our motor book came from our direct
husiness, which grew its customers by 260,000
over the year We are now established as one of the
UK’s top three private motor insurers, with over 70%
prompted brand recognition, an excellent customer
service reputation and strong renewal rates

During the course of 2012 the general insurance
business received many industry accolades from
both consumers and the industry alike The most
prestigious of these was being voted General
Insurer of the Year at the British insurance Awards

Looking forward to 2013, we do not anticipate

a repeat of the strong investment return seen

In 2012, however we anticipate a continued
underwnting profit together with increased revenue
growth across home, motor and SME, teading to
returns on capital and growing cash generation,
allowing continued capital flow to the Society

Life business

Qur protection and retirement businesses m life saw
excellent growth in sales of 15% and an underlying
operating profit of £26 3 million (2011 £24 5
milhor) Our strategy of focusing on market segments
with attractive margins and good growth potential
where we have retative scale and expertise, has
resulted 1n a continued strengthening of our market
share posiions We mamntained our top three position
In enhanced annurties, a market which 1s continuing to
show strong growth dniven by a shift in demographics

In protection our position as a specialist, focused
on market leading positions in income protection
and cnitical 1liness, amongst others, has allowed

us to grow In a market which 1s generally stagnant
2012 was a very challenging regulatory year for the
Ife industry and we successfully managed the initial
mntroduction of the Retait Distnbution Review and

gender pricing, neither of which we anticipate will
have a significant impact on our business model
Or prospects

Looking forward we plan to continue to develop

our direct to consumer propositton and hope to

see renewed growth in the protection market as
econemic conditions ease We believe there is

the opportunity for continued progression in our
specialist retirement business across both annuities
and pensions, where we are a leading player in the
drawdown market and penston consolidation

Group-wide

Duning the year we continued to Invest in preparation
for Solvency I, including the development of

our internal model application and enterprise

risk management framework The delay to the
implementation of Solvency {1, announced during the
latter part of 2012,)s frustrating but much of the
investment will continue to bear fruit for us as we
manage our capital and nisks ever more effectively

Within our legacy business lines, the team continue
to work hard 1n relation to matured policies that
have not been claimed As a result since 2007 we
have reuntted members and therr beneficiaries with
over £14 million in unclaimed assets

The morale of our people 1s crucial to the success
of our business since It has a direct impact on the
expenence that our customers receive To measure
how our employees feel about working at LvV=we
conduct an annual staff survey called ‘Engage’
across the group The survey, conducted in October
2012, showed that 88% of those working at LV= felt
positive about the brand and its values, 85% said
that V=15 an ethical orgamsation and 83% said
they felt engaged as an employee

These results are despite the decision to close
our employee final salary pension scheme to
future accrual with effect from 1 July 2013, and
offer to move all affected employees to a defined
contnbution scheme from that date We remain
committed to providing our employees with a
competitive retirement proposition

Our brand goes from strength to strength and we are

attracting increasing recognition and awareness across

consumers and the introducer commurnty, including

« Moneywise Most trusted car insurer — voted for
by consumers

» Moneyfacts Award for best car insurer and best
customer services - voted for by consumers

« Winner of best customer services in financial
services at the European Call Centre Awards —
voted for by the mdustry

« Financial Adviser Five star life and pensions
pravider — voted for by the industry

« Moneyfacts Best income protection provider -
voted for by consumers

In a challenging year LV= has been able to deliver
excellent results Despite the uncertain outlook
for the UK economy, we are confident that our
successful business model and strong competitive
position 1n our chosen markets leaves us well
placed for 2013
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Finance Director Review

Philip Maore

Finance Director

We focus on delivering strong returns for members,
while managing and protecting our capital position

Overview

Throughout 2012 LV= operated against a backdrop

of volatile financial markets, conttnued weakness In
the UK economy and uncertainty in Europe, with the
FTSE 100 falling as low as 5,270 in May and credit
spreads widening to 2 87% at the start of the year

Despite this we can once again report a geod
financial performance this year with the life and
general insurance businesses continuing to
perform well and the investment returns of our
with-profits members asseis outperforming
market benchmarks

As a result of this success, LV= has delivered on
its financial aims of delivering strong returns to
members, while managing the capital position and
contnuing to foster ongoing growth

Underlying operating profit in 2012 of £126 2
million (2011 £105 8 milhon) reflects another year

of profitable growth from both the life and general
insurance businesses This s particularly notable
given the increased competition in the markets in
which we operate

The £120 milhon improvement In IFRS profit before
tax to £103 2 million (2011 loss before tax £16 9
million) reflects the underlying operating profit
performance and positive short-term investment
fluctuations, particularly in hfe, which accounted for
£89 million of the improvement year on year

Results for 2012

The table opposite summanses the underlying
operating profit split between our businesses
Underiying operating profit excludes the impact of
moedel and valuation changes, and a margin for
prudence In the life valuation assumptions compared
to the value of new business assumptions for
example in the credit default allowance
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Underlying operating
profit

£126m

+19%

Operating profit

£84m

+31%

Profit before tax

£103m

Results for 2012 - unaudited

£m 2012 2011

Restated”
General Insurance 1171 764
Life 26 3 245
Group {17 2) 49
Underlying operating profit 126 2 105 8
Additional margin for credit default and other nsks® {29 4) (18 9)
Model and valuation changes®'* {13 Q) (22 9)
Operating Profit 838 64 0
Accounting policy differences ([FRS)** ** {11 6) (7 7)
Shortterm mvestment fluctuations 657 (46 4)
Centrally managed costs (22 1) (13 8)
Amortisation of intangibles (12 0) {13 0)
Profit/(loss) before tax 103 2 {16 9)
Mutual bonus {20 9) {18 8)
Income tax expense (34 3) (42 2)
Pension scheme actuanal (loss)/gain net of tax (145 5) 697
Transfer from the unallocated divislble surplus {97 5) (80

Restatements have been made to the prior year results to reflect the fallowing changes
The heritage with-profit trading results are now reported within the group result rather than within the life business
Hentage underlying operating profit mainly comprises expense under or over runs

Lfe results have been restated 10 reflect the change in the tax gross up rate applied to Ife vatue add and addiional margin for credit defauit nsk
Previously these tems were grossed up at 20% Gaing farward the tax gross up will be based on the weighted average tax rate apphcable n
2012 this was calculated at 5%

Lite and group underlying profit have been restated to reflect loss of earmings in the life business on funds which have been paid across t¢ the
group as dwvidends n 2011 and 2012

Adaiuonal margin for credit default and other flsks rep the e for new b between gement s best estimate of eredit
default which I1s used to calculate the value of new business reported within underlying operating profit and the market consisient basis used for
valuing policies This 1s principally driven by the annuity business within life

Model and valuation changes represent the impact on the indforce business of changes in valuation assumpuons and improvements In the actuana!
medels used ta value exlsting policies

The Iife resull includes changes in the present vatue of future profits expected to emerge from policies indorce during the year Where this differs

from the treatment under IFRS an adjustment 1s made in the Accounting policy differances {IFRS) line

The general insurance business has continued

to perform strongly delivering a record underlying
operating profit in 2012 of £117 1 milion which 1s
£40 7 million better than 2011 This growth was
driven by good investment returns and profitable
expansion In chosen segments, particularly direct
motor, partially offset by exceptional weather claims

The hife business saw sales growth of 15% n 2012,
most notably in key product lines of enhanced
annuittes, equity release, pensions and protection
This growth drove an increase in underlying
operatng profit of 7% to £26 3 million

Group underlying operating profit includes
unallocated group overheads and also the net
trading profit or loss of the hentage with-profits
business and the return on the group’s free capital
The loss in 2012 reflects recurring group overheads
and also nonrecurnng cost overruns in the with-
profits busmess as well as a lower return on the
free capital

Our IFRS profit before tax of £103 2 mullion shows

growth of £120 1 million reflecting

+ Growth in underlying operating profit offset by
increased prudence in valuation assumptions
particularly credit nsk,

« Strong short-term investment performance
reflecting market value gains, in particular
benefiting from narrower credit spreads in the
annuity business bond portfoho and improved
equity performance, and

+ Centrally managed costs — the group incurred
non-recurning costs of £22 7 milien mainly in
respect of regulatory projects and the decision
to reserve an additional £15 mullion for payment
protection insurance claims (PPI) relating to the
former banking business which closed in 2010
The net costs included a pension curtallment
gain of £13 million

The pension scheme actuanal loss of £145 5§
milhon in 2012 (2011 gain £69 7 mitlion)
calculated under |IAS19, 1s pnmanly due to a
reduction in the rate used to discount the scheme’s
habilities, and also reflects the rmpact of this year's
tnennial review As at 31 December 2012 the
scheme reported a deficit of £10 2 million

(2011 £106 9 million surplus)
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Heritage with-profits fund performance

Assets Under Management
Heritage WP Fund ¢
Benchmark

£50.4m

ro/8.0m 127370

14.2 133

UK Equity  Overseas Equity Property

Other Group Assets fund performance

UK Gilts

£2,121.6m

FaurULIOPH pung

Assets Under Management
Weighted performance @

£321.7m £92.0m £167.0m

16.9

UK Equity  Overseas Equity

With-profits 2012

Asset Class Breakdown

UK Equity
Qverseas Eguity
UK Gilts
Bonds
Praperty
Alternative

ash

£3.828.3m £1,934.8m £453.1m

UK Giits

Other Group
Assets 2012

\ Asset Class Breakdown

UK Equity
Overseas Equity
UK Gilts

Bonds

Property
Alternative

£46.9m  £6,843.9m
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Total overall retum on with-profits assets
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Investment performance

Threadneedle Asset Management — 2012 was
the first full catendar year with Threadneedle
managing LV="s investments and this partnership
proved very successful with six of the seven major
asset classes achieving or exceeding their market
standard benchmark

With-profits ~ The strongest performing fund

was the Liverpool Victona Friendly Society (LVFS)
with-profits fund with an absolute return of 9 9%
Cutperformance was mainly dniven by stock
selection within the equity markets Threadneedle
delvereg strong relative performance for our
with-profits members {(some 1 5% points above
benchmark) ensuring that LV= remains near the top
of the industry performance tables

Other Group Assets - Outside of the LVFS with-
profits fund the majonty of the assets are Invested
in bonds and gilts which performed in line with the
market The absolute return on these assets was
7 5% which has proven very beneficial to both our
annuity book and general insurance business

Capital resources

Capital management

Capital 1s managed on both economic and
regulatory bases o ensure we have sufficient funds
to meet our business objectives, promises we

have made to our members and policyholders and
regulatory requirements Capital 1s monitored and
managed both at a group and entity levet

We operate through three main companies

+ LVFS Is the parent company of the group and the
company where we write the majonty of our life
Insurance business LVFS 1s also the sponsor of
our staff pension funds

« Liverpool Victoria Insurance Company (LVIC)
and Highway Insurance Company (HICO) -
these are the companies which write our
general insurance business

We seek to deploy capital where we belteve the nsk
1s properly rewarded Asset and liability matching

1s extensively used and risks are hedged where

we believe we would otherwise receive insufficient
return for the nsk taken or to reduce volatility

We report our capital position on a regutatory basis
using current European legislation which defines the
capital requirements an organtsation must meet
The two different bases reported below are

+ Peak 1 (a traditional valuation basis), and

s Peak 2 (more realistic for with-profits business)

£m 2012 2011
Admissible Assets 7,865 7,186
Add back caprtal requirements of regulated related undertakings 254 242
Mathematical reserves (after distnbution of surplus) {6,686) {6,123)
Regulatory current habilities (353) (381)
Avallable capital resources 1,080 924
Capital requirements of regulated related undertakings (254) (242)
Capital resources of RNPFN fund (179 (164)
Peak 1 Capital requirement (240) (218)
Peak 1 excess regulatory capital (excluding RNPFN) 407 300
With-Profits Insurance Capital Component (221) {65)
Peak 2 excess capital resources (excluding RNPFN) 186 235
During 2012 the main movements in regulatory capital were

£m Peak 1 Peak 2
Excess capital at 31 December 2011 300 235
Opening adjustments (1} (60)
Expected changes 12 4
Economic varnances 147 59
Basis changes (non-economic) 166 46
Claims expenence variances {54) (1)
Expense vanances {34) (48)
New business (129} {17y
Staff pension scheme (32) {(32)
Mutual bonus - (21)
Other 32 40
Increase in Risk Capital Margin - (19)
Excess capltal at 31 December 2012 407 186
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Risk appetite

We have embedded our approach to nsk management through our
nsk appetite This defines a corndor of capital we wish to maintain
by nsk and entity and we regularly monitor and report our postion
against our nsk appetite If capital moves outside of our defined
sk appetite we have a pre-determined and documented senes of
management actions which we will take to restore the position

Capital management actions 2012

Dunng 2012 we have taken a number of actions to improve

our capita! position and to reduce the sensitvity of our capital
position to market movements Examples of actions taken
Refiming the investment strategy in our annuity book,
Hedging fixed interest exposure for our deferred annuity book
within the with-profits business,

Hedging of the majority of our longevity risk tn our staff pension
scheme, and

Hedging the majonty of economic exposure to interest rates
and inflation nsk for the staff pension scheme

Stress and scenario testing

In addition to calculating capital on the required regulatory regime,
we undertake a series of stress and scenano tests to ensure

the robustness of our solvency position In regard to different
levels of new business growth, movements in investment markets
and changes in other assumptions such as the longevity of our
enhanced annuity business

In looking at movements m investment markets we consider a
number of single stresses (e g equrties falling by 40%) and also a
number of multivanate stresses (because markets are correlated we
expect extreme movements, 1IN say equity markets, to affect other
markets, such as the level of credit spreads) These are considered
by looking at our distribution of expected market events and we test
a number of points on the distribution 1 € one In 10, one 1n 100, one
In 200 In addition we run a number of ‘real world’ scenanos such as

Hentage with-profits payouts and industry comparnson

a repeat of the credit crunch of 2008 and 2009, where we know the
exact economic conditions which affected the investment markets,
and this enables us to test the rcbustness of our business model
should these conditions be repeated

We use the outcomes of the stress and scenano testing to
develop the management actions we would undertake if our
capital or other performance measures move outside of our
defined nsk appetite The impact of some of these stresses IS
given in note 3 of these accounts As a result of this work and
the potential impact that a return to volatile markets would have
on our capital base we have developed a number of potental
management actions, for example, increasing capital resources
through remsurance structures or other forms of external capital
raising which would increase our financial flexibility

Liguidity management
Following continued growth in profits the general insurance
business returned funds of £38 millicn to the group

The group manages liquidity pnmarily through its asset and
liability management process which ensures that, on a fund by
fund basis and also at legal entity level, assets are held to match
liabiities both by amount and by maturnty

The group generates cash from profitable trading in the general
insurance business and from realised margins on in-force
long-term insurance policies Surplus cash 1s used to fund new
husiness growth and central costs

When reserves are strengthened or released at a fund level,
assets are either transferred from or paid to the LVFS Estate

Fund In addition, surplus capital 1s held at subsidiary level to
ensure that individua! entities are adequately capitalised and have
sufficient iguidity to meet their obligations as they fall due

Recent matunty and surrender values for LVFS with-profit policies show that Lv=
continues to perform in the top quartile when compared agamst industry payouts

Endowment

Pension (regular)

£106 788

® Upper Quartile
®Lv=

£85,744

=£46,5

£36.052

S£24.983:
£21,786

10 yrs 15 yrs 20 yrs 25 yrs

Notes

1 The payouts are based on the follawing policies
Endowment -~ Policyholder aged 30 at entry: monthly premium
of £50 maturing 1 February 2012
Bond - An nvestment of £10 000 as at 1 November 2012
Pension (regular) - Policyholder retiring at age 65 monthly
premium of £200 matunng 1 January 2013

Conclusion

Overall 2012 was a strong year for the V= group, despite the
chalienging economic chmate While the signs of economic recovery
remain fragile, we have a sufficient capital base, manage nsk

SEBTA10E
£50.944
14 349= == ST 513
£14,322 PRI 16698
£11,758
15yrs 20 yrs 5 yrs 10 yrs

2 The industry payouts are taken from the mast recent past performance surveys
ang relate to matunties cunng 2012 and 2013 The sources are
Endowment - Money Management survey published May 2012
Bond - Money Management survey published December 2012
Penswon — Money Management survey published March 2013

actively, mamtain a robust business model and so feel confident
that we are well placed to continue growing profitably in our
respective markets
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General Insurance Business

John OFRE:
Managing Diré

53% increase 1n profits to £117 milhon

THE BATISH
INSURANCE
AWARDS
I
WINNER

e Aoficittn mack of acdermenct

Review of 2012

in 2012 the general insurance busmess delivered
continued growth in both market share and
profitability We now insure three million vehicles,
representing a motor market share of approximately
11%, as well as a further 1 1 millton policies across
other business lines Underlying operating profits
climbed to a record tevel of £117 mullion, more
than £40 mllion up on 2011 Investment returns
contnbuted £112 million (2011 £46 million) to
operating profits Our direct and broker businesses
both contributed strongly to operating profits at
£64 milhon and £53 million respectively

9
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Gross wrtien Operating
premiums (Em) profit {£m)
£1,485m £117m
+2% +53%

These profits were delivered despite a very
challenging year for the insurance industry as

a whole The year began with severe storms In
January, followed by three separate flood events
spread throughout the year, which generated a total
claims cost of £25 million Our results were also
impacted by a further increase in personal injury
claims frequency The increase came pnmarily
from low-value whiplash claims, indicating that
claims management companies and law firms
were accelerating ctaims activity in anticipation of
changes in the law (the Legal Aid, Sentencing and
Punishment of Offenders Act - LASPO), which are
due to take effect in Apnl 2013 Despite these
adverse influences we are pleased to report that
we were still able to achieve a sub-100% combined
operating ratio of 99 7%
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Motor in force policies

3.0m

Total in force policies

4.1m

22.7%

Expense ratio

77.0%

Loss ratio

17.7%

Return on capital

99.7%

Combined ratio

employed

2012 @

2011 @
2012 2011
Gross written premiums £1,485m £1,456m
Underwnting profit £5m £30m
Investment return £112m £46m
Operating profit £117m £76m
Loss ratio 77.0% 74 5%
Expense ratio 22 7% 23 2%
Combined ratio 99 7% 97 7%
Pre tax return on capital employed 17 7% 12 9%
Motor in force policies 30m 2 9m
Total in force policies 41m 39m

Gross wrtten premiums grew by Just 2% for the year
as a whole but this masked divergent experience
between products and channels The direct business
continued to grow very strongly, increasing the
number of in-force car insurance policies by 17%

to 1 78 milhon This resulted in gross premiums
wnitten for direct car insurance nsing by 15%

to £662 millon Within home insurance, where
competition 15 intense, the direct business grew

by 6% to 529,000 inforce policies and total gross
premiums also rose by 9% to £146 million

The broker business wrote £655 million of
premiums in total, which was 9% down on 2011

In commerciat lines, however, wntten premiums
grew by 16% to £160 milhon, predominantly due
to growth In the SME sector This growth reflects
our increasingly strong relationships with regional
brokers and a successful online proposition for
broker-sourced commercial package policies In
commercial motor, we found that market premium
rates remamned inadequate and we were content
not to seek growth in market share and as a result
commercial motor business grew by just 1% to £85
milion Simdarly, increased price competiion
broker motor personal lines saw sales fall 16% to
£481 miilion

Our customers

2012 was also a year in which we made further
progress In making it easy for our customers to

do business with us One example of this was our
implementation of a new clasims system which
allowed us to redesign and significantly enhance our
claims processes This has led to a more efficient
and personalised clams service and resulted in an
Increase in customer satisfaction scores and a 12%
reduction in the clams lifecycle

Our brand awareness also continues to gain
momentum and we now have over 70% awareness
amongst consumers

As in previous years, the guality and consistency
of our customer service was re-affirmed by a
number of important customer service awards
Our customers voted us ‘Best Car Insurance
Provider™ in the Consumer Moneyfacts awards and
‘Most Trusted Provider’ in the Moneywise awards
The Consumer Association's Which? magazine
voted us a recommended provider for car and
home msurance and we have topped thew tables
for travel nsurance and breakdown cover

In all, we won more than 20 awards n 2012,
covenng all aspects of our business from
underwriting and marketing, through to claims
handhing and customer service, as well as for
counter fraud inisatives and analytics The two
most prestigious awards resulted in V= being
named General Insurer of the Year at the British
Insurance Awards and the Best Customer Services
provider in financial services at the European Call
Centre Awards
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Regulatory uncertainty

As we enter 2013, the UK motor insurance
market faces considerable uncertainty as a
result of planned or potential 1egal and regulatory
developments The most important of these 1s
the enactment, through LASPO, of the socalled
Jackson reforms to cwvil itigation costs and
funding One of the objectives of these reforms
Is to cut the legal costs associated with personal
iyury claims and to ban ‘referral fees' paid to
organisattons who introduce claimants to law
firms We beheve these reforms are essential

In order to address the dramatic increase In
spurious whiplash ctaims which has occurred over
recent years and which has driven up the cost of
insurance for honest motorists

On the regulatory front, the motor insurance
industry Is currently co-operating with the
Competition Commission in a review which aims
to ientify possible anti-competitive practices in
the provision of acoident repairs and car hire

We welcome the review as we believe it could be
effective in elminating unnecessary frictional costs
in our iIndustry which have been a contnbutory
factor to premium inflation over recent years

Finally, we are concerned that the Government
and the insurance industry have not yet been
able to agree a policy for msunng people who
live In flood nsk areas The current ‘Statement of
Prninciples’ whereby insurers continue to offer cover
for flood risk properties already on their books,
ends in June 2013 Our commitment to continue
to offer insurance to all our existing customers
remains unchanged but we are working closely
with the ABI to find a solution to the problem
faced by the wider market

Looking ahead

Despite the combination of increased competitive
pressures and an uncertain legal and regulatory
environment we are well positioned to continue
generating strong returns on capital from the
general insurance business We have built a

large and loyal customer base on the back of our
straightforward promises of great value and quality
service This, combined with a team of exceptionally
capable and committed employees, means we

are well placed to make the most of opportunities
which will emerge as market conditions improve
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Life Business

“hard Rowney
ife and Pensions

We are the market leader in advised income
protection and a top three provider for pension
drawdown, enhanced annuities and equuty release

Review of 2012
2012 was another strong year for the life business
as we Increased year-on-year sales to record levels
across a number of key business lines Total sales
for 2012 were £157 million, a 156% increase on the
previous 12 months

Our strategy of remaining focused on market
segments with attractive margins and good

growth potential where we have relative scale and
expertise, has resulted 1n a continued strengthening
of our market share positons

As a result of the strong performance we delivered a
7% increase in underlying operating profit to £26 3
milion £11 2 mullron of this was generated i our
retirement solutions business and £15 1 million
was within our protection business

This was achieved against a challenging regulatory
backdrop for the life and pensions industry as &
whole, driven by the implementation of a number
of regulatory and legislative changes including the
retail distnbution review (RDR)

We have maintamned strong cost disciplines, with
costs as a percentage of our habilities improving
from 4 2% to 3 6%

Within our results we have strengthened our
assumptions for the credit default nsk which 1s
integral to the yield on bond investments that back
our enhanced annuity business

This strengthening of assumptions has been

offset by benefits from more favourable economic
condittons, which remam challenging, but saw credit
spreads narrow dunng the year
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Underying operating profit

£26.3m

Profitability Sales
+7% +13% +19% +5% +15%

Underiying Annusties Pensions
operating APE APE
profit

Notes

2012 £m @
2011 £m @
Equity Protection
Release AP
APE!

APE = Annual Premium Equivatent This 1s a megasure comprising new regular premium sales plus 10% of single premiums
1 Equity release loans are reported internally on an APE basis Actual loans advanced ¢uring 2012 were £89 million {2011 £85 million)

2 Restated see page 13 for details

Combining great service with

‘best In class’ products

We remain committed to achieving excellent service
standards and 2012 was another strong year for
both customer and IFA satisfaction Our reputation
as a customer-focused insurer was recognised
across a number of iIndustry service awards
including the FT Adwviser five star service provider
awards and LifeSearch awards for best service and
best overall product provider

In addition our products also won a number of
awards during 2012 including the Gold Standard
award for Individual Pensions and for Protection,
Best Equity Release Provider in six separate
industry awards and the Moneyfacts award for
Income Protection Provider of the year

L1feSEARCH
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Widening our distribution reach

Our strategy to develop multichannel distribution
capability has underpinned our growth and
momentum during the year We were successful
in faunching a number of new partnerships and
network arrangements and using our brand to
grow our direct to consumer channel

Key highlights included welcoming the RAC as a key
partner in the distribution of our protection products
and the renewal of our successful relationship with

ASDA which sells our 50 Plus protection product

We extended our already successiul strategic
partnership with Sesame {with cir¢a 25% market
share of the adviser network} to include our
retirement solutions products

The adwiser and corporate partner distnbution
channels remain important for us, however the
introduction of RDR 15 likely to shift consumer
behaviour in the future and as a result we have
invested further in our direct to consumer channel
Our strong consumer brand should help us to
access customers who may no longer be served
by the IFA market

We became RDR compliant well in advance of

the regutatory deadline, ensuring that our products
and charging structures were compliant with the
new regulations

We helped advisers maximise the opportunity
that the new gender directive regulation
represented Our unique guarantee, which allowed
customers to guarantee gender specific rates

on protection business nght up to the deadline
of 21 December, set us apart in the market

We were the only provider to offer this guarantee,
which demonstrated our commitment to help
advisers do the best for customers

Looking ahead

Despite a challenging economic and regulatory
backdrop our life business has helped dnve
significant growth and value for our members over
the past five years

Looking to the future, lack of clanty in the market
remans, particularly with economic uncertainty
continuing to affect consumer sentiment and
regulatory changes continuing to impact However
we remain confident our well established brand
and commitment to outstanding service and guality
products places us In an excellent position

Our business strategy to focus on speciahist
protection and retirement propositions across
both IFA and direct to consumer channels means
that we are well placed to respond to the changing
marketplace We are less exposed to reduced
demands from austenty measures as we don’t
focus on the wealth accumulation or regular
savings market

We are also well positioned to take advantage

of the favourable demographics over the coming
years The ‘baby-boomer’ customer segment 1s now
at retirement age and faces the challenge of how
they'll maximise the value of their accumulated
wealth in retirement These customers are becoming
more sophisticated with their purchases and we are
therefore expecting to see growth in the retirement
area of our business with a particular interest in
equity release, enhanced annuities and specialist
pensions such as SIPPs

The demand for protection products i1s expected

to remain relatively static as economic uncertainty
continues and people continue to make every penny
count However, we predict that there will be a shift
in customer demand towards simple protection
products that meet modern day consumer needs
Atongside this there will be continued demand for
well designed and well serviced more compiex
products supported by a thnving protection adwser
sector We are well placed to support both areas in
2013 and expect to be able to gain market share as
a result of our focus and protection expertise

Qur strategy remains unaltered We want to be
the UK’s leading retirement and protection
speciahst, focusing on profitable, fast growth
markets, where we have relative scale

Qur focus areas In 2013 will be to

« Maintain growth through the launch of
new propositions within the protection and
retirement markets,

+ Improve cur margins through sophisticated
nsk management expertise,

+* Remain disciplined on costs, whist investing
In future capabihty to maintain our
competitive advantage,

« Invest in the training and development of our
people, equipping them to provide outstanding
service in our chosen niche markets, and

« Continue to manage exposure to market nsk in
our investments
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Risk Report

Steve Haynes
Chie{ Risk Officer

The role of risk management

The effective management of nsk supports the delivery of our
strategy, protects the value that we create for members, and
helps us to identify opportunities where we can make better
use of our capital

Our risk management approach I1s based on the group's enterprise

nsk management framework and has the following core objectives

+ To set out the risks that the group s able and wishes to accept

« To mamntain a nisk management and governance framework that in
particular assesses and manages the nsk-return trade-off

+ To measure and monitor the group’s nsk exposures agamnst the
board’s approved nsk appetite statements and risk hmits

LV="s approach to risk

The board has established, through a set of statements, the nsk principles and practices the
business 1s expected to adhere to These statements are reviewed at least annually and reflect both
the group s strategic ptans and the nsk strategy The statements approved by the board in 2012 are
set out below

In conducting Its business V= adopts a groupwide perspective on risk, and aims to avoid undue
concentration, operate within its risk appetite, ensure fair treatment of customers and be competitive
In our chosen markets,

Lv= will take on nsks that it has the capahility to understand and manage and which support the
group’s am of optimising value for its members, delivering expected policyholder benéfits and
ensurng it manages the with-profits business in line with the Principles and Practices of Financial
Management,

LV= has an appetite for insurance risk in the life and nondife sectors As LV= has long term Labilities,
it also retains iIlquidity premium through 1its investment strategy,

LV= takes on market risk in its non-ife business, in 1ts with-profits funds in ine with policyholder
reasonable expectations, and In 1ts pension funds If nsk free rates are low, LV= may seek market nsk
with its mutual capital to earn a higher return, and

As an insurer LV= 15 exposed to other nsks (such as persistency, expense and operational nsk) and it
manages these to optimise the nsk-adjusted return

LV='s nsk management and governance framework
LV= has a strong nsk culture which 1s based on the nsk management and governance framework
The key goals of the framework are

To ensure a consistent measurement of nsk and capital that enables the group to optimise the
nisk-return trade-off,

To mimimise ambiguity by defining the roles, responsibiliies and reporting procedures of the rnisk
and capital deciston makers in the group, and

To ensure that the group identifies, assesses, and manages the matenal nsks to which it 1s
exposed and operates a robust control framework to maintain these nsks within nisk appetite

Risk appetite

The amount of nisk that the group 1s willing and able to accept 1s measured and momtored by the board
establishing a nisk appetite statement and an associated nsk tolerance and hmit for each major risk
dimension The board approved the following nsk appetite statements in 2012
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Dimension Risk appetite statement

Capital and Liquidity tv= will hoid sufficient solvency capital and liquidity to ensure that the group
can continue to trade following an adverse movement In markets

Earnings The volatility of LV="s earmnings is consistent with the reasonable expectations
of with-profits policyholders and other stakeholders

Brand The group will aiways seek to uphold 1ts brand image and its wision to be
‘Britain’s best-loved insurer’

Regulatory V= has no appetite for regulatory weaknesses or faillings that lead

to censure actions
Operational & Capability The group seeks to minimise operational nisk events across the business

Risk governance

The roles and responsitihties for risk management are based on the ‘three lines of defence” model

The businesses and support functions are responsible for nsk taking, implementing the nsk management
framework and embedding the nsk culture (first ine of defence) The rnisk function 1s accountable for
overseeing and challenging the identification, measurement, management, monitonng and reporting of key
nsks and for developing the nsk management framework (second line of defence) The internal audit team
provides an independent assessment of the nsk framework and the internal control processes (third line
of defence)

The businesses and support functions are responsible for ensuring that the controls are effective and will
report to the board on any control weaknesses

The Beard Risk Committee helps the board to oversee nsk and nsk management across LV= The
busmesses and support functions have established Asset and Liability Committees (ALCOs) and Risk
Commuttees to assist them in the execution of therr first ine of defence responsibilities, and the chief risk
officer chairs the Group Executive Risk Committee to support the execution of the second line of defence
responsibiities These relationships are summansed in the diagram below

To support a consistent and rigorous approach to risk management across L=, the nsk function has
established a set of formal nsk policies and nisk standards These policies and standards detail the
management and contro! requirements for the group and are reviewed regularly to ensure they align
with any changes in the external environment or In the business strategy

As part of this approach the businesses and support functions are required to regularly identify and review
therr nsk exposures and risk controls Where any nsks are outside of appetite, action plans are put in place
which are reviewed and monitored by the Group Executive Risk Committee

The nsk function then aggregates and reports the risks along with an assessment against the nsk appetite
and nsk hmits to the Board Risk Committee This reporting also assesses emerging nsks and the results of
the thematic reviews performed n respect of the group’s products and processes

Roles and responsibilities Relationships

Board and Board Risk Commilttee

e Set strategic objectives Lv= Board ]

* Monitor performance

» Set nsk appetite

* Set and uphold values Board Risk

s Approve risk policies Committee

Second line Chief Risk Officer

s Set business standards y

« Monitor performance Group Execuitive

s Oversee rnsk & capital management Risk Committee

* Prowvide challenge 5

» Recommend risk management activity i

First line: Chief Executive/Business & Support Functions

« Oversee sk management Business Risk Committees

« Monitor nsk and capital profile Group and ]

« Monitor business performance Business Asset and Liability

» Operate in line with agreed policy Committees ® Delegation
« Repert to the second ine and board O Review
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Principal risks and uncertainties

A common risk categorisation basis is used across LV= to ensure a consistent record of the names.

descriptions and structure of the group’s risks. The principal risks to which LV=is exposed are shown below:

Risk type

Definition

Management and mitigation examples

Financial markets risk

The risk thal arises from adverse fluctuations or
increased volatility in asset values, asset income or
interest rates. This includes cradit spread widening.

Active assel management and hedging, including the use
of derivatives

Pension fund de-risking

Asset and liability duration matching

Credit counterparty risk

The risk of financial loss as a resuit of the default

or failure of third parties to meet their payment
chligations, or variations in market values as a result
of changes in expectations related to these risks.

tnvestment restrictions on aggregate and fund
credit quality

Investment restrictions on sovereign and corporate
exposure to seme Eurozone countries

Credit counterparty limits and monitoring

Life insurance risk

The risk that arises from the inherent uncertainties
as to the ocourrence, amount and timing of life
insurance liabilities (for example adverse movements
in mortatity, longevity. and persisiency).

Clearly controlled and defined pricing criteria
Product mix management to optimise capital strain
VErsus return

Use of reinsurance to mitigate mortality/ morbidity/
longewvity fisks

General insurance risk

The risk that experience is adverse to current best-
estimate assumptions underlying the underwriting
result {for example adverse movements in claims,
or catastrophe experience).

Use of reinsurance to reduce the impact of catastrophe
and large claims fisks

Use of data, models and analysis to control pricing and
risk selection

Review and analysis of claims and reserve development

Liquidity risk

The risk that V= and/or its subsidiaries. though
solvent, do not have sufficient financial resources
available 10 meet their obligations when they fall due.

Asset liability matching
Cash fiow reporting and forecasting
Active asset mix management

QOperational risk

The risk of financial lgss resulting from inadeguate
or failed internal processes, people and systems,
or from external events. including changes in the
legal and regulatory environment.

Attestation process that reports o the board on the
effectiveness of controls
Risk reporting and root cause analysis processes

Strategic risk

Rish of notl achieving the group’s strategic plan

as a resuit of internal {e.g. ineffective, inefficient

or inadequate senior management processes)

or external factors (e.g. economic. legal. political
changes} that serve 10 undermine either the strategy
itself or its execution.

Annual planning process (5 year business plans
produced)

Regular tracking and reporting of key strategic risks 10
the board

Annual strategy review with the board and externat input
and chaillenge

Risk environment and profile
he financial markeis proved to be more stable in 2012 than in 2011 with gilt yields remaining low, credit
spreads contracting, and the FTSE 100 Index rising by circa 6%. The notable exception {0 these improving
rends was the second quarter which witnessed a return to Euro-driven uncertainty which was ultimately
dampened by a strong policy response from central banks and Eurozone governments.

Nonetheless. the UK remains in a prolonged economic downturn, and the Euro crisis, the US fiscal cliff and
high levels of government borrowing provide ongoing threats to UK growth, consumer confidence and the

olatility and performance of investment markets.

he risk profile of LV= didn’t change significantly during 2012 and the biggest risks we face continue to
arise from adverse movements in financial markets and adverse trends in general insurance underwriting

and claims.

During the year LV= completed a number of actions to improve the management of its risks; inctuding:
Hedges that reduced the risk exposures to rising inflation and interest rates and also reduced
the exposure 1o increases in the volatility of interest rates and equities in the general insurance

investment portfolios;

Reinsurance to reduce exposure to longevity in the staff pensicn scheme: and

liabili

management in the annuity portfolio {o further reduce interest rate risk in that portfolio.
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Our approach to Corporate Governance

We choose to observe the requirements of
the annotated version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, even though we are not
formally bound by 1t

1 The annolated version of the
UK Corporate Governance
Code and the best practice
guidance was published by
the Association of Financal
Mutuals (the Annotated Code }

Compliance with the Annotated Code for
the year ended 31 December 2012

The board considers that we fully comply with

the applicable principles and prowvisions of the
Annotated Code with the exception of a decision
taken by the board that only the chairman will offer
himself for annual re-election by members at the
Annual General Meeting

Developments in corperate governance

In September 2012 the Financial Reporting Council
published an updated version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, an annotated version adapted
to the circumstances of mutual organisations was
then produced by the Association of Financial
Mutuals 1n November 2012 In early 2013 we
completed a review of the amended Annotated Code
and following this review we have taken appropriate
action to ensure we are compliant including setting
out our policy on boardroom diversity

Following the ‘comply or explain’ principle of the
Annotated Code, the board decided that from the
2012 AGM the chatrman would stand for annual
re-election Dennis Holt, our current chairman 1s
retinng iImmediately following the 2013 AGM and
the chairman designate, Mark Austen, 15 standing
for re-election as a non-executive director In this
respect we will not be fully compliant with the
Annotated Code, which recommends the annual
re-election of all directors, but the board has, in any
event, determined that the annual election of the
chairman provides an adequate means for members
to register concern with the performance of the
board directors who continue to stand for re-election
at least every three years

Appraising the board’s performance

Every year the performance of board members is
reviewed both individually and as a team The senior
independent director reviews the performance

of the chairman, and the chairman reviews the
performance of all other directors

The UK Corporate Governance Code recommends
that FTSE 350 compantes, or equivalents,

{which would include LV=) commit to an externally
facilitated review of board effectiveness at least
every three years A review of the board and its
commuttees therefore commenced in late 2012
The outcome of this review will be considered by
the board at its Apnl 2013 meeting

The board

Qur board currently compnses six non-executive

and four executive directors All the non-executive
directors {apart from the chairman, for whom the

test of independence i1s not applicable) are regarded
as independent We therefore satisfy the Annotated
Code’s recommendation that, excluding the chairman,
at least half the board should consist of independent
non-executive directors
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Balance of the board
The beard contains an appropriate balance of expertise in management,

investment, administrative and financial services to meet the requirements [«)
of our members and customers 3
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Board members
- Dennls Holt {(64) Chairman
{ Dennis’s expenence in banking and insurance spans
36 years as an executive and a further seven as a non-
executive director, involving a wide-range of economic
and competitive environments He spent 31 years at Lioyds TSB
including as retanl banking director on the matn board This was
followed by five years at AXA as UK chief executive and a member
of the global executive committee In his six years as LV="s
chairrman he has led the board as it repositioned the business
and delvered on its growth and profit amtntions Dennis 1s also
charrman of Beazley plc

Member of the Risk Committee and the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees

Mike Rogers (48) Chief Executive

After graduating from Cambndge Unwersity in 1986
Mike spent 20 years working for Barclays Bank
where he carned out a variety of roles in the UK and
overseas Among his semor appointments at Barclays, Mike was
managing director of Small Bustness, Premter Banking and UK
Retall Banking achieving a post-graduate Diploma in Leadership
from Exeter University in 1995 in May 2006 he joined V=

as chief executive leading the business into profitability and
transforming 1t into the vibrant and successful mutual it 1s today

Member of the Investment Committee and
Nominations Committee

Philip Moore (53) Finance Director

Having held executive positions at several leading
financial institutions Philtp’s career In finance has
spanned almost 30 years He has acquired extensive
knowledge 1n areas such as nsk management, actuarial functions
and asset management and was chief executive at Fnends
Provident until 2007 when he joined the Pensions Corporation
This was followed by his appomtment as finance director at 1V=
In 2010 As well as being part of the board and executive team
at V=, Philip 1s also a non-executive of Towergate Partnership Ltd

Member of the Investment Committee

Richard Rowney (42) Managing Director

of Life and Penslons

Richard has a first class honours degree and spent
14 years at Barclays Bank holding a number of senior
positions across corporate and retail banking including overseeing
integration of the Woolwich and Barclays' retall banks He joined
LV=1n 2007 as chief operating officer where he transformed the
operational support areas to ensure they could support the fast
growing trading businesses going forward Richard was appomnted
managing director of life and penstons in 2010 and I1s also vice-
chairman of Bournemouth and Poole College, the eighth largest
educaticn college in the UK

Member of the Investment Committee

John O'Roarke (55) Managing Director

of General Insurance

John qualified as a chartered accountant and has
spent 25 years in the insurance industry He worked
for Churchill Insurance for 13 years where he was finance director
and then managing director, leading the company to become
one of the UK s best known insurers John was appointed ctuef
operating officer of RBS Insurance in 2003 but left RBS in 2005
to set up ABC Insurance, acquired by V= n 2006 He became
managing director of LV= general insurance the same year,
leading the team that has quadrupled the size of the general
insurance husiness and produced strong profit contnbutions

Mark Austen (63) Senlor Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mark qualified as a chartered management
accountant in 1972 and spent the majority of his
career at PricewaterhouseCoopers managing ther global financial
services consulting business His broad range of skills across
several disciplines mcludes adwsing organisations on ther
strategies, acquisitions, operations, HR policies and technology
As well as being nominated as LV='s next chairman, Mark I1s
also a non-executive director of Standard Bank plc and

Mott McDonald Group Ltd

Chawman of the Risk Committee and a member of the Audit,
Investment and Remuneration and Nomination Committees

John Edwards (57) Non-Executive Director
¢ John's career in the insurance and investment sector

spans over 35 years His past roles include chief

executive of Clencal Med:cal Investment Group, chief
executive of the HBOS Insurance and Investment Division and
chief executive of International Financial Services at Lloyds
Banking Group He has also served as a non-executive director
of St James's Place and Esure As well as his position on the V=
board he 1s also a non-executive director of Notuingham Building
Society where he also chairs therr Risk Committee

Chairman of the Investment Commitiee and member of the
Risk Commttee

Caroline Burton (63) Non-Executlve Director

Caroline has a strong life insurance background and is
a highly experienced figure in the asset management
industry having spent 26 years with Guardian Royal
Exchange plc, where she was In charge of investments from 1990
until 1999 She acts as a pensions and business adwiser for a
number of pension funds and charities and her expertise puts
her in good stead to monitor the management of LV="s assets
She 15 also a non-executive director of Rathbone Brothers ple, TR
Property investment Trust plc and Blackrock Small Companies
Investment Trust plc

Member of the Audit Committee and the Investment Committee

Cath Keers (47) Non-Executive Director

Cath has over 20 years marketing and sales
experience having worked at BskyB, Next and Avon

In 2008 she won a lifetime achievement award for

her outstanding impact dunng her career at 02, where she was
customer director tn charge of refocusing the organisation’s
customer strategy She brings a wealth of retail industry expertise
to the V= board and holds other non-executive positions at
Tetefonica 02 Europe, Royal Mail and the Home Retail Group (for
Homebase and Argos)

Chairman of the Remuneraticn and Nommaticn Committees and
a member of the With-Profits Comnuttee

James Dean (55) Non-Executive Director

James 1s a chartered accountant and 1s recognised

as an expert i surance accounting having spent
much of his 30 years' expenence i audit and advisory
roles As a semior partner at Ernst & Young he dealt with

clients such as AXA, Prudential, Legal & General, RSA and Aviva,
serving on boards outside the firm including as chairman of the
ICAEW Insurance Committee He s also a former global IFRS
leader for the insurance sector

Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the
Risk Committee
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Board committees
The following board committees met durnng 2012
s the Group Audit Committee,
s the Group Risk Committee,

the investment Committee,

the Remuneration and Nominations Committee,
« the With-Profits Commuttee

The terms of reference for the board committees are reviewed each year and published on our website

They can be viewed at LV com/board-committees

Board and committee membership and attendance in 2012

Liverpool Victoria  Audit Risk Investment Remuneration  With-Profits

Friendly Society Committee Committee Committee & Nominations  Commuttee

Board Committee
Meetings In the year 11 5 4 4 5 5
Denrnus Holt 10/10 n/a 4/4 n/a 5/5 n/a
Mark Austen 9/10 5/5 4/4 4/4 1/1° n/a
lan Reynolds 9/9 a/4 3/3 n/a 3/4 4/4
John Edwards 10/10 n/a 4/4 3/4 n/a n/a
Cath Keers 7/10 n/a n/a n/a 5/5 4/5
Caroline Burton 10/10 5/5 n/a 474 n/a n/a
Mike Rogers 10/10 n/a n/a 4/4 1/1 n/a
Philip Moore 11/11 n/a n/a 4/4 n/a n/a
John Q’Roarke 10710 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Richard Rowney 11/11 n/a n/a 4/4 n/a n/a
James Dean 5/6 /2 1/2 n/a n/a n/a

n/a Not applicable
*Meeing 10 discuss Nomenalion Comrmitiea busnNess only

Audit Commuttee

The Audit Committee s made up of

» James Dean {chairman from October 2012}

+ Mark Austen

s Carchine Burton

lan Reynolds chaired the committee until he stood
down n October 2012

The Audit Committee meets at least five times a year

with other attendees including, but not limited to

« the chief executive,

+ the group financial director,

« the nternal audit divector,

« the chief nsk officer,

« the group financial controller,

* sentor management in finance, and

+ the external auditor (currently
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC)

All the members of the comnmuttee are independent
and bning significant, and relevant skills and
experence to the function of the committee

All members undertake induction tratning and
continuing professional development James Dean,
In particular, as the chairman, has the requisite
‘recent and relevant financial expenence’, as
recommended by the Annotated Code

The key objectives of the Audit Committee are to

» Work alongside the Risk Committee, to keep the
performance of LV="s internal control systems
under review,

= Discharge its responstbilities in respect of
external financial reporting,

» Ensure the independence of the group's external
auditor,

+« Monitor the appropriateness and adequacy of
the plans and resourcing of the internal audit
functicn, and

+ Engage independent counsel and other advisers
as It deems necessary to carry out its duties

Dunng 2012 the Audit Committee discharged its
responsibilities by

Internal controls

« Considenng a number of reports on the group's
internal controls and nsk management functions
and 1dentified key 1ssues, inrtiating actions for
these to be resolved,

¢ Conducted a full annual review of the
effectiveness of all matenal controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls
and nsk management systems The review's
aim was to assess the effectiveness of the
control environment and 1dentify any areas for
improvement, and

¢ Reviewed the arrangements through which
employees can raise concerns about possible
irregulanties relating to financial reporting or
other matters including reviewing all whistle
blowing reports
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Financial reporting

-

Reviewed the half year and year end processes
and financial statements of the group, which
encompassed the general insurance and life
business results, including recommending the
Annual Report to the board,

Analysed and scrutinized the key accounting
policies, judgments and actuarial assumptions
with management, the external auditors and

the actuarnial function holder The committee
specifically reviewed the assumptions for credit
risk default, the nsk free rate, cost inflation

and allpcation,

Considered management's regular reviews of the
going concern status of the group, and
Monitored the financial results communicated to
members, including the Report and Accounts

Internal audit

L4

Reviewed the effectiveness and activities of
the internal audit function and ensured that it
has appropnate standing within the group This
review included the results of an internal survey,
with the committee concluding that it was a
high performing function, while also confirming
support for focus on prniorty issues required by
the regulator and In keeping pace with a fast
growing business,

Met pnivately with the internal audit director,
Ensured that significant findings and
recommendations made by the internal auditor
and management's proposed response were
receved, discussed and appropnately acted
upon, and

Reviewed the proposed internal audit plan for
the comung year to ensure that it addressed key
areas of nsk and that there was approprate
co-ordination with the external auditor

External audit

Reviewed the performance of the external
auditor, iIncluding the charrman meeting privately
with the auditor to give feedback The commitiee
concluded that the external auditor was effective
and recommended the reappointment of the
external auditor for a further one year term,
agreeing the scope of the audit fee for the
forthecorming period,

Agreed guidelines and monitored the use of

the external auditor for any non-audit related
work to ensure its continued independence
was not prejudiced,

Reviewed and approved the external auditor s
proposed audit scope and approach for the
current year as set out in its 2012 audit

ptan, 1n the hght of the group’s present
circumstances and changes in regulatory

and other requirements,

Discussed with the external auditor any audit
problems encountered 1n the normal course of
audit work, Including any restnctions on audit

scope or access to information as part of ensunng

that significant findings and recommendations
made by the external auditor and management's
proposed response were received, discussed and
appropnately acted upon,

»  Met privately with the external auditor PwC, and

+ Considered and monitored the independence
of the external auditor including any potential
conflicts of interest

The committee reviewed its terms of reference

and effectiveness in 2012, as it does at least
annually, and a change to take ownership of the
financial internal model, previousty held by the Risk
Committee, was recommended to the board For
2013 a group wide project 1s underway to review
and document the commuttee governance structuse,
including the terms of reference and delegated
authonties In addiion, the Audit Committee 1s
also actively seeking to appoint an additional
independent non-executive director to join the
committee 1n 2013 to further enhance

its effectiveness

The Risk Commitee

Risk Committee 1s made up of

+« Mark Austen (chatrman)

e Dennis Holt

+ James Dean

s John Edwards

lan Reynolds also served on the Risk Committee
during 2012

The Risk Committee meets at least four times a year
with other attendees including, but not imited to
+ the chief executive,
» the group finance director,
+ the chief nsk officer,
+« the internal audnt director, and
the head of compliance

It 1s the chairman’s practice to meet separately
with the chief nsk officer ahead of most meetings
The pnncipal role of the committee 1s to consider
the rnisks faced by LV= and adwise the board More
specifically its main actvittes during 2012 included
« Agreeing and monitoring rnisk strategy, risk
appetite and individual iimits for specific types of
nsk (e g financial markets nsk and credit nsk),

» Reviewing and assessing the nisk oversight
provided by management in connection with
current and emerging nsk exposures,

* Assessing the impact of management's strategic
plans on the nisk profile of the group,

« Montoring the effectiveness of management in
identifying and recording the principal nisks,

» Gaining assurance that an appropnate culture
in relation to the management of nsk continued
to be maintained, with particular focus on
performance measurement,

e Scrutinising the Indvidual Capital Assessment
(ICA) prepared by management and
recommending its acceptance to the board, and

* Recewning reports from the chief nsk officer
and the head of compliance on a wide range of
1ssues, including regulatory change
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During 2013, the committee will focus on the
continued implementation of an own nsk and
solvency assessment process, rnsk based
performance measures and reporting, a refreshed
oversight and apportionment process and enhanced
monitoring of LV="s conduct nsk framework

A further change 1s that the responsibility to
scrutinise the ICA will be assumed by the Audit
Committee This will suppart the Board Risk
Committee focus on monitoring the risk profile and
associated capital requirements of the group 1n hght
of its current and projected free assets

Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Sitting as the Remuneration Committee,

the committee met five times during 2012

and 1s expected to meet four times in 2013

The committee 1s made up of three independent
non-executive directors

+ Cath Keers (chairman)

« Denris Holt

* Mark Austen

Input 15 provided by the HR director and the chief

nsk officer, who attend by invitation 0On behalf of

the board, the committee determines

« Qur broad policy on executive remuneration, and

+ The specific packages for each of the executive
directors and certain senior managers

More details of the group’s policy on executive and

senor management remuneration, and the activities

of the committee during the year are set out In the

Directors’ Report on Remuneration

In its capacity as the Nomination Committee,
which also includes the group chief executive as a
member, the committee
« Evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge
and expenence on, and required by, the
board for board appointmentis and certan
senior management reles, and
« Prepares a description of the role and
capabilities required for any particular
appointment

Recrutment consultants will usually be instructed
to help compile a shorthst of candidates for
interview for board vacancies The committee will
then recommend appointments to the board for
approval During 2012 the Nomination Committee
oversaw the recruitment of James Dean to the
board The committee intends to recruit a further
non-executive director during 2013 following the
retirement of Dennis Holt on 23 May 2013

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprnses three

non-executive directors

« Jjohn Edwards {chairman)

« Caroline Burton

+ Mark Austen, and
four executive directors comprising

« the chief executive,

« the group finance director,

« the managing director of the life and pensions
business, and

» the finance director of the general insurance
business

The commuttee meets four times a year and the
group’s chief investment officer, chief nsk officer
and representatives from the group’s asset
manager, TAM usually attend by invitation

It 1s respensible for

» Monitoring and reviewing the management of
our investments by TAM, and

+« Confirming to the board each year that the
continued appointment of TAM remains
appropriate, having regard to the operation of its
mandates and relative performance and charges
compared to alternative providers

With-Profits Commitiee

The With-Profits Committee meets at least five

times a year, and comprises

« Graham Burville {(Independent chairman)

« Cath Keers

« John Perks, the managing director of our
retirement solutions business

Graham Burville has extensive and relevant industry

expenence and was formerly CEQ of Police Mutual

lan Reynolds also served on the With-Profits
Committee dunng 2012

The role of the Committee I1s to

* Brng independent judgement to the assessment
of comphance with the statement of Principles
and Practice of Financial Management, and

« Monitor how any competing or conflicting
interests between different groups of
policyholder are resolved

The committee can engage external professional
adwisors to assist in delivering its objectives
effectively and draws on the expertise of an
independent with-profits actuary, Mick Dumbreck,
who was appointed in February 2012

Group Executive Committee

The chief executve chars this weekly committee
meeting to monitor our business performance It

also meets monthly in order to help him meet the
responsibiities which the board has delegated to him
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Matters reserved for the board

There 1s a clear hst of matters which only the board

can decide on, other matters are delegated to the group chief
executive Matters reserved to the Society's board include

A) Strategy and planning

« determining and overseeing delivery of the group’s strategy

« approval and monitoring of long-term strategic plans/objectives
+ approval and monitoring of the group annual business plan

B) Risk

+ allocating capital based on risk and return cntena

+ determining the nsk appetite of the business and overseeing
its usage

C) Financial matters Approval of

+ capital and revenue expenditure exceeding £5 milhion within
agreed budget and £2 5 million outside agreed budget and any
other expenditure outside the normal course of business

= the Annual Bonus Declaration

« the Individuzgl Capital Assessment and its submission
to the FSA

+ the Valuation Report and the Annual Report and Accounts

« Member Bonus

D} Mergers, acquisitions and disposals
« approval of mergers, acquisitions and disposals and
overseeing effective integration

E) Governance and compliance Approval of

+ the Notice of AGM {including reappointment of auditors),
any proposed amendments to the Memorandum & Rules
and related documentation In connection with the AGM

+ any charitable or political donations

+ the membership of board committees

+ the terms of reference of board committees and subsidary
company boards

+ the appointment of company nominees to the Staff Pension
Scheme trustee company board

« policy changes 1n pension entitiement and SPS funding

F) Appointment and removal of officers

appointment and removat of the Society's chatrman, deputy
chairman (if appointed), semor independent director, company
secretary, group chief executive, chief investment officer, chief
risk officer, with-profits actuary and actuanal function holder
and directors of the Society and its substidianes

In 2012 the board met eight times for formal board meetings,
twice on an ad hoc basis to discuss specific Issues and once for
an ad hoc strategy session In 2013 the board expects to meet at
least eight times and to have two strategy sessions

There was one new appointment to the board in 2012 James Dean
Jotned the board as a non- executive director in July

Under the Soctety’s Rules all directors are required to stand
for re-election at least once every three years, and therefore
Mark Austen and Mike Rogers will be offening themselves for
re-election at the 2013 Annual General Meeting along with
our new appointee James Dean We are actively recruiting an
additional non-executive director who 1t 1s anticipated will join
the board during 2013 and will offer themselves for re-election
at the 2014 AGM

Member relations

The board believes that communicating with members 15 of prime
importance An impertant mechanism for this 1s the V= Member
Panel, currently comprised of 30 members This group meets with
our chairrman, his executive team and other sentor managers to
learn about our recent performance, strategy, and future plans
and to provide input and challenge The board will continue to
monitor the effectiveness of this interaction and make further
changes as approprate

We also operate the LV= Community which allows us to send
regular ematls to over 11,000 users with the latest V= news,
offers and the opportumty to take partin research Participants
give us valuable input and comments on new developments,
such as preduct design or customer Service processes

The Member Care Line 1s a free and exclusive benefit that
handled over 1,100 phone calls in 2012 where members

were secking medrcal or legal advice We also run a Member
Support Fund which provides one-off financial grants to members
who find themselves, through no fault of their own, In severe
financial difficulties Requests for help are assessed by a small
independent comruttee of members Grants that were awarded
dunng the year amounted to almost £33,000 Our members are
also entitted to discounts on a range of products
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Directors’ Report

~ Rachel Small
Chupany Secretary

- N5+ - Wy - e

The directors of Liverpool Victoria Friendly Society
Limted present their annual report together with the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012

Business activities and future prospects
V= 1s an incorporated friendly society that, together
with various subsidianes, carrnes out insurance and
financial services business in the Umited Kingdom,
through LVYFS and its subsichanes These activities
cover with-profits assurance, life protection (both
term and whole of life), annuities, equity release,
mgetor, home, pet and travel insurance The directors
consider that all the activities undertaken by the
group during the year were within its rules and any
relevant regulatory permissions

A review of the business for the year ending
31 December 2012, recent events and likely

Our members future developments s included below

+6 OOO The board sets objectives and priorities supported by
’

key performance indicators (KP!s) and targets, which
2012 1,133,000 it monitors on a regular basis throughout the year

2011 1,127,000

Dunng 2012, the key objectives and priorties were

s Achieving the profit and enterprise value target
results for each business unit,

+« Completing the transformation of the general
insurance business into a mature cash
generative business,

+ Sharing the financial returns from our trading
businesses with members via a mutual
bonus scheme,

+ Completing the implementation of a major
new system for the management of general
insurance claims,

« Further enhancing our enterprise nsk
management framework, operating at all times
to required regulatory standards,

« Completing our programme to achieve
compliance with the requirements of Solvency
Il and the new regime established by the Retail
Distnbution Review, and

= Achieving progress towards our goal to be
Britain's best-ioved insurer
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Beard directors and interests

The current members of the board and details of its
vanous committees are shown on pages 32 to 35
together with their dates of appointment

John O'Roarke Is @ minonty shareholder in LV
Insurance Management Limited witha 1 11%
shareholding and 1s a party to the contract for
LVFS to acquire the remaining interest in that
company Further details are given in note 40
to the Financtal Statements

We continued to maintain hability insurance cover
for our directors and officers during the year

With-profits bonus declaration

We have declared an annual bonus for the year
ending 31 December 2012 at 1% of the sum
assured for Industnal Branch business and at

2 0% of the sum assured for conventional Ordinary
Branch hfe business Intenm bonus rates will also
be at these levels Terminal bonus rates in 2012
maintain our highly competitive position

Basis of accounting

These accounts are presented using International
Financtal Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by
the European Union, drawn up on a going concern
basis The directors are satisfied that the group has
adequate resources to continue 1n bustness for the
foreseeable future and that accordingly the going
concern basis is appropnate Further details about
the directors’ responsibilities for the accounts are
descrnbed below

Fixed assets
Changes n our fixed assets are shown in note 27
of these accounts

Margin of solvency

Throughout the year and at 31 December 2012
we held the required capital resources for each
business class as prescribed by the Financial
Services Authority

Independent auditor

A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor
wili be proposed at the 2013 AGM

Managing risk and return

We look to create value for members by maintaining
an appropnate balance between the returns that we
seek and the level and type of nisk we take on In
order to achieve these returns

To better manage risk levels on a day to day basis
a system of capital budgets 1s in place for each
business Each business 1s expected to manage
its positton in ine with 1ts capital budget and nsk
appetite position

A full overview of our nsk management can be
found on page 26 Note 3 of these accounts also
provides further detait about our nsk management
and control

Internal control

The board has overall responsibility for the

group's internal controt systems and for monitoning
effectiveness Implementation and maintenance
of the internal control systems are the responsibility
of the executive directors and serior management
The performance of the internal control systems

18 reviewed by the relevant board committees,
principally the Audit Committee, which take

reports from the internal audit, compliance

and risk functions

The group's internal control systems are designed
to manage, rather than eliminate, the nsk of failure
to meet business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss In assessing what
constitutes reasonable assurance, the board

has regard to matenality and to the relationship
between the cost of, and benefit from, internal
control systems

In 2012, the board undertook a full annual review
of the effectiveness of the matenal controls, as
recommended by the UK Corporate Governance
Code The review incorporated an evaluation of
the group s framework and an assessment of

any significant internal control 1ssues that were
raised during the year in relation to financial,
operational and compliance nsk controls Whenever
any significant contro! weaknesses are identified
actions are taken, or agreed plans are put in place
and tracked by the board to implementation The
system was m place throughout the year and as at
the date this Report was approved

Chartable donations

A full view of our chantable donations and corporate
social responsibility actmties can be found on page
43 In 2012 no political donations were made

People employed by the group and

its subsidiaries

The average number of people we employ and
our total employee costs are shown in note 38
of the accounts

Membership
As at 31 December 2012, we had 1,133,000
(2011 1,127,000) members

We make all reasonable and cost effective attempts
to trace and contact members if we believe ther
address detalls are incorrect When all reminder

or tracing techniques have been exhausted we
maintain a record of the relevant member and,

If they have an unpaid claim, the policy remains
open for payment untill we can re-establish contact
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Statement of disclosure of nformation

to the auditor

As at the date of this report each director

confirms that

1) so far as (s)he 1s aware, there 1s no information
refevant to the audit of the Society's financial
statements for the year ending 31 December
2012 of which the auditor 1s unaware,

2} (s)he has taken all steps that {s}he ought to have
taken in his/her duty as a director to make him/
herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to estabfish that the Society’s auditor 1S
aware of that information

Responsibibities of the board of directors
for the accounts

The Friendly Societies Act 1992 (1992 Act) requires
a friendly soctety’'s Committee of Management to
prepare accounts for each accounting pencd As

we are incorporated under the 1892 Act our board
of directors has assumed the responsibilities and
duties of the Commuttee of Management in relation
to these accounts

These accounts must comply with the relevant
provisions of the 1992 Act, and present farrly the
financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the society and the group at the end of
the accounting penod In carrying out this duty, the
directors have chosen to use IFRS as adopted by
the European Union

Legislation in the UK that governs the preparation
and publication of accounts may differ from
legislation 1n other junisdictions A farr presentation
of our accounts in accordance with IFRS requires
our directors to

« Select suitable accounting policies and ensure
they are applied consistently,

« Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis,
unless 1t 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Society and the group will continue tn business,

+ Make judgements and accounting estumates that
are reasonable and prudent,

= Present information, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparabie and understandable
information,

+ Provide addiional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirerments in IFRS 15
insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions ¢n the Scciety and the group’s
financial position and financial performance, and

« State that the Society and the group have
comphed with applicable IFRSs, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explawned
the accounts

The directars are also responsible for mamtang

+ Proper accounting records which are intended
to disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any
tme, the financial position of the Society
and the group,

+ Appropnate intemal control systems to safeguard
our assets and 1o prevent and detect fraud and
other rregulanties, and

« The integnty of the corporate and financial
information included on our website LVcom

The directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integnty of the group’s website Legislation in
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are shown on page 32, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and behef

» The group financral statements, which have been
prepared In accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
hatehties, financial position and profit of the
group,

+ The Business Review on pages 12 to 16 includes
a fair review of the development and performance
of the business and the pasitan of the group,
and

+ A descnption of the group's principal nsks and
details of the group's sk governance structure
are provided on pages 26 10 28

By order of the Board of Directors

Q_(\,M S

Rachel S Small, Company Secretary
27 March 2013
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Business ethics

As a leading financial mutual we take our
responsibilities as an ethical company sericusly
Our approach to corporate social responsibility
15 embedded in our culture and positive attitude
towards everyone we deal with

Supplier ethics

We recogiise 1t 1s important to build successful and
collaborative relationships with our suppliers and
we expect them to support our ethical approach
to business We base our working practices with
them on our core values, and in return ask them
to support our ethics Consequently we ask all
our suppliers to act in accordance with our ethica!
supplier policy This requires them, among other
things, to comply with all laws and regulations,
not to exploit child labour and not to discriminate
against thewr workforce In order {0 ensure this, a
number of steps are taken These include (but are
not imited to} ngorous due diligence of potential
suppliers dunng the tender process and regular
business assurance audits with supplers to
monitor compliance

Governance and responsible investment
We are committed to being a respensible
investor and active owner This commitment 1S
shared by TAM who are responsible for managing
our investments They follow governance and
responsible investment principles and procedures
based on the United Nations backed Principles
for Responsible Investment {PRI), the UK
Stewardship Code as well as best practice
corporate governance guidelines

It 15 our Joint belief that well-governed companies
are kikely to outperform in the long run and
therefore TAM consider a holistic understanding
of nsks and opportunities associated with
certain companies, sectors or themes, as part of
generating sustainable returns for therr clients
Their Governance and Responsible Investment (GRI)
teamn has worked alongside the firm’s investment
professionals since 1998, facilitating integration
of maternal environmental, social and governance
(ESG) analysis into the investment process The
GRI research and engagement pnmarily focuses
on equities and Is being expanded to cover ESG
research to fixed income, where ESG risks and
opportunities can impact credit scores

Complaints policy

We aim to provide an excellent standard of service
to our members and customers, but recognise
that there may be occasions where servige falls
below expectations Qur policy 15 to deal with any
complaints promptly, fairly and honestly

Processes are also in place to ensure we swiftly
take any necessary preventative action We call this
root cause analysis It means we closely monitor all
complaints enabling us to quickly identify if there 1s
a problem with our processes so we can put it right
going forward

Where regulation or guidance govern complaint
procedures, we have taken steps to ensure we
remain compliant If we are unable to resolve
the matter satisfactorily, the complamant will
be adwised to refer the matter to the Financial
Ombudsman Service

Financiai crime

LV= takes a highly proactive approach to fighting
financial crime and 1n 2012 we achieved savings
of £39 millkon as a result of our robust attitude
We also handled a number of fraud cases that
have set market precedent n the rugh court and
in private and public prosecutions

Our goal 1s to create and deliver marketdeading
financial crime management This will ultimately
enable us to offer lower premiums to customers as
a result of the successful cancellation of fraudulent
policies and the tackling of fraudulent claims

HR matters

The success of LV= continues to be dnven by
committed people nght across the business We
believe that happy people make happy customers
and therefore we have created a culture of
empowerment and support for cur people

LV= continues to grow and during 2012 the HR
team handled 30,000 job applications with a
thousand new employees joining us during the year

As we grow, 1t IS iImportant to ensure that we
maintain a sense of shared purpose and values

50, every year, we conduct an independent survey
to find out how engaged our employees feel This
allows all of our people to give us detalled feedback
about life at LV= across a broad range of topics

In 2012 we were recognised as a UK High
Performing Orgamsation (HPO) by Towers Watson
Towers Watson reviews businesses across the
globe and publishes a list of those that it believes
have high-performance cultures, focused on
improving the return en talent investment and
delivering measurable business resuits

We provide employees with information on 1ssues
relevant to their employment and our performance
through meetings, regular magazines and an
employee intranet We also drive an upbeat
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people culture through an effective internal
communications programme which celebrates our
values, image and competitiveness

The management team actively engages with an
Employee Consultative Forum on 1ssues important
to employees, including their working environment,
facihities, terms of employment and safety

Equal opportunities

We are committed to equal opportunities and the
fair treatment of all our employees In line with
our corporate values we undertake to treat all our
employees with dignity, respect, and constideration
We recognise our commitments under the law
and are resolute to providing equal opportunities
by ensuring that our practices and procedures
follow legal requirements and good practice,

as recommended by the Commission for Racial
Equahty, the Equal Opportumities Commission,
and the Disability Rights Commission

Our policy I1s to treat all employees and applicants
farrly and equitably regardless of gender, racial or
cultural grounds, disability, age, marital status,
religious beliefs, sexual onientation, trade union
activity or any other category where discnmination
cannot be reasonably justified We will ensure that
no reguirement or condition will be imposed without
Justification that could disadvantage indmiduals on
any of these grounds

Diversity

Dwersity and inclusion are fundamental to our
culture and core values, and in creating an
innovative, collaborative and tugh-energy work
environment By embracing an mclusive culture
that supports diverse talent, our people enable
V= to be successful

Our workforce gives customers access to a rich
range of talent, representing different styles,
perspectives and expenences This range of
diversiy, including gender batance, at all levels in
the organisation 15 a critical strength that we are
committed to fostering through a clear dversity and
inclusion programme

LV= recognises the need to address gender
imbalance at senior levels and therefore 1s working
to identify and assist senior women through an
appropriate mentonng and diversity programme

Our new chairman for 2013, Mark Austen, has been
invited to join the 30% club (a group of chairmen
voluntarily committed to bringing more women

onto UK corporate boards) and reflects the board’s
commitment to encouraging diversity within the
workplace The board also sets periodic targets for

female representation at senter levels and
reviews progress

Talent management

We're committed to training and developing our
peopte so they fulfil thewr potential Everyone
has access to traimng programmes and follows
a personal devetopment plan to ensure they are
equipped with the right skills and behaviours for
their job

All our people have access to an e-learning platform
which helps our people develop their skills through
traiming that 15 accessible from both work and
home It offers an extensive programme that can
be tailored to the individual’s personal development
needs — coverng induction and core knowledge to
operattonal and leadership skills

We offer a range of training academies, open primarily
to mternal candidates, with the aim of providing a
structured career path and the opportunity to gain
external qualifications whilst in their role We also
encourage our people to seek career progression
within the group During 2012 over 750 people
moved into a different position internally

Cur pay and reward structure 1s designed to support
the retention of our talented people and more
information can be found in the Remuneration
Report on pages 44 t0 49

Our environment

Looking after the environment 1s part of being
aresponsible business As such we have an
environmental strategy and policy to provide

a structured approach across all areas of our
business to manage, monitor and minimise our
environmental impact We re committed to the
continuous improvement of our impact cn the
environment and wherever practical we seek to
reduce our footprint

Some of the ways we do this are

¢ Actively promoting and investing in efficiency
measures (n our offices,

= Ensunng all offices are ‘binless’ with recycling
faciities in break areas,

» Effectively reducing the use of water by using
water savers,

= Minimising waste and promoting recycling
wherever possible,

+ Placing energy efficiency as a significant factor in
the purchase, lease or refurbishment of any Lv=
office, and

«  Monitonng our environmental performance, code
of conduct and ethical standards
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Our Corporate
Social Responsibility
Programme

£1.04m

1% of our profits donated

@ Support for local communities  31%

O Employee contnbuttons 28%

Members 9%
O Matched gving 11%
{3 Community sponsorship 21%
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Giving something back
to our local communities
and supporting our

people’s charitable
activities 1s hugely
umportant to us

28,000

youngsters helped
by LV= SOS Kit Aid

250

chanes good causes and
projects supported in 2012

91%'
%
employees who think we

@0 good things in the
community

This score was achieved In
an independent employee
survey conducted in
October 2012

We take our responsibilities to our
members, customers, employees

and the wider commurity senously
and we're passionate about making a
positive impact — particularly for those
most in need Last year as a business
and through our employee efforts we
contributed £1 04 milion, around 1%
of our profits towards this aim

Supporting our local communities

We believe our employees know where our support
15 needed most — so we put them in the dnving seat
to look at where we can best offer help

We established a network of 13 Community
Committees representing our larger offices Each
committee 1s made up of a small group of LV=
employees who meet on a monthly basis to assess
requests for help from their local communities and
to decide which good causes could benefit from
our support

In 2012 the committees distributed £265,000
Their activities ranged from donating a minibus to
Huddersfield's Forget Me Not children’s hospice, to
funding a pantormime for 2,400 needy Bournemouth
famiies They supported a totat of 250 local
chanties, good causes and projects dunng the year

Last year we invested £55,000 1n the V=
schools programme This programme focuses
on five schools near our biggest offices, teaching
pupils about business, finance and how to
prepare themselves for employment Last year
58 volunteers from across LV= helped deliver
workshops and mock assessment centres to
around 780 students

Our urmgque approach has not gone unnoticed
During 2012 three of our committees were officially
recognised with our Huddersfield, Hitchin and
Bristol offices winning awards for their outstanding
contribution to the community

As well as the work our comrmttees do, we also
have a number of long term local sponsorships in
place These include V= KidZone, LV= Streetwise,
The Mary Rose Museum in Portsmouth and the Lv=
Brentwood half marathen and fun run

Sponsorships

Working with natronal partners means we can
broaden our reach and benefit more people with our
canng approach, and we invested £222 000 in our
pursuit of this

A large number of disadvantaged children can't take
part In sport because they don't have the necessary
kit or equipment V= S0S Kit Aid 15 an innovative

scheme which collects and recycles unwanted
crnicket and rugby kit and distnbutes it to kids who
need it most

Not only does LV= 50S Kit Aid complement our
commercial sponsorships In cricket and rugby, but
last year it gave 28,000 young people a chance
to play these types of sports that they otherwise
wouldn’'t have had

Qur support of the Queen Elizabeth Il Fields
Challenge 1s helping to safeguard access to outdoor
recreational spaces across the UK and by working
with them we've managed to save 13 playing fields
near our main offices for future generations

Supporting our people to do good

We believe that by providing our employees with
the tools and support to do good things creates a
canng culture at the work place We offer a variety
of support to recognise their contnbutions and help
them make a difference

Qur charnty and time matching schemes give

our people the tools to go out and help others

We offer our people matched funding on money
they persenally raise, up to £500 and up to two and
half days each year to volunteer in the commuruty

We encourage our people to get behind national
fundraising events, such as BBC Children in Need
and Comic Relief, to which we make corporate
donations in appreciation of their efforts

We also provide payroll giving, a mechanism
whereby our employees can donate money from
their monthly salary to a charity close to ther heart
We also run a scheme where the pennies from their
net pay are collected and donated to a chanty near
therr office

Through these activities our employees raised
£296,000 for good causes, which we supported
with matched giving and corporate donations of
£115,000

Supporting our members

We award grants to members in financial hardship
from the Member Support Fund In 2012 these
grants helped 43 members and amounted to
almost £33,000 We also operate a Member Care
Line which offers members medical and legal
advice and handles enquines about the Member
Support Fund This helpline was provided at a cost
of £42,000

For the first time in 2012 we gave our members
the opportunity to select a chanty to benefit from
our AGM donation £15,000 was donated to Scope
which was chosen at random after being nominated
by one of our members
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Directors’
Report on
Remuneration

Cath Keers
Chairman of the

Recent years have seen a marked change in
remuneration practices across the financial services
sector External regulation has sought to strengthen
the link between remuneration and the long-term
financial health and stability of firms in our industry
Whilst detailed regulation on executive pay in the
Insurance sector has yet to emerge, the committee
has sought to ensure that the way in which we
reward the Society’s leadership 1s consistent with
members’ interests and the long-term health of
the Society

To that end, the Remuneration Committee carned
out a review dunng 2012 of our remuneration
framework to ensure that it remains consistent
with both members’ interests and our aspiration
10 be a “destination employer™ This included a
review of the structure of our variable pay schemes
In the context of evolving best practice among
FTSE 250 financial sector companies and others
In the mutual sector As a result, we have made
changes to the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTiP) and
introduced a deferral mechanism into the annual
bonus for our most senior employees to ensure that
a sufficient portion of therr pay 1s linked to longer-
term performance Details of these changes are
set out in this report We also set priorities around
reviewing the levels of remuneration from the
most junior to the most senior employees, and we
continue to monitor this

Activities in 2012
In 2012 the committee met four imes The matters
addressed included

+ Reviewing, and recommending to the board, the
LTIP for the penod 2012-14,

* Recommending the salary, bonus and LTIP
awards for the group chief executive, the
executive directors and certain key executives,

« Rewviewing all incentive schemes in gperation
across W=, with particular reference to sales
tncentives and ensunng the nght behaviour
towards customers at all tmes, including the
payments which may be earned under the
2010-12 LTIP,

= Continuing to ensure that nsk i1s properly
assessed as part of the award of bonuses and
that adjustments are made to reflect any breach
of agreed risk appetites,

s+ Determining the impact of and associated
actions required from relevant remuneration
regulation,

» Reviewing LV="s overall remuneration model
o ensure that it continues to meet all of the
group's employment objectives while taking
account of changing external trends,

» Assessing the impact of the upcoming changes
1o the governance and reporting of executive pay
n listed companies, and determining how the
Society will reflect these changes as a matter
of good practice in Its own governance and
reporting, and

» Reviewing the effectiveness of the committee
and the continuing appropnateness of its terms
of reference
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The Remuneration Commitiee

The responsibilities of the remuneration
committee include determining the broad policy for
remunerating the executive directors and agreeing
the remuneration of each executive director and
other senior managers The committee reviews
remuneration policy and strategy at least once

a year All incentive and bonus schemes are
established and monitored by the committee

Members of the committee are provided with
regular traiming and topical bnefing sessiens on
devetopments and trends in executive remuneration,
particularly as this relates to the financial sector

Committee membership

Durning 2012 the committee members were,

+ Cath Keers {who charred the committeg)

« Dennis Holt

« lan Reynolds (who served until 26 July 2012)

« Mark Austen (who joined the committee from
the same date)

Attendance at committee meetings
and advisors

The group chief executive Is invited to meetings
except when his own remuneration 1s being
discussed Other senior employees, such as the
group chief nsk officer, the human rescurces
director and the group head of reward, regularly
provide advice to the committee and normally
attend meetings by invitation

New Bridge Street (which is a part of Aon pl¢) 1s the
committee’s independent external advisor Dunng
the course of the year, New Bridge Street provided
advice to the committee on remuneration levels and
structures, and attended meetings at the invitation
of the committee Dunng the course of the year, Aon
provided other services to the Society, however, the
committee considers that adequate structures are
In place to ensure the independence of the advice
recewved from New Bndge Street

Seeking the views of members

The committee 15 keen to hear members’
perspective on the Scciety's remuneration

policy and the remuneration decisions which the
committee takes on members’ behalf To this

end, the chairman of the committee conducted

a presentation and feedback session to the
members’ panel iImmediately before the Society’s
2012 AGM, at which a detailed explanation of
remuneration policy and its implementation was
given and there was an opportunity for members to
ask questions We intend to hold a similar session
in the future

In addition, the Drrectors’ Remuneration Report

1s subject to an adwisory vote of members at the
AGM In 2012, the report was approved with 90%
of votes cast being in favour From 2014, two
separate votes will be taken one on the Society's
remuneration policy for directors, and a second
on the implementation of the policy during the
prior year This 15 in ine with upcoming changes in
legislation on executive pay governance that wili
apply to hsted companies and which the Society,
whilst not formally required to do so, proposes to
adopt as a matter of good practice

Remuneration policy

Qur approach to remuneration policy 1s designed
to support recruitment, motivation and retention,
and hence align to our members’ best interests
Remuneration 15 considered in the context of

the financial services sector and our indmidual
businesses OQur objective continues to be to
provide total remuneration packages at the
relevant mid-market level for good performance
{with a significant proportion of total remuneration
dependent upon performance) and top quartile
remuneration for exceptional performance Our
remuneration policy 1s strongly influenced by

good nsk management practice to ensure that
management 1s not incentivised to act in a manner
that 1s prejudicial to the longterm interests of
members This policy for executive directors s
described in more detail below

While we currently remain outside the scope of the
FSA's remuneration code, we keep 1t under regular
review and aspire to follow its spirt

In determining the remuneration of the Society’s
directors, the commuttee takes nto account the
pay arrangements across the Society as a whole
The committee seeks to ensure that the underlying
principles which form the basis for decisions on
directors’ pay are consistent with those on which
reward decisions for all our colleagues are taken

Remuneration policy for

non-executive directors

Fees for the non-executive directors are determined
by the board, based on the responsibility and time
committed to the group's affawrs and appropriate
market compansons Individual non-executive
directors do not take part in discussions regarding
thetr own fees

No other remuneration 1s paid apart from these
non-pensionable fees, except where we reimburse
authorised expenses Non-executive directors’
contracts state that either party can give three
months’ notice of termination

‘ wswadeuepy ysry \ sassauIsng NG l SMATADY pUE SIUSWNELS

SWNoY INQ ‘



Element of pay

Objective

Award level

Performance criteria

Performance period

Base salary

To attract and retain
high performing
individuals to lead
the society

Our policy is to pay salaries at the
mid-markel level for satisfactory
individual performance, in line with
the relevant market for the job.

No performance criteria per

se, but the performance of
the individual is taken into

account when salary levels

are reviewed

N/A

Benefits

To operate a competitive
benefits and pension
structure that provides
adequate protection

to our employees

and aids recruitment
and retention

Car allowance

Medical insurance

Income protection cover
{execulive level only)

Group product discounts, which are

available to all staff and directors
on egual terms,

N/A

Pension *

To provide the facility
for competitive and
viable retirement income

We operate two pension schemes:
a detined benefit pension scheme

(DB) and a defined contribution pension

scheme (DC); executive directors are

eligitle 1o participate in one, depending

on their date of joining LV=.

Employer contributions paid are;
DB scheme — 17.8% of salary
DC scheme — up to 14% of salary

Alternatively an executive director
may choose to receive a cash sum
of up to 22% of salary in lieu of
pension contributions.

Annual bonus

To drive and reward
delivery of near-term
business objectives

Chief executive max: 110%

Board executive directors and other
directors max: 80%

Around half the maximum is paid
for target performance

Evaluation against annual
group and divisional
financial objectives,

nisk metrics and a
balanced scorecard of
personal objectives

1 year performance period

Awards may be partly
deferred {see below) for
up to three further years,
during which time they
remain linked to ongoing
performance

Long-term
incentive plan
(LTIP)

To drive and reward
lenger term business
objectives, including the
value of the society 1o
its members

Chief executive award value:
100% of base salary

Board executive directors award value:

75% of base salary

Other participants below Board
Executive Director: maximum 60%

Growth in Enterprise Value
and relative investment
pertormance of lhe Society

3 year performance period

Two thirds of any resulting
paymeni will be deferred
for up to two further
years. during which time
it remains linked 10
ongoing performance

Executive director's salaries
w.e.f 1 April w.e.f1 April
20172 2013
£508.000 £520.700
£348,500 £355,000
£307.500 £315,000

* With effect from 1 July 2013 we will be closing our final
salary scheme to the build up of future benefits. All existin,
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Remuneration policy for executive
directors

The remuneration of our executive directors
comprises salary, an annual performance bonus,
participation in LTIP with returns based on group
performance, together with a contnbutory pension
and other benefits Bonus and mcentive schemes
are designed to provide a strong alignment of
interest between the individual and the members of
the Society Our executive directors are subject to a
notice period of 12 months

Salary

Salanes are set taking account of several factors
including individual expenence, responsibiities,
function and sector, along with individual and
company performance, they are reviewed (but

not necessarlly increased) each year In order to
provide an external context, the committee reviews
a range of benchmarking information on pay levels
In organisations of comparable size and complexity
to Lv=

Group annual performance bonus
Executive directors are eligible to recewve an annual
non-pensionable performance bonus If they achreve
a number of challenging financial, busmess and
personal objectives These are all hnked to the
achuevernent of qur strategic objectives

For the executive directors, the scheme for 2012
could pay a maximum of 80% of salary {110% 1n the
case of the chief executive) The maximum payment
could only be achieved in the case of exceptional
individual performance and significant divisional
out-performance

Our annual performance bonus scheme rewards
other employees in the same way on the basis
of group results, dwisional results and personal
contnbution A performance plan 15 agreed with
each executive for the performance year using
a balanced scorecard approach, compnising the
following goals
+ strategic and financial
= customer and member

nsk and compliance

people

Risk 1s taken into account when appraising all
performance measures and the committee may
reduce or cancel any bonus payment if it considers
that nsk exceeded acceptable levels Progress and
achievements are monitored at the half year point
and at the end of the year via a formal performance
development review In the case of the CEOQ this 1s
conducted by the chairman of the board with input
from the non-executive directors

Bonus deferral

From 2013 onwards (1 € the annual bonus paid
n respect of 2012 performance), part of an
executive's annual bonus may be required to
he deferred How much deferral 1s required 1s
determined by the overall balance of the total

remuneration package and 1s designed so that

we are in line with FSA's guidelines on deferred
remuneration Whilst the Society does not fall
within the scope of these regulations, it seeks to
adopt these princtples as a matter of best practice

In general, the committee will ensure that at least
40% of the vanable remuneration paid to any
senor employee (including executive directors) I1s
delivered in long-term pay If this ratio 1s not met,
then a portion of the annual bonus payment for
that year will be deferred For employees whose
vanable remuneration 1s £500,000 or more, the
requirement will be that 60% be in long-term pay

Any amount deferred will be paid in equal parts over
the following three years Dunng the deferral peniod,
the value of deferred amounts will be tied to the
value of the with-profits fund, thereby creating a link
to ongoing performance

Long term incentive plan (LTIP)

The Society operates a long-term incentive plan
(LTIP) for senmor employees, which 1s designed to
ensure alignment between reward and the long-
term interests of our members Each LTIP scheme
runs for a three year period, with a new scheme
commencing on 1 January each year

It 1s the role of the committee to approve the
structure of each vear's LTIP, ensuring that it 1s
appropnately designed so as to provide appropnate
incentives to individuals to contrtbute towards the
achievement of the Society’s objectives and, at the
matunty of each scheme, to ensure that outcomes
have not been inappropnately influenced by taking
risks outside the corporate risk appetite

The LTIP is designed to ensure it rewards
performance 1n a manner closely aligned to
members' interests This means payment reflects
our medium and longterm targets to grow
Enterpnse Value, which 1s our estimate of the
market value of the group and 1s the benchmark

by which we measure our long-term performance
For the purposes of the LTIP, the Enterpnse Value
of the group 1s assessed with reference to clearly
defined valuation bases These valuation bases are
reviewed every three years by independent advisers
For any LTIP payments to be made, Enterpnise
Value must grow at a mmimum stipufated annual
growth rate over each year of the scheme, taking
into account the nature of the nsks which the group
undertakes Payments are made after review and
approved by the Remuneration Committee

Membership of the LTIP 1s by invitation of the board
and restncted to those few indwiduals who, by their
roles and position within the group, are best placed
to influence or directly contribute to our longer-term
growth Indwiduals are granted an amount (‘the
award’) at the date of joining the scheme, which

1s calculated as a percentage of therr salary (up

to a maximum of 100% in the case of the group
chief executive)
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Board remuneration — audited Annual remuneration (£ 000} Total remuneration {£,000)
Deferred Other Total Total LTie Total Total
Salary Bonus bonus benefits 2012 2011 201012 2012 2011
Mike Rogers! 505 427 132 127 1,191 1,431 1,431 2,622 2,177
Philip Moore! 346 208 52 55 661 609 732 1,393 609
Richard Rowney! 306 240 - 51 597 568 585 1,182 943
John O'Roarket? 281 220 - a5 546 54 - 546 314
Dennis Holt 153 - - - 153 150 n/a 153 150
Mark Austen 72 - - - 72 68 n/a 72 68
John Edwards 62 - - - 62 58 n/a 62 58
Cath Keers 61 - - - 61 57 n/a 61 57
lan Reynolds? 80 - - - 60 64 n/a 60 64
Caroline Burton?® 56 - - - 56 15 n/a 56 15
James Dean® 22 - - - 22 - n/a 22 -
Gill Nott® - - - - - 28 n/a - 28
1,924 1,095 184 278 3,481 2,802 2,748 6,229 4,483

! Other benefits includes payments In ieu of pension cantnbutions (Mike Rogers £111 000
Philip Mocre £41 00¢ Aichard Rowney £37 000 John O Rearke £31 000)

? Appointed 23 November 2011

3 Resigned 31 October 2012

* Appointed 9 November 2011
& Appainted 26 July 2012
% Resigned 26 May 2011

Long Term Incentive Plan summary of awards and amounts vested — audited

Award Unvested awards at 1 Awards made Addttional value To b paid In respect of Unvested awards at
January 2012 (1) in the year (1) on vesting of 2010-2012 scheme (2} 31 December 2012 (3)
2010-2012 scheme (2)
Mike Rogers 201012 477,000 - 954,000 {(1,431,000) -
201113 477,000 - - - 477,000
2012-14 - 495,000 - - 495,000
Philip Moore 2010-12 244,000 - 488,000 (732,000} -
2011-13 244,000 - - - 244,000
2012-14 - 255,000 - - 255,000
Richard Rowney 2010-12 195,000 - 390,000 {585,000) -
2011-13 212,000 - - - 212,000
201214 - 225,000 - - 225,000

1 Unvested awards are shown at the base award level Unvested awards at 1 January 2012 are
1n respect of awards granted w 2010 and 2011

2 For the 2010-2012 LTIP scheme growth in Enterprise Value and investment performance both
exceaded the “above benchmark” targets and accordingly the amounts paid to parucipating
employees were at the maximum levet 1 e in aggregate three times the base award)

The amount paid depends on the group's performance against
our Enterprise Value targets and also on investment performance,
with a maximum achievable payout of three times the award In
determiming whether Enterprise Value targets have been achieved,
the Remuneration Committee may, where appropnate, make
positive or negative adjustments for the financial impacts of any
management actions which affect the calculation of the Enterpnise
Value, to ensure that the calculation 1s fully aligned to the interest
of members For some LTIP scheme participants, a proportion of
any payment 15 hnked to the group's investment performance

For this portion to produce a maximum payment, an average
outperformance of the relevant benchmark of at least 0 6% per
annum must be achieved

Dunng the course of 2012, the committee made a number

of changes to the structure of the LTIP which are intended to

strengthen the alignment with members’ interests and reinforce

the link to the Society's underlying financial strength For the

2013 cycle, the following changes will apply

» No payment will be made unless a mutual bonus 15 also pard
In that year (any amounts earned in a year in which no mutual
honus 1s paid would be deferred until such time as a bonus
was paud),

« No payment will be made unless the Society 1s operating at
least at a threshold leve! of capital adequacy n that year, and

* For semor participants in the LTIP {including the exectutive
directors) payment of any resulting award will be made one
third after the three year penod, one third after a further year of
deferral and the final third after two years further deferral, the

3 Unvested awards at 31 December 2012 are in raspect of awards granted in 2011 and 2012
4 John O Roarke did not participate in the LTIP schemes summarised above

value of any deferral will be directly linked during the deferral
peried to the value of the Society's with-profits funds

Additionalty from 2013 onwards, the maximum payout under the LTIP
scheme will reduce from three times the award value to two times

Neither the annual bonus nor the LTIP are contractual
entitlements of those potentially ehgible to participate in them

Both annual performance honuses paid and/or deferred and
LTIP payments are subject to claw-back in the event of any
matenal misstatement (including where significant losses
subsequently emerge which were not recorded at the time} or
gross misconduct

Pensions and other benefits

Since 1 January 2010 we have provided a defined contribution
pension scheme for new employees where we contribute twice the
amount contnbuted by each employee within a range of employee
contributions from a mimmum of 3% to a maximum of 7% of
salary Previously we offered a final salary scheme, although now
closed to new members, existing members continued to accrue
benefits in this scheme

With effect from 1 July 2013 we will be closing our final salary
scheme to the build up of future benefits All existing final salary
scheme members will have the option to move into our defined
contrnbution pension scheme from that date
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Remuneration during 2012 LTIP cycles currently in progress

The remuneration of individual directors, including ¢ The schemes which started on 1 January 2011

that of the charrman and highest paid director, 1s and 2012 require a minimum of 9% per annum

detarled on page 48 growth in the Enterpnise Value of the business

units to be achieved by 31 December 2013 and

: Annual bonus 2012 2014 respectively For some participants, these

During 2012, the group significantly exceeded schemes also require an above benchmark

many of its financial performance targets, whilst return on tnvestment performance of 60 basis

continuing to grow the business and delivering points per annum These schemes are still

on our major promises and commitments to our open and have 56 and 79 remaiming

members The committee determined that the participants respectively

bonuses for the executive directors should therefore =  For the schemes which started on 1 january

be at 110% for the chief executive, 75% for the 2011 and 1 January 2012, if the performance

finance director, 78% for the MD, Life Insurance, conditions are met these would pay out between

78% for the MD, General Insurance £2 2 mullion and £8 8 milhon and £2 8 million

and £11 3 milhon respectively, dependmng

LTIP payments in 2012 on performance

The LTIP scheme which started on 1 January 2010 + The amount charged to comprehensive income in

required annual growth In total of the business units 2012 n respect off all open LTIP schemes was

Enterpnse Value of between 9% and 20% per annum £8 6 million {2011 £7 3 mullion)

over the three year penod ending 31 December » The estimated costs of any expected awards

2012 For some LTIP scheme participants an above under the schemes are charged as expenses

benchmark return on mvestment performance of 60 in equal instalments over the three year

basis points per annum was also required [t has performance perod concerned

been determined that these hurdies were
exceeded and accordingly a maximum payout
of £7 5 mithon {excluding empioyer’s national
Insurance contrbutions) has been distributed
among 47 participants

Long Term Ingcentive Plans —- performance of current schemes
The tables below summanse the performance targets of the LTIP Scheme awards granted in 2010,
2011 and 2012 together with performance from the start of each Scheme to 31 December 2012

Performance targets

Level of award Enterprise Vatua Growth (3) Relative Investment Performancs (2)
Minimum {75% of base award) 9% 0 basls points
Maximum (300% of base award) 20% 260 basls points

Cumulative performance versus target

LTIP Seheme Enterprise Vatpo Growth {3) Investment Performance (4)
2010-2012 LTIP Scheme (started 1 January 2010) 29 5% +117 basis points
2011 2013 LTIP Scheme (started 1 January 2011) 16 2% +50 basis points
2012-2014 LTIP Scheme (started 1 January 2012) 22.1% +142 basls points

For Scheme participants measured on Investment performance, 75% of therr initial award 1s based
on Enterpnise Value performance and 25% on Relative Investment Performance

1 Annualised growth in SBU Enterprise Value

2 Annualised imvestment performance retum relative to benchmark return

3 Annualised growth in Enterprise Valu¢ from start of Scheme to 31 December 2012

4 Annualised performance raturm redative to beachmark from start of Scheme to 31 December 2012

] 1U3lu38?u‘!w sty ] sassautsnyg o ‘ SMILATY PUE SIUSUWNIG

Directors’ loans
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011
there were no loans outstanding from directors

The directors approved the Directors' Report on
Remuneration on 27 March 2013

=

Cath Keers
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Glossary

ABI- Association of British Insurers
AFS: Association of Friendly Societies

Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) A measure
commonly used to calculate and compare the size
of a life company It 1s calculated by adding the total
annual premiums receved and 10% of all single
premiums received In the year

Asset shares: Asset shares reflect the amount

of money paid into with-profits policies by way of
premiums and investment returns, less the costs of
administenng those policies

Assoclation of Financlal Mutuals (AFM) The trade
body that represents mutual insurers, Fnendly
Societies and other financial mutuals in the UK

It was formed 1n January 2010 after a merger

of the Association of Fniendly Societies and the
Association of Mutual Insurers

Capital resources The amount of capital that we
have to run our business

Enterprise Value' As LV= s not quoted on the
stockmarket, Enterpnse Value 1S cur measure

of the market value of the business Any rise or
fall in Enterprise Value will also tell us if we are
growing member value A complex formula 1S used
to calculate our Enterpnse Value, and the figure 1s
independently verfied every three years

Friendly Society Friendly Societies were set

up In the 19th century to help and encourage
underprivileged people to improve their financial
welibeing As they are mutuals, Friendly Societies
are owned by members rather than shareholders

FSA The Financial Services Authority regulates the
financial services industry in the UK

FTSE FTSE i1s an independent company that
provides indices to measure how stockmarkets and
other financial markets perform In the UK, the FTSE
100 index 15 widely used by the media to report on
the valuation of the largest 100 quoted comparnes
on the UK Stock Exchange

Heritage business Principally, the Socrety’s with-
profit policies, together with the policies acquired
from RNPFN

GWP: Gross written premiums

ICA Indwidual capital assessment 1S the process by
which the Financial Services Authonty (FSA) requires
insurance companies to make an assessment of
the regulated company’s own capital requirements,
which 1s then reviewed and agreed by the FSA

IFRS: International Financial Reporting Standards
are used to ensure a company s reperted accounts
are prepared to common standards across

the world

ILAG* Investment and Life Assurance Group

Industrial branch: Part of our heritage business and
typically contains small premium whole of hife and
endowment policies

Mutual A business that 1s owned by its members
rather than by shareholders

Mutual bonus A discretionary enhancement to
asset shares to share the resuits of the group's
performance

OEICs: Open-Ended Investment Companies are
investrnent funds similar to investment trusts

They are open-ended because they can take money
from new investors at any time Equally they can
pay back investors whenever the investor chooses
OEICs often adopt an umbrella structure where the
Investor can get access through the umbrella fund
to a number of sub-funds which invest with different
objectives

Ordinary branch: Part of our hertage business
and typically consists of traditional with-profits
endowments, whole of life policies, annuities
and pensions

Pension annuity An annuity uses the proceeds of a
pension fund to provide an income for a fixed term
or the rest of your life

Penodic payment orders (PPOs) An annuity style
award paid to claimants mnstead of a lump sum,
where indexed payments can be varied to meet
likely future changes in circumstance This transfers
mortahty and investment nsk from the claimant to
the insurer

PHI Permanent Health Insurance 1S an insurance
policy paying benefits to policyholders who are
incapacitated and hence unable to work due to
Mness or accident
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Protection A policy providing a cash sum on the
death or cnitical iliness of the hfe assured

PVIF Present value of acquired inforce business
occurs when a life iInsurance company makes an
acquisttion Part of the purchase price represents
the value of the insurance contracts in the target
company This i1s in effect, the present value of the
polictes acquired

RCM. Risk capital margin 1s the additional caprtal
a firm would need to hold to cover the effects of

a number of ‘What If ?' scenarios that have been
prescribed by the FSA These scenarios assess the
capital tmplications from combined movements in
financial markets (equity, property, credit spreads,
interest rates} and persistency of the business
The RCM 15 the capital required to cover the worst
case scenario

Retall Distribution Review {(RDR) A fundamental
review by the FSA designed to help address insufficient
trust and confidence n financiat services products and
services In particular, it 1s intended to dnve increased
professionalism in the tied and independent financial
advice areas and will change the way that financial
advice 1s orgamised and pad for

RNPFN Royal National Pension Fund For Nurses

Risk appetite’ The amount of risk that a business
15 prepared to accept or keep when carrying out its
everyday activities

Self Invested Personal Pension (SIPP) Unike
normal personal pension plans, where the pension
company limits your choice of investments to

those that it manages, SIPPs allow investors the
opportunity to make their own investment decisions

SME Small, Medium Enterprises - within the
commercial ine of the general insurance business

Solvency ll. An EU-wide project that sets out

to provide a comprehensive new framework for
insurance supervision and regulation This aims to
strengthen protection for policyholders by ensuring
that companies allocate enough capital to cover all
the nsks in their business

Strateglc business unit ($BU) LV=1s made up of
two business units (Life and General Insurance),
each of which focuses on prefitably delivering a
specific part of our overall group business plan

Threadneedle Asset Management (TAM)

A leading international investment rmanager with
a strong track record of outperformance across
asset classes

TCF Treatng Customers Farrly 1s an industry-wide
initiative designed to ensure financial providers
meet basic pnnciples of product information,
suitabihty and performance

UK Corporate Governance Code: The Code sets out
standards of good practice for hsted companies

It covers, amongst other things, the board
composition and its accountabihty and relations with
business owners Mutual organisations such as LV=
do not have to adhere to the Code, but we choose
to comply with the Annotated Code as published by
the AFM as we believe 1t 1s good business practice
to do s0

Unallocated divisible surplus (UDS) The amounts
that have yet to be formally declared as bonuses
for participating policyholders together with the free
assets of the group

Underlying operating profit The operating profit
before one-off tems such as basis and methodology
changes, short-term investment fluctuations and
amortisation of intangibles

With-profits fund An investment fund where we
combune all of our with-profits investors’ money and
manage 1t on ther behalf The fund normally mvests
in UK and overseas shares, fixed interest secunties
including Government stocks and bonds, property,
cash, and our own business activities We regularly
monitor where we invest the fund to take account of
future habilities
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Independent
auditors’ report to the
members of Liverpool
Victoria Friendly
Society Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Liverpocl Victona
Friendly Society Limited for the year ended 31 December 2012
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the related notes for the Society and the Group The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in thewr preparation 1s
applicable taw and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of the Board of Directors
and auditors

As explained more fully in the Responsibities of the Board of
Directors for the financial statements set out on page 39, the Board
of Directors I1s responsible for preparing financial statements which
gwve a true and fair view The Society has also chosen to comply
with the Annotated UK Corporate Governance Code specified by

the Association of Financial Mutuals Qur responsibility 1s to audrt
and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethica! Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the Society’s members as a body 1n accordance with the Friendly
Societies Act 1992 and the Regulations made under it and for

no other purpose We do not, in giving these opmions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropnate to the Group’s and Society’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
Board of Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and nen-financial
information in the Report and Financial Statements to identfy
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements

If we become aware of any apparent materal mrisstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

® pwve a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union, of the state of the Society's and the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of the income and
expenditure and cash flows of the Society and the Group for the
year then ended, and

& have been properly prepared In accordance with the Friendly
Societies Act 1992

Opinion cn other matters prescrnbed by the Fniendly
Societies Act 1992

In our opinion the Directors' Report has been prepared in
accordance with the Fnendly Societies Act 1992 and the
regulations made under 1it, and the information given therein 1s
consistent with the financial statements for the financial year

Matters on which we are required

to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

where the Friendly Societies Act 1992 requires us to report to you

If, In our opinion

& proper accounting records have not been kept, or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records, or

» we have not received all the infformation and explanations and
access to documents that we require for our audit

tn accordance with our instructions from the Society we
review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects
the Society’s comphiance with the eight provisions of the
Annotated UK Corporate Governance Code specified by the
Association of Financial Mutuals We have nothing to report
in respect of this review

David Roper

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCooepers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

27 March 2013
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2012

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated see
Note 1

Notes £m im £m £m

Gross earned premiums 4 24462 21965 9591 8628
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 4 {108 8) (93 0} {75 6} (99 7)
Net earned premlums 4 2,3374 21035 8835 763 1
Fee and commission income 6 165 185 66 52
Investment income 7 3202 261 2 3370 2849
Net gams on investments 8 3747 425 4 2141 3729
Other income 9 417 510 59 191
Total Income 3,0905 28598 1,4471 14452
Gross benefits and claims 10 {1,819 3) (1,669 3) (646 8) (657 3)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 10 1108 86 4 618 1024
Net benefits and claims 10 (1,708 5) (1,582 9) {584 8) (5549)
Gross change in long-term contract habilities 22 {711 3) (771 6) (7148) (773 4)
Change in long-term contract habilities ceded to reinsurers 22 74 4 96 0 74 4 71
Net change In contract ilabilitles 22 {636 9) (675 6) (640 4} (766 3)
Finance costs 11 (0 5) (05) - -
Investment return allocated to external unit holders (32 9) 21 - -
Other operating and administrative expenses 12 {608 §) (619 8) (2186) (1717}
Other expenses {641 9) (618 2) (2186) (171 7)
Total benefits, ¢claims and expenses (2,9873) (28767 {1,443 8) (1,492 9)
Profit/(loss) before tax and mutual bonus 103 2 (16 9) 33 (47 7)
Mutual bonus 14 (20 9) (18 B) {20 9) (18 6}
Income tax expense 34 (34 3) (42 2) {13 4) {26 9}
Pension scheme actuanal (losses)/gains net of tax 39 (145 5) 697 {145 5) 697
Transfer from the Unallocated divisible surplus 46 975 80 1765 235

Total comprehenslve Income for the year

As a Friendly Society, ali net earnings are for the benefit of participating policyholders and are camed forward within the Unallocated

dwvisible surplus Accordingly, there 1s no profit for the year shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Group and the Society have not presented a Statement of Changes in Equity as there are no equity holders in either the Group or

Society as the Society 18 @ mutual organisatton
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2012

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated Restated
see Note 1 see Note 1
Notes £m im £m im
Assets
Intangible assets 26 2519 2615 - 46
Deferred acquisition costs 23 1001 947 - -
Pensicn benefit asset 39 - 1081 - 108 1
Property and equipment 27 239 2086 69 50
investment properties 28 164 7 2199 131 7 151 4
Investments In group undertakings 29 - - 9023 957 6
Corporation tax asset 35 - - 20 -
Deferred tax asset 36 14 2 310 130 177
Prepayments and accrued income 31 106 6 613 64 3 481
Financial assets
— Fair value through income 15 94841 8,0203 7,058 9 6,016 1
— Denvative financial instruments 16 708 143 8 68 5 143 8
Loans and other receivables 19 103 0 1160 128 6 154 9
Remnsurance assets 24 447 2 3369 297.4 2230
Insurance receivables 30 2273 216 5 126 102
Cash and cash equivalents 436 6 7191 123 3 2834
Total assets 11,4304 10,3497 8,805 8,1239
Llabilities
Unallocated dmisible surplus 46 860 9 958 4 878.6 10551
Insurance contract liabilities 21 8,6574 71,7480 6,603.3 59462
Investment contract liabilities 17 959 3 8009 959.3 8009
Net asset value attnibutable o external unit holders 5039 4291 - -
Pension benefit obligation 39 102 12 102 12
Provisions 40 66 0 555 631 520
Corparation tax latality a7y 76 28 4 - 130
Financial habilities
- Denvative financial instruments 16 512 38 512 38
- Other financial llabilities 20 755 772 814 727
Insurance payables 32 47 416 262 3186
Trade and other payables 33 193 7 20586 136 2 147 4
Total liabilities 11,4304 10,3497 8,809.5 8,1239

The financial statements on page 55 to 125 were approved by the Board of Directors en 27 March 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

RS Small
Secretary
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2012

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated Restated
see Note 1 see Mote 1
Notes £m im Em £m
Cash and cash equlvalents at 1 lanuary 7191 547 4 283 4 2890
Cash flows arising from
Operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 50 4118 414 4 2725 1405
Net increase in investments held at fair value through income (985 Q) (582 9) (7120 6) (497 2)
Purchase of investment properties 02) (12 5} (02) (29)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 54 2 106 1 187 96 2
Dmdend income received 961 1195 1652 1520
Interest and other income receved 1804 137 0 150 9 1234
Rental income on Investment properties 61 73 65 71
finance cost paid 11 {05) (0 5) - -
Income tax paid {38 3) (13 6) (23 7) (13 6)
Net cash flows (used m)/generated from operating activives {275 4) 1748 {130 7) 55
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment {01) - - -
Increase n investment in group undertakings - - (451) (152}
Redemption of lcans to subsidianes - - 130 -
Repayment n long—term loan from subsidiary - - 58 45
Purchase of property and equipment 27 (70) (31) (31) (0 4)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from irwesting activities (71) 31 {(294) (111 \
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {282 5) 1717 {160.1) 56) |
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 436 6 719 1 123 3 283 4 ‘
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Bank balances 98 0 1566 9 224 107 5
Short-term bank deposits 3386 562 2 1009 1759
436 6 7191 123 3 283 4

The Group classifies the cash flows for the acquisition and disposal of financial assets as operating cash flows, as the purchases are
| funded from the cash flows associated with the angination of insurance and investment contracts
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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2012

Significant accounting policies

This section descnbes the LV= Group’s significant accounting
policles and accounting estimates that relate to the financial
statements and notes as a whole If an accounting polley or an
accounting estimate relates to a specific note, the applicable
accounting pelicy and/or accounting estimate 1s contained
within the relevant note

1. Significant accounting policies

1.1 Basis of presentation

The Group financial statements consoldate the results of

the Society and its subsidiary comparies The Group's and
Society’s financial statements conform to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations 1ssued by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as published by the International
Accounting Standards Board and adopted by the European Union
In addition the Society's financial statements comply with the
Friendly Societies (Accounts & Related Provisions) Regulations
1994 {the Regutations)

In accordance with IFRS 4 on Insurance Contracts, the Group has
applied existing accounting practices for insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts modified as appropnate to
comply with the IFRS framework and applicable standards
Further detalls are given in accounting policy 1 3b below

Insurance contracts are accounted for 1n accordance with the
Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Association

of British Insurers in December 2005, and amended 1in December
2006 In certain businesses, the accounting policies or accounting
estimates have been changed, to measure designated insurance
liabilities using current market interest rates and allowing for other
changes to regulatory reporting practices The Group measures
the liability on insurance and with-profit contracts in line with the
‘reahistic’ reporting regime of the Financial Services Authonty
(FSA)} More detall on the valuation of insurance and investment
contracts 1s given in the accounting policies disclosed within
Notes 17 and 21

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal
cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and financial assets and hiabiiities (including
derivatives) at fair value through income

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consohdated financial statements are set out below
These policies have been consistently apphed to all years
presented, unless otherwise stated

After making enguines, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
In operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group
therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
its consolidated financial statements

Restatements

The Statement of Comprehensive Income has been restated to
reclassify interest on foans secured on residential property from
Fee and commission income to Investment income

The Statermnent of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flows
have been restated to gross up Bank balances and Other financial
habilities to reflect cash collateral received

1 2 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS
requires the use of estmates [t also requires management to
exercise Judgement in applying the accounting policies The key
areas involving a high degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions are significant to the financial statements are
highlighted under the relevant note

Significant accounting estimates and judgements are disclosed in

o Farr value of financial assets {Note 15)

e Insurance contract habilities (Note 21}

» Goodwill and intangible assets {(Note 26)

s Pension benefit asset/(obligation) (Note 39)

1.3 Accounting policies

a. Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entties, including Open Ended Investment
Companies (OEICs), over which the Group (directly or indirectly)
has the power to govern the financial and operating polictes
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights The existence and effect of potential voting nghts
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity Substdianes
are fully consoldated from the date on which control 1s transferred
to the Group using uniform accountmg policies consistently
apphed across the Group They are excluded from consolidation
from the date on which control ceases

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to account

for the acquisition of subsidiaries Accordingly, the cost of an
acquisition 1s measured as the fair value of the cash or other

assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and habtlities incurred or
assumed at the date control passes ldentifiable assets acquired,
habihttes and contingent habihties assumed In a business
combination are measured initially at ther farr values at the
acguisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the ‘
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded

as goodwill If the cost of acquisition 15 less than the fair value

of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s ‘
recognised directly In the Statement of Comprehensive Income for
the period ‘

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on ‘
intra-group transactions age eliminated on consolidation

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction ‘
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Where the Group Invests in specialised investment vehicles

(such as OEICs) and owns greater than 50% of the unit
shareholding, they are consolidated The interests of other parties
in these vehicles will be classified as liabilities and appear as
‘Net asset value attnbutable to external unit holders’ because
they are puttable instruments The external unit holders share

of the net investment return on the OEICs 15 charged or credited
to the Statement of Comprehensive tncome as investment return
allocated to external unit holders

Details of the Society’'s pnncipal subsidiares are given in Note 43 ‘
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Notes to the Financial Statements continues

31 December 2012

1. Significant accounting policles (continued)

Assocliates and Joint ventures in property holding companies
The Group invests in assoctate companies and jointly controiled
entities that hold investment properties, with holdings ranging
between 25% and 99%

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts

The investments 1n associates and the Group's interests In jointly
controlled entities have not been consolidated under the equity
method but are designated as investments at fair value through
income under UK unlisted investments in accordance with the
exemptions permitted under IAS 28 and IAS 31 applicable to
investmentlinked insurance funds

h Contract classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance nsk, financiat
nsk or both

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant
insurance nsk Such contracts may also transfer financial risk

As a general gurdeline, the Group defines as significant insurance
nsk the posstbility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of
an insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits
payable If the insured event did not oceur

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial
nsk with no significant insurance risk

Al participating contracts have been classified as participating
Insurance contracts as these contracts entitle the holder to
receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional
benefits or bonuses

e that are likely to be a sigmficant portion of the total
contractual benefits,
¢ whose amount or ttming 1s contractually at the discretion
of the Group, and
s that are contractually based on
1) the performance of a specified pool of contracts
or a specified type of contract,
1) realised and/or unrealised investment returns on
a specified poo! of assets held by the fund, or
m} the unallocated surplus of the fund that issues the contract

¢ Forelgn currencies

Monetary assets and habihittes denorminated in foreign currencies
are translated to sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the year Purchases and sales of investments denominated

In foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailling at the
dates of the transactions Exchange gains and losses are dealt
with in that part of the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
which the underlying transaction is reported

d Financial assets and liabilities

Recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets and habilities vpon inittal
recognition into the following categones

¢ Financial assets and habilities at fair value through income

¢ Denvative financial instruments

® Loans and receivables

* QOther financial iabilities

The accounting policy for each type of financial asset or hability 1s
included within the relevant note for the category

Derecognition
A financial asset 1s derecognised when
s the nghts to recewve cash flows from the asset have expired, or
s the Group has transferred its nghts to recewve cash flows from
the asset and has
- transferred the nsks and rewards of the asset, or
- has transferred control of the asset

A financial hability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the
habihty 18 discharged or cancelled or expires

e Liability adequacy testing

Insurance and participating Investment contract liabllitles

At each reporting date, an assessment 1s made of whether the
recogmised long-term contract habihties are adequate, using
current estimates of future cash flows If that assessment shows
that the carrying amount of the lilabiities (less related assets)

1s insufficient i ight of the estimated future cash flows, the
deficiency 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income by setting up an additional hability

General Insurance

At each Statement of Financial Position date hability adequacy
tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance contract
liabihties, net of related deferred acquisition costs In performing
these tests current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and ctaims handling and adrmunisiration expenses as weil
as investment income from the assets backing such habilittes are
used Any deficiency 1s immediately charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income initially by wnting off deferred acquisition
costs and by subsequently establishing an unexpired nsk
provision Any deferred acquisition cost wntten off as a result of
this test cannot subsequently be renstated

f Impairment of non-financlal assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwili,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually

for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation or
depreciation are reviewed for imparrment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiabie cash flows
(cash-generating units)

Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered imparment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the mpairment at each
reporting date

g Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at bank and in hand,
and shortterm deposits with an onginal matunty of three months
or less

for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents are as defined above but are shown net of
outstanding bank overdrafts
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1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

1.4 Changes and future developments in accounting policles

(1) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective

for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after

1 January 2012, that would be expected to have a matenal impact
on the Group

{i) New standards and Interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginming after

1 January 2013, and have not been apphed in preparing these
consolidated financial statements None of these 15 expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below

Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’ regarding
other comprehensive income The main change resulting from
these amendments 1S a reguirement for entities to group items
presented in other comprehensive income’ (OCH) on the basis

of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (rectassification adjustments) The amendments

do not address which items are presented in OCI

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise defimtion of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements, which are
largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP do not extend the use
of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how 1t should be
applied where 1ts use 15 already required or permitted by other
standards within IFRSs or US GAAP

IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’, was amended in June 2011

The impact on the Scciety will be as follows to immediately
recognise all past service costs, and to replace interest cost and
expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that
is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit lability (asset} The Group IS yet to assess the full
impact of the amendments

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities IFRS 9 was 1ssued in Novernber 2009 and October
2010 It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS @ requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories those measured as at far value

and those measured at amortised cost The determination ts
made at initial recognition The classification depends on the
entity’s business model! for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the mstrument
For financial habilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39
requirements The main change s that, in cases where the farr
value option 1s taken for financial hatihties, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit nsk 1s recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless

this creates an accounting mismatch The Group 15 yet to assess
IFRS 9's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the
accounting period beginming on or after 1 January 2015, subject to
endorsement by the EU The Group will also consider the impact of
the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the Board

IFRS 10, "Consolidated financial statements’, builds on

existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within
the consolidated financial statements of the parent company

The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the
determination of control where this i1s difficuft to assess The
Group 1S yet to assess IFRS 10 s full impact and intends to adopt
IFRS 10 no later than the accounting penod beginning on or after
1 january 2013, subject to endorsement by the EU

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’, includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including roint arrangements, associates, spectal purpose vehicles
and other off balance sheet vehicles The Group 15 yet to assess
IFRS 12°s full iImpact and intends to adopt IFRS 12 no later than
the accounting period beginming on or after 1 January 2013,
subject to endorsement by the EU

IAS 27 (revised) 'Separate financial statements’, 1ssued in May
2011 This standard includes the provisions on separate financra!
statements that are left after the control provisions of 1AS 27 have
been Included in the new IFRS 10 The Group 15 yet to assess the
full impact of the amendments and intends {o adopt the amended
IAS 27 no later than the accounting period beginning on or after

1 January 2013

IAS 28 (revised) ‘Investments In associates and joint ventures’,
1ssued In May 2011 This standard includes the requirements

for joint ventures, as well as associates, to be equity accounted
following the tssue of IFRS 11 The Group is yet to assess the full
impact of the amendments and intends to adopt the amended IAS
28 no later than the accounting pernod beginning on or after

1 lanuary 2013

IFRS 11 ‘Jownt arrangements , 1ssued in May 2011 This standard
provides for a more realistic reflection of joint arrangements by
focusing on the rights and obligations of the arrangement, rather
than 1ts {egal form There are two types of joint arrangements
Joint operations and joint ventures Joint operations arise where
a joint operator has nghts to the assets and obligations relating
to the arrangement and hence accounts for its interest in assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses Joint ventures arise where the
Joint operator has nights to the net assets of the arrangement and
hence equity accounts for its interest Proportional consohdation
of joint ventures 15 no longer allowed The Group 1s yet to assess
IFRS 11 s full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 11 no later than
the accounting pernod beginning on or after 1 January 2013

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not
yet effective that would be expected to have a matenal impact
on the Group
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Capital and risk management

This section details the capital and risk management approach of the Society and Group The Group seeks to create value for its
members by maintaining an appropriate balance between the capital available to support nsk and the level and type of risk it takes
on in order to achleve returns The risk appetite for each type of principal risk is set based on the amount necessary to meet the
FSA's capital requirements

2. Capital management
The Socrety retains capital within its Unallocated divisible surplus to meet the key objectives

(1) To ensure financial stability and to support the nsks it takes on as part of its business,

{n} To enable the Group's strategy t¢ be implemented,

{1} To gve confidence to policyholders and other stakeholders who have relationships with the Group, and
(1v) To comply with capital requirements imposed by its UK regulator, the FSA

At least annually, these objectives are reviewed and benchmarks are set by which to judge the adequacy of the Group's capital

The capital position 1s momtored against those benchmarks to ensure that sufficient capital 1s available to the Group In the event that
sufficient capital I1s not available, actions would be taken either to raise additional capital or to reduce the amount of nsk accepted thereby
reducing the capital requirement through, for example, reinsurance, reducing business volumes or a change In nvestment strategy

The Group complied with all externally imposed capital requirements to which it was subject throughout the reporting period

Capital statement
The tables below set out the capital resources available to the indwvidual life funds and other actvities of the Group

Reconciliation of Available Capital Resources
The following table reconciles the Unallocated divisible surplus presented In the Statement of Financial Position and total available
capital resources calculated on a regulatory basis

2012 2011

£m £m

Unallocated divisible surpius 878 6 10551
Regulatory adjustments

- Adjustment to reserves to realistic basis 3551 196 6

- Adjustment to cost of investment in subsidianes (note 1) {319 8) (362 1)

- Inadmissible assets (note 2) (13 2) (130 4)

900 7 759 2

RNPFN Fund not available to the Group {(note 3) 1795 164 5

Total Available Capital Resources 1,080 2 9237

Notes

1 Represents the difference between the cost of iInvestment in subsidianes and the value for regulatory purposes net
of the capita! requirement

2 Inadmissible assets include pension scheme, deferred tax and goodwill

3 RNPFN denotes Royal Nationa! Pension Fund for Nurses, which i1s a ning-fenced fund The free assets attributable to this fund are
reported as insurance contract habilities of the Society

Movements in capital are analysed below

2012 2011

m £m

Capntal at 1 January 923 7 1,050 9
Effect of investment vanations 1992 239
Effect of changes in market conditions (52 6) {2 5)
Effect of changes tn assumptions 166 3 (13 9}
New business (128 6} (94 3}
Other {27 8) (33 4)
Caplital as at 31 December 1,080 2 9237
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2. Capital management (continued)

2012 2011
Regulatory Capital £m £m
Admissible assets 7,865 7 71859
Add back capital requirements of regulated related undertakings 2539 241 5
Mathematical reserves (after distibution of surplus) {6,686 0) (6,1231)
Regulatory current habilities {353 4) (380 6)
Available capital resources 1,080 2 9237
Capital requirements of regulated related undertakings {253 9) {241 5)
Capital resources of RNPFN fund (179 5) (164 4)
Peak 1 capital requirement (239 6) {218 0)
Peak 1 excess regulatory capital (excluding RNPFN surplus) 407 2 209 8
With-profits insurance capital component (220 8) {64 6)
Peak 2 excess capltal resources (excluding RNPFN sutplus} 186 4 2352

The RNPFN fund's capital is available to support the RNPFN participating contract fund only It 1s comfortably in excess of the required capital margin
and, therefore, the Society i1s not required to provide further capital support to this business

Available capital - Long-term insurance contracts

For the long-term insurance contract funds the Group I1s required to hold sufficient capita! to meet the FSA capital requirements based on the
risk capital margin (RCM) determined in accordance with the FSA's regulatory rules under its realistic capital regime together with the Indwduat
Capital Assessment {ICA) which takes into account certain business nsks not reflected in the RCM The determination of the RCM depends on
various actuanal and other assumptions about potential changes in market prices, future operating experence and the actions management
would take in the event of particular adverse changes in market conditions

Management intends to maintain surplus capital In excess of the RCM and ICA to meet the FSA's total requirements and to maintain an
appropnate additional margin over this to absorb changes 1n both capital and capital requirements

i} Participating Insurance contracts

For the Group s participating contract {with-profits) funds the available capital i1s determined in aceordance with the ‘realistic balance sheet
regime prescribed by the FSA's regulations under which hiabilities to policyholders include both declared bonuses and the constructive obligation
for future bonuses not yet declared The available capital resources include an estimate of the value of therr respective estates, which i1s the
surplus In the fund in excess of any constructive obligations to policyhelders The unallocated capital represents the capitat resources of the
individual participating contract fund to which it relates and 1s availlable to meet regulatory and other solvency requirements of the fund For these
participating contract funds the labilities included in the Statement of Financial Position comprise only amaunts relating to policyholders

il Non participating insurance contracts
For non participating business the relevant capital requirement 1s the minimum solvency requirement determined in accordance with FSA
regulations For this business a lower capital surplus 1s targeted by management since the capital requirement Is less subject to fluctuation and

the capital amount 15 after deducting habilittes that include additional prudential margins
\

The other activities of the Group have total available capital which 1s significantly higher than the minimum requirements established by the FSA ‘
for each of the regulated entiies and, \n principle, the excess 1s avallable to the Society In practice, higher levels of capital are held within each
business operation to provide appropriate cover for nisk and new business growth ‘

All avatlable capital within LVFS I1s ultimately avallable to support the Society's participating contract fund However the available capital resources

of each regulated entity are generally subject to restriciions as ta therr availability to meet requirements that may anse elsewhere in the Group ‘
For other non parugipating funds, the available surplus held in the fund Is attnbutable to Society policyholders and, subject to meeting the
regulatory requirements of these businesses, this capital 1s available to meet requirements elsewhere in the Group ‘

Sensitivity of long-term Insurance contract llabilities

Long-term insurance contract habilities are sensitive to changes in market conditions and other assumptions which have been factored into their ‘
calculation, such as mortahty or persistency rates In some cases allowance 1s also made when calculating habilities for the effect of management
and/or policyholder actions in different economic conditions on future assumptions such as asset mix, bonus rates and surrender values

Market conditions — assumptions are made about investment returns and interest rates when valuing liabihties Any adverse change in either
vanable may have the effect of reducing available capital as they may also impact corresponding asset valuations ‘

Assumptions - long-term trend differences in mortality, morbidity, expense or persistency rates will result in the need {0 change assumptions
This may require a strengthening or release of reserves Depending on policy type this sensitivity will differ, for example a change in mortality
rates will have a different impact for annuity contract liabilities when compared to term assurance llabiliies In addition to persistency,
assumptions are made about policyholders' behaviour in relation to guarantees and options In turn these assumptions are sensitive to both
investment return and interest rates

Further disclosure of the impact on the Unallocated dmwisible surplus from sensitivity analysis is provided in Note 3 Risk management and control
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2. Capital management (continued)
Financial guarantees and aoptlons

a) Participating insurance contracts
As a normal part of operating activities, the Society has given guarantees and options, including interest rate guarantees, tn respect of certain
long-term insurance contracts

Provision 1s made for such guarantees and options within the FSA realistic labilities of the Group $ participating insurance contract funds Under
the FSA's rules these must be measured at fair value using market consistent stochastic models A stochastic approach includes measurning the
time value of guarantees and options, which represents the additional cost ansing from uncertainty surrounding future economic conditions The
time value 15 evaluated by projecting a large number of possibie future outcomes under a wide range of economic scenanos, for example possible
outcomes for interest rates and equity returns  These realistic habilities have been included within the Statement of Financial Position

The matenal guarantees and options in the participating insurance contract funds are

1) Guaranteed annuity options - the RNPFN participating insurance contract fund has written indwidual pensions which contain guaranteed annuity
rate options (GAQs), where the policyholder has the option to take the benefits from a policy in the form of an annuity based on guaranteed
conversion rates

i1y Matunty value guarantees - many of the Group's participating insurance contracts have mirimum matunity values reflecting the sums assured
plus declared annual bonus

) Money-back guarantees - some of the pohcies wntten within the Group provide a guarantee or option to pay out all the premwums paid In {at a
certain point In time)

b} Non participating insurance contracts

The Group has also wntten contracts which include guarantees and options within Its non participating insurance contract funds These funds
are not subject to the requirements of the FSAs realistic reporting regime and habilities are evaluated by reference to statutory reserving rules
Provision for guarantees and options in the non participating funds has been included within liabilities

The matenal guarantees and options In the non participating insurance contract funds are guaranteed annuity options Stmilar options to those
written in the participating mnsurance contract fund have been written in relation to non participating contracts Prowvision for these guarantees
does not matenally differ from a provision based on a market consistent stochastic model

¢) No Negative Equity Guarantees
The Group has made promises to certain pohicyholders in relation to equity release mortgages that payments on these pelicies will meet the
morigage value covered Further details on these are disclosed within Note 15

3. Risk management and control

The Group seeks to create value for its members by maintaining an appropnate balance between the capital available to support nsk and the
level and type of nsk it takes on in order to achieve returns for policyholders The pnncipal types of nsk, which are detailed betow, have been
tdentified and nsk appetite for each of these has been set based on the amount necessary to meet the FSAs capitat requirements The Group
recognises the cntical importance of having efficient and effective nsk management systems in place and these take the form of

- Board and Executive committees with clear terms of reference

— Fmancial and norHfinancial committees

~ Aclear orgarusation structure with documented allocation of responsibiities

- Auniform methodology of nsk assessment, which 1s embedded within all companies n the Group so that they operate withtn agreed
tolerances and with appropriate controls in place

— Regular reviews of nisks by senior managers, where frequency of review 15 determined by the potential impact of the nsk and its likelihood

a) Insurance risk

Insurance nsk s the nsk that anses from the mherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance labiliies Long-term
msurance nsk anses from mortality, morbidity, persistency and expense vanances General insurance risk anses from nsks in general Insurance
contracts which lead to significant claims in terms of guantity or value These would include significant weather events, subsidence, substantial
medical claims and major accidents on a single policy Systems are in place to measure, monitor and control exposure to ali these nsks These
are documented in pohcies for underwrniting, pricing, claims and reinsurance To mitigate nsk in the hfe and general insurance businesses the
Group places remnsurance

Long-term insurance contracts

Protection and annuity business 1s at nsk from adverse changes in mortality experience from the time when the policies were underwntten In the
case of policies that pay out on death, the nsk s that mortality expenence worsens, whereas for annuities, the nsk is that mortality experience
improves These two types of business therefore to some extent offset each other in a nsk sense On protection business, the Group uses
underwriting procedures, backed up with medical screening if appropnate, designed to price accurately for such nsks and reinsurance 1s In place
to mit the quantum of nsk retained on each policy The Group s annuity business is partially reassured
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3. Risk management and control {continued)

Income protection and critical liness business (s at nsk from changes in morbidity rates Where there 1s an increased incidence of 1ll health

or an increase in the duration of such il heaith, the Group I1s exposed to higher claims than expected The Group has underwriing procedures,
including medical and financial screening f appropnate, to price accurately for such nsks and reinsurance s in place to hmit the nisk retaned on
each policy

Persistency nsk influences the ability to recover acquisition costs from margins within the products The nsk 1s greater in early years but reduces
significantly as time passes For long-term surance contract liabilities there 1s an allowance built in to allow for future withdrawals

Higher than expected expense costs will increase the reserves required The Group is exposed to the rnisk that the charges it deducts from
pohcyholder benefits are not sufficient to cover future expenses

The table below sets out the concentration of long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities on a realistic basis by type of contract
All business 15 written in the UK

2012 2011
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Rewnsurance Net

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Whole life 1,462 6 447y 14179 1,426 7 (186) 1,408 1
Endowment 6787 - 678 7 758 9 - 758 9
Term Assurance 834 {116 3) (32 9) 450 (77 2) {32 2)
Guaranteed annuity pensions 1,281 9 (225) 1,2594 12697 (21 2) 1,2485
Pure endowment pensions 27977 199 2,777.8 2,108 4 (24 1) 2,084 3
Criucal iliness 48 6 {33 3) 153 591 (38 1) 210
Income protection 670 55 9) 111 96 3 (40 8} 555
ISA 698 - 698 687 - 687
Other 86 9 {4 8} B21 219 (30) 889
6,576 6 (297 4) 6,2792 598247 (223 0} 5,701 7

Long-term claims habihties 424 - 42 4 400 - 400
Unit linked 964 6 - 964 6 806 9 - 8069
7,583 6 (297 4) 7,286 2 6,771 6 {223 0) 6,5486

The table below sets out the impact on longterm insurance contract hiabilties, the Unallocated divisible surplus and Profit before tax for
movements In key assumptions

Impact on

gross

Impact on the long term

impact on  Unallocated  Insurance

Profit bafore divisible contract

tax surplus liablilties

Sensitlvity analysis for the change In assumptlons used in long-term insurance contract liabilities £m £m £m
Increase in mortaliky rates by 5% 42 8 428 {14 7)
Increase In morbidity rates by 5% (80) (8 0) 24 4
Reduction in persistency by 5% 01 01 63

increase in expenses by 10% (15 6} {15 6) 216
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3. Risk management and control (continued)
General Insurance

The Group s general insurance (Gl ) activities are primanly concerned with the pncing, accepting and management of nsks from its policyholders
In accepting risks the Group 15 committing to paying claims and therefore these nsks must be understood The Group manages these nsks
through its underwniung strategy, retnsurance arrangements and proactive claims handling

For a portfolio of msurance contracts where the theory of probability 1s applied to pricing and provistoning, the pnncipal nsk that the Group faces
under its msurance contracts 1s the nsk that actual claims exceed the carrying value of the Group's insurance habilities The nsk anses from the
inherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance claims For general Insurance contracts this 15 pnmanly represented
by exposure to nisks which may lead to significant clams in terms of frequency or value These would include significant weather events,
subsidence and large single ¢laims ansing from either the motor business (injury ¢laims) or SME business (hability and/or property claims)
Procedures are tn place to measure, momtor and control exposure to all these nsks

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative varability about the expected outcome wiil
be In addition, a more diversified portfolio 1s less hkely to be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio The Group has developed its
Insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categones to achieve a sufficiently large
population of rnisks to reduce the vanability of the expected outcome

Property business (domestic and commercial} 1s exposed to catastrophic nsks such as result from storms or floods as well as nsks such as
subsidence The Group has entered Into reinsurance contracts which provide protection against catastrophic weather events

Motor business 1s exposed to the nisk of large personal injury claims, where the claim amounts can be significant due to the cost of care required
for the claimant The Group has entered into excess of loss reinsurance contracts which reduce its exposure to large claims The rensurance
retention 1s £5 Om per ctaim (2011 £5 Om per claim})

Commercial business I1s exposed to large indmidual property losses and also to liabilities arsing from employment and commercial activities
The Group has entered into reinsurance contracts which provide protection against these liabiities

The Group has historic Quota share and Excess of loss reinsurance contracts which reddce the Group s exposure to large claims

The table below sets out the concentration of General Insurance contract iabilities by type of contract

2012 2011

Gross  Reinsurance Not Gross  Reinsurance Net

Group £m £m £m £m £m im
Motor 1,071 5 (317 8) 9537 857 3 (943) 7630
Household 57.8 02) 576 539 - 539
Travel 1.0 - 10 10 - 10
Commercial 153 4 (17 0) 136 4 114 8 (66) 1082
Other 34 - 34 29 - 29
1,2871 {1350) 1,1521 1,029 9 {(1009) 9290

The claims prowision 1s the estimated cost of outstanding ctaims from expired risks The provision is calculated largely from usmg our own historc
claims development data How much the past claim development will reflect future claims development will be impacted by the following factors

® Changes in actuarial processes and methodology

® Changes n nsk profite

® Changes in underwnting, rating and policy conditions

® Changes in legislation and regulation (e g Penodic Payment Orders ( PPOs’), Minustry of Justice reforms, changes to the Ogden discount rate, etc)
® Changes in other external factors (e g claims farming/aceident management firms)

it 1s therefore very important that the impact of these items an claims development 15 understood Whilst every effort has been made to ensure
the claims provision appropriately allows for such changes, there remains uncertainty in the eventual reserve outcome as a result
This uncertainty can change from year to year depending on the timing and magnitude of these itermns

The Group has identified two specific areas of uncertainty that it has explicitly alfowed for within the claims provision but where the outcome could
be worse than the amount allowed for These are

* Uncertainty in the proportion of claims identified by the Group as being likely to settle on a PPO basis that actually settle on a PPQ basis
& Uncertanty i relation to the Ogden discount rate

The claims provision includes a specific allowance for claims identified as having the potential ta settle on a PPO basis This allowance 1s based
on the mean cost of claims derved from a range of scenarios based on the PPO settlement rate for the claims If all of these claims settled as
PPOs, the reserves would detenorate by an estimated £8 6m from the position shown above
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3. Risk management and control (continued)

The Ogden discount rate 1s set by the Lord Chancellor It s currently 2 5% but a revision 1s under constderation with a decision possible
by late 2013 Whilst there are many views across the industry in terms of what the change should be, the general consensus s that a
reduction in the rate 1s likely The claims provision has included an allowance for a change in the Ogden discount rate, using a scenario
based approach as for PPOs The allowance Is broadly equivalent to a reduction in the discount rate to 1 75% If the discount rate was to
reduce to 1 5%, the claims provision would deteriorate by £4 4m A reduction to 1% would lead to a detenoration of £14 3m

The claims provision 1s also sensitive to the number and cost of large motor claims (defined as greater than £1m), which have been

incurred but not reported and reserved We would typically expect a number of large claims from expired nsks to be identified in the |
future, either from being newly reported or from existing claims increasing in magnitude above the £1m threshold The claims prevision

allows for £23 7m of late reported/reserved large claims Therefore, if six new claims at £56m each were reported, for example, this would .
lead to a £6 3m deteroration in the reserves, whereas four new £5m claims would lead to a £3 7m improvement !

The tables below reflect the cumulative incurred claims including both claims netfied and incurred but not reported (‘IBNR’} for each !
successive accident year at each Statement of Financial Position date, together with the cumulative payments to date The Group aims to
maintatn appropnate reserves in order to protect against adverse future clams expenence and developments

Analysis of claims development 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Tota!
- gross of relnsurance £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m Em £m
Initrial estimate of gross provision 39692 5009 5215 5510 5602 5396 6069 7712 9064 3,086 2

One year later 4028 4872 5236 5275 5126 5402 5892 8230 9125

Two years later 3854 4663 4945 5051 4894 5002 5892 8385

Three years later 3563 4500 4721 4902 4859 4800 b5B7 9

Four years later 3464 4378 4626 4772 4876 4910

Five years later 3436 4347 4573 4775 4925

Six years later 3428 4360 4576 4766

Seven years fater 3429 4359 4547

Eight years later 3424 4361

Nine years later 3446

Current estimate of cumulative claims 3446 4361 4547 4766 4925 4910 5879 8385 9125 10862 61206
Cumulative paymenits to date (336 6) (428 2) (451 2) (469 5) (461 3) (461 5) (515 3) (654 6) (650 7) (455 2)(4,8841)

Liability recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position for 2003 to 2012
accident years 80 79 35 7i 312 295 726 1839 2618 6310 1,2365

Liability recognised in the Statement of

Financial Position In respect of

prior accident years 338
Claims handling provision 16 8

Gross General Insurance claims ‘
liabilitles as at 31 December 2012 1,2871
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3. Risk management and control (continued)

Analysis of claims development 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Total
- net of reinsurance £m £m £m £m £m Em £&n £m £m £m £m
initial estimate of net provision 3574 4456 4842 5134 5058 5088 5840 7621 8372 10606

One year later 3643 4371 4738 4747 4629 4829 5780 8029 8971

Two years later 3528 4158 4392 4670 4402 4640 5647 B189

Three years later 3281 4070 4295 4514 4411 4567 5621

Four years later 3275 3932 4234 4437 4301 4576

Five years later 3166 3915 4219 4419 4313

Six years later 3147 3927 4211 4412

Seven years later 3152 3894 4198

Eight years later 3166 3910

Nine years later 3199

Current estimate of cumulative claims 3199 3910 4198 4412 4313 4576 6621 8189 8971 1,0606 5,7995
Cumulative payments to date {315 3) (38886} (417 2) (434 3) (420 3)(434 4) (506 8) (653 5) (6458} (4552) @6714)

Liability recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position for 2003 to 2012
aceident years 46 24 26 69 110 232 553 1654 2513 6054 1,1281

Liabdty recogmised n the Statement of
Financial Position tn respect of

prior accident years 72
Claims handling provision 16 8
Net General Insurance claims

liabilities as at 31 December 2012 1,1521

b) Financial risk

1} Market risk

Market risk 1s the nsk of adverse or favourable iImpacts due to fluctuations In equity prices, interest rates (including credit spreads and
bond yields), exchange rates or property prices It anses due to fluctuations in habihties ansing from products sold and the value of
mvestments held The Group has defined policies and procedures n place te control the major components of market risk Threadneedle
Asset Management Ltd 1s our investment manager who operates under contractual Investment Management Agreements Assets are
imvested under agreed investment guidelines that reflect the Group's investment nsk appetite Investment performance 1s monitored
closely by the Group Chief Investment Officer and the Investment Committee in order to ensure comphance with the relevant regulatory
limits for solvency purposes and with guidelines set for each fund Investments held are pnmanly hsted on recognised stock exchanges

Limits on the Group's exposure to equities are defined both in aggregate terms and by geography, industry and counterparty Tactical asset
allecation meetings are held weekly, and strategic asset allocation meetings quarterly, to discuss investment return and concentration and
to agree any changes required

Equity price risk

The Group 15 exposed to equity price nsk from daily fluctuations in the market values of the equity portfolio These assets are used to
support contractual liabilities ansing from investment and long-term insurance contracts For investment and long-term linked insurance
contracts the price movements are matched with corresponding movements in contractual oblhigations For parucipating insurance
contracts the aim 1s to achieve growth in excess of the obligations The associated nsk 1s hedged using derivatives For general insurance
contracts, equities are held to achieve an investment return The associated risk 1s miigated by investng in a diverse portfolio of high
quality securites Holdings are diversified across industries and concentrations in any one company or industry are imited by parameters
established by the Investment Committee

Interest rate risk

The Group monitors interest rate nsk by calculating the mean duration of the investment portfolio and the habilities 1ssued The mean
duration 1s an indicator of the sensitivity of the assets and liabibties to changes i current interest rates The mean duration of the
habilities 1s determined by means of projecting expected cash flows from the contracts using best estimates of mortality and voluntary
terminations The mean duration of the assets s calculated n a consistent manner During 2012 the Group managed this nsk through an
active use of gilt yield hedges, tn the form of contracts for differences

Credit spread risk

In addition to interest rate nsk, described above, a wideming of corporate bonds spreads over and above nisk-free yields will lead to a fall

in the fair value of the Group's portfolio of corporate bonds and vice-versa For the investment and long-term linked insurance contracts
this movement 1s matched with corresponding movements in contractual liabilities, for the general insurance business habilities are
undiscounted and so unaffected in current value by changes in credit spreads The Group monitors Credit spread nisk by regularly reviewing
s exposure to corporate bonds by both credit rating and duration
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3. Risk management and control {continued)

Currency risk
The Group 1s exposed to foreign currency exchange risk within the investment portfolio supporting the Group’s operations from purchased
investments that are denominated or payable in currencies other than sterling There is no other exposure to currency risk

The table below summarnses the Group's exposure, after hedging, to foreign currency exchange risk in sterling

2012 2011

Euro US Dollar Yen Other Total Euro US Dellar Yen Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m im £m

Dernvatives (34 6) {46 6) - (61) (87 3) (13 1} (32 4) - (4 1) (49 6)
Equity securities 879 1368 609 1035 3891 1051 2053 590 906 460 0
Debt secunities 240 430 - - 67.0 89 323 33 05 450
Other investments 146 - - - 146 27 - - - 27
Cash and cash equivalents 113 56 - 02 171 217 37 01 04 259
103 2 138 8 609 976 400 5 125 3 2089 62 4 87 4 484 0

The sensitivity of Investment assets to a 10% increase/decrease in Eurc and US Dollar exchange rates, net of derivatives, 1s £10 3m
and £13 9m respectively In determining the percentage rates to use in this sensitivity analysis the movements in actual market rates
of Euro and US Dollars durng 2012 was taken into account The above table incorporates all matenal currency nsk to profit before tax
Therefore, a 10% increase/decrease across all currencies could impact profit before tax by up to £40 1m

Some foreign debt securities are denominated in sterling so bear no currency risk and have not been included within the above table
Eurozone exposure

The Group has some exposure to the main countnes involved in the ongoing difficutties being expenenced within the Eurozone as
disclosed below, the table shows the Group's exposure by country of incorporation of the counterparty at 31 December 2012

Soverelgr Non Ign Total

£m £m Em

Ireland - 3328 3328
ltaly 04 35.9 363
Portugal - 2.7 27
Spamn - 903 90 3
France - 3226 3226
Other Eurozone - B726 8726
Total 04 1,656.9 16573

The Group has no exposure to either Greece or Cyprus Non-sovereign exposure includes £74m of subordinated debt

Property price risk

The Group 1s exposed to property price risk on the commercial properties it holds as investments Values of properties are determined
from the future value of cash flows and the Group enters into leases following an assessment of the tenant’s ability to pay the rent
and service charges For investment and long-term linked nsurance contracts the price movements are matched with corresponding
movements n contractual obligations For participating insurance contracts the aim is to achieve growth in excess of the obligations
The associated nsk 1s mitigated by investing in a diverse portfolio of lmgh quality properties

Derivative risk

Dernvatives are used to reduce exposure to fluctuations n interest rates, exchange rates and for efficient portfolio management
purposes The principal denvatives used for this function are interest rate contracts {including interest rate swaps and options), forward
foreign exchange contracts and equity denvatives {(index futures and ophtions) respectively This nsk 1s managed through the Group Asset
and Liabihty Commuttee

Asset and liability matching

The Group manages its financial positions with an asset hability management (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long-
term investment returns 1n excess of its obligations under insurance and investment contracts The principal technique of the Group's
ALM 15 to match assets to the hiabilities ansing from insurance contracts by reference to the type of benefits payable to contract holders

The Group s ALM 1s integrated with the management of the financial nisks associated with the Group s cther financial assets and
liabilities not directly associated with insurance and investment liabilities
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3. Risk management and control (continued)

Summary of market risk sensitivities
The table below sets out the impact on long-term insurance contract hiabifities, the Unallocated divisible surplus and Profit before tax for
movements In sectors of the market that the Group 15 invested in, net of denvatives

Impact

oh gross

Impact on the leng-term

Impact on  Unallocated  insurance

Prafit before divisible contract
tax surplus Nabllities

Sensltivity analysis to movements In key market sectors
£m £m £m
Equity values fall by 20% (36 5) (35 8) (1905}
Equity values increase by 20% 509 501 1808
Property values fall by 12 5% (10 3) (10 3) {15 7}
Property values increase by 12 5% 101 101 17 3
Credit spreads fali by 100bps 709 604 1621
Credit spreads increase by 100bps {66 4) (66 4) (157 1}
15 year Gilt yrelds fall by 17 8% 246 232 264 3
15 year Gilt yields increase by 17 5% (21 2) {20 0) (240 8)

In determining the percentage rates to use In the sensitivity analysis the Group has made reference to those set by the regulators for
calculating the nsk capital margin

Asset values and, where appropriate, asset shares are adjusted to reflect the change in each sensitivity Future policy related liabilities
are recalculated using these revised values and, where appropriate, economic scenarnos generated by an asset model calibrated to the
revised risk free rate

ii} Credit risk
Credit nsk s the nsk of loss due to counterparties failing to meet alt or part of their obligations in a timely fashion

The pnncipal credit risks anse from exposure to counterparties through exposure to corporate bonds, reinsurers’ share of insurance
llabilities, amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid, amounts due from insurance contract holders, amounts due
from insurance intermediaries and counterparty risk with respect to denvative transactions

Policies are in place to control the major components of credit nsk, including counterparty default and concentration nsk The Group
places imits on its exposure to a single counterparty, or groups of counterparties, and to geographical and industry segments

Reinsurance 1s used to manage insurance risk This does not, however, discharge the Group's liabilty as primary isurer If a reinsurer
fails to pay a claim, the Group remains liable for the payment to the policyholder The creditworthiness of reinsurers 1s considered by
reviewing their financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract and on an annual basis

The tables below show the credit profile of the Group’s assets The credit nsk profile of the Society 1s matenally consistent with that of
the Group

auraleurpy Y5ty ‘ sIssauTSTg MO I SMIAATY PUE SIISWAILIG

AAA AR A 133 B;';: Not rated Total
Credit risk exposure 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m ‘
Debt and other fixed income securnties 3,006 2 402 0 1,712 3 1,126 5 336 325 6,3131
Loans secured on residenual property - - - - - 4153 415 3
Other - - - - - 54 54 |
Deposits with credit institutions - - - - - 146 146
Loans secured by policies - - - - - 04 04
Other loans - - - - - 03 03 g
Short-term deposits - 375 250 2 - - 509 3386 ﬁ
3,006 2 4395 1,9625 11265 336 5194 7,0877 %
Reinsurance assets
- non inked - 2850 897 10 - 360 411 7 §
- inked - 355 - - - - 355 g
3,006.2 7600 20522 1,1275 336 55564 7,5349 "
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Below
AAA AR A Bes BBB Not rated Tota!
Credit nisk exposure 2011 m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt and other fixed iIncome secunties 29471 3921 12360 698 4 337 337 53410
Loans secured on residential property - - - - - 334 2 3342
Other - - - - - 17 17
Loans secured by policies - - - - - 06 06
Other loans - - - - - o4 04
Short-term deposits - 550 5019 10 - 43 562 2
29471 4471 13,7379 699 4 337 3749 62401
Reinsurance assets
- non linked 35 1855 889 - - 360 3139
- linked - 230 - - - - 230
2,950 6 656 1,8268 699 4 337 4109 6,5770
The tables below show the age analysis of the Group's past due and/or imipaired assets
Total past Past due
<30 days Al to 61 ta »>90 days due but and Totat
Age analysis of assets past due 60 days 90 days not tmpalred Impaired
but not impaired 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and other recevables - - - - - - -
Insurance recevables 585 39 1.8 56 168 06 174
55 39 1.8 56 168 06 17 4
Totat past Past due
<30 days 31to 61 to >90 days due but and Towal
Age analysis of assets past due 60 days 90 days not impaired impatred
but not imparred 2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and other recevables 01 - - - 01 01 02
Insurance receivahles 64 27 01 07 29 06 105
65 27 o1 07 100 07 107

Collateral

For overthecounter denvative transactions undertaken by the Group, collateral 1s recerved from the counterparty The collateral can be sold or
repledged by the Group and 1s repayable if the contract terminates or the contract's fair value decreases At 31 December 2012, the fair value of

such collateral held was £65 5m (2011 £131 4m) No collateral recewved from the counterparty has been sold or repledged (2011 £rul)

In addition the Group has pledged £67 Om {2011 £nil} of corporate bonds as collateral in relation to cash flow swaps entered into dunng the year
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3. Risk management and control (continued)
i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the Group does not have sufficient availlable iquid assets to meet its obligations as they fall due

Sources of liguidity nsk have been dentified and systems are in place to measure, monmitor and control liquidity exposures
These are documented in hqurdity polhicies

Liquidity 15 maintained at a prudent level, with a buffer to cover contingencies including the provision of temporary hguidity to
subsidiary companies

The maturity of the financial assets of the Group has heen disctosed within the indiwmdual notes to the financial statements
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial habilities of the Group based on remaining undiscounted contractual

obligations, except for long-term insurance participating (commonly referred to as “with-profits”™) contracts where maturity profiles are
determined on the discounted esttmated timing of net cash outflows

Within 1. 1.3 a5 Qvar 5

Group year years years years Linked Total
Maturity profile of financia! liabilities 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance contract habilities 497 1 646 0 3407 63506 77.0 79114
Investment contract habliies - - - - 9593 959 3
MNet asset value attributable to unit holders 5039 - - - - 503 9
Provisions 590 73 03 - - 66 6
Finangral liabilities :
- Derivative financial instruments - - - 512 - 51.2 -
- Other financial habilities 6556 03 - 97 - 755 B,
Insurance payables a7 - - - - a3 7 5
Trade and other payables 1900 24 24 88 2 - 2830 5
1,360 2 656 0 3434 64997 10363 98956 E-
within 1 13 35 ver 5 E’ |
Group year years years years Linked Total g
Matunty profile of financial habilities 2011 £m £m £m £m £m Em
Insurance contract habilities 4439 61986 364 1 5,515 4 576 7,0006 !
Investment contract habihties - - - - 800 9 800 9
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 4291 - - - - 4291 8
Provistons 65 481 08 07 - 561 f:f’
Financial habilities g
- Denvative financial Instruments - 38 - - - 38 2
- Other financral habiities 671 - - 101 - 772 ”
Insurance payables 416 - - - - 416
Trade and other payables 2017 23 24 894 - 2958 \
1,185 9 6738 3673 56156 8685 8,7051 > !
Ll
£ |
For investment and long-term hnked insurance contracts (unit hinked) the Group matches all the assets on which the unit prices are o%
based with assets in the portfolio Therefore the Group 1s not exposed to price, currency, credit or interest risk In respect of these §
=

contracts The Group 1s responsible for ensunng there s sufficient hguidity within the asset portfolio to enabte habilities to unit linked
policyholders to be met as they fall due
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3. Risk management and control {continued)

Within 1 13 36 fver 5

Society yanr years years years Unked Total
Maturity profile of financlal llabilities 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance contract iabilities 173 1040 1644 6,1806 770 6,6033
Investment contract labilities - - - - 959 3 959 3
Provisions 578 50 03 - - 631 I
Financia!l habitities
- Denivative financial instruments - - - 512 - 512 ‘
- Other financial labilities 656 06 05 14 7 - 814
Insurance payables 26 2 - - - - 262
Trade and other payables 136 2 - - - - 136 2
3631 109 6 1652 6,2465 10363 79207
Wwithin 1 i3 35 Qver 5
Somety yaar years years years Linked Totad
Matunity profile of financial habilities 2011 £m £m £m Em Em im
Insurance contract habilities 107 8 1903 184 7 54058 576 59462
Investment contract liabihttes - - - - 8009 8009
Provisions 51 46 8 04 - - 523
Financial habilities
- Denvative financial instruments - 38 - - - 38
- Other financial latilities 66 8 59 - - - 727
Insurance payables 316 - - - - 316
Trade and other payables 147 4 - - 147 4

3587 246 8 1851 5,4058 8685 7,0549

iv) Other risk types

Operational risk
Operational nsk 18 the nsk of loss, resulting from tinadequate or faifed internal processes, systems, human error or from external events,
mncluding legal and regulatory nisk

Semor managers are responsible for the identification, assessment, control and monitoring of aperational risks and for reporting these to the
Risk Commuittee in accordance with the Group's escalation cnteria Operational nsks are assessed in terms of their probability and impact in
accordance with Group policy

Group risk
Group nsk I1s the rnisk of contagion that the Society incurs from 1ts membership of a group of firms The Group Risk Committee oversees the
management of such nsks

Strategic risk
Strategic nsk I1s the nsk ansing from the implementation of agreed strategy It includes nsks ansing from political, economuc, sociological and
technological changes, competitor actions and capital adequacy

Executive management identifies strategic nsks when drawing up business plans for approval by the Board and monitors these, ensunng that
excess nsk 1s reported to the Group Risk Committee and Board
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Performance

The notes Included within this section focus on the performance and results of the Society and Group Information on the income generated,
benefits and clalms paid, expenditure incurred and mutual bonus declared are presented here

4. Net earned premiums

Accounting for net earned premiums

Long-term Insurance contracts

Regular premiums on long-term insurance contracts are recognised as income when due for payment For single premium business, recognition
occurs on the date from which the policy i1s effective Reinsurance premiums payable are accounted for when due for payment

Annua! premium equivalent (APE), a measure of new business actwty that 1s calculated as the sum of annualised regular premrums from new
business pltus ten per cent of single premiums on new business wntten dunng the penod

General Insurance contracts

General insurance premiums written reflect business coming into force during the year Earned premium 1s written premium adjusted for unearned
premium Unearned premium 1s that proportion of a premium wnitten In a year that relates to penods of sk after the Statement of Financial
Position date Unearned premiums are calculated on a time apportionment basis The proportion attrbutable to subsequent penods 1s deferred
as a provision for unearned premiums

Investment contracts
Premiums and claims retating to investment contracts are not recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income but are recorded as
contnibutions to and deducttons from the investment contract ltabilities recorded in the Statement of Financial Position

Group Soclaty
2012 2011 2012 2011
Gross written premiums £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance contracts - participating business
Investments and savings - sIngle premum 615 457 615 457 "
Pensions and annuities - single premium 108 87 108 87 E
Investments and savings - regular premium 443 529 44 3 529 g
Pensions and annuities - regular premium 152 16 9 152 169 g
g
Long-term insurance contracts - non participating business ;
Pensions and annuities - single premium 6773 6011 6773 6011 E
Investments and savings - regular premium 03 05 o1 02 &
Pensions and annuities regular premium 68 77 68 7T
Life and health protection regular premium 131.7 116 & 1312 116 4 o |
= 1
Long-term linked insurance contracts ;!-; |
Investments and savings - regular premium 03 08 03 09 £
Pensicns and annurties - regular premium 04 18 o4 18 %
Life and health protection - regular premium 112 105 112 105 “
General insurance contracts -
Motor 11,1091 11249 - -
Household 1403 1288 - - E
Other 2355 2019 - -
Change v unearned premiums proviston 15 (122 7) - - E
Gross earned premiums 2,446 2 2,196 5 959 1, 8628 3
g
Premiums ceded to relnsurers —
Long-term insurance premiums {75 6) (68 1) (75 6) (98 7) )
General insurance business (35 0) (27 7) - - %
Change in unearned premiums provision 18 28 - - g
{108.8) (93 0) {75 6) (99 7} e
Net earned premiums 2,3374 2,1035 8835 763 1 §
2
Gross written premiums for investment contracts %
which are deposit accounted for and not included above 2700 214 0 2700 214 0 *

All contracts are written m the UK apart from Highway Insurance Company Limited which wntes a proportion of its general insurance busmess m
Ireland These Insh net earned premiums totalled £3 9m in 2012 (2011 £10 1m)

SIUROXDY 1N
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5. New business premiums

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
Gross new business — long-term contracts £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance contracts - participating business
Investments and sawvings - single premium 615 457 615 457
Pensions and annurties - single premium 108 87 s 87
Investments and savings - regular premium 09 11 09 11
Long-term insurance contracts - non participating business
Pensions and annuities - single premium 8773 6011 677 3 601 1
Life and health protection - regular premium 265 238 265 238
Long-term linked insurance contracts
Pensions and annuities - regular premiem - 04 - 04
Life and health protection - regular premium 43 32 43 32
7813 684 0 7813 684 ¢
Investment contracts
Pensions and annuittes - regular premium 2700 2140 2700 2140
1,051 3 898 0 1,051 3 898 0
Gross written premiums for investment contracts are deposit accounted for and not included within net earned premiums
All gross new business premiums relate to indmidual business and are disclosed on an APE basis
Recurrent single premum rebates from the Department for Works and Pensions are included as new business single premiums
Penstons vested into annuity cantracts dunng the year are included as new annurty single premium business at the annuity purchase price
Where periodic premiums are receiwved other than annually, the periodic new business premiums are stated on an annualised basis
2012 2011
Group gross premiums earned - general business £m £m
Motor 1,133 3 1,0305
Household 1352 1206
Commercial 1519 1280
Other 660 538
1,486 4 1,3329

6. Fee and commission income

Accounting for fee and commission Income

Fees from investment contracts for investment management, other policy administration charges and fund management fees are recognised as
income when earned Commission earned from financial ntermediary services 1s taken to income when earned This pnmarily comprises initial
commission income receivable on services provided to chients during the year when polictes have gone on risk and renewal commission recewved

during the year onh an accruals basis

Group Soclety

2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated

£m £m £m £m
Policy administration fees 133 116 63 49
Fund management fees - 27 - -
Commission income 32 42 03 03
165 18 5 66 52
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7. Investment income

Accounting for Investment Income

Investment income includes dividends, interest from investments at fair value, interest on loans and receivables, interest on loans secured on
resklential property and rerts Dwidends are included on an exdmidend basis Interest recevable on loans and recewables 1s calculated on an
effective interest rate basis The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected Iife of the financial Instrument or, when appropniate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability

Group Soctaty
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated

£m £m £m £m

Rental income from investment properties 61 74 61 74
Income from investments at fair value through mncome

- Interest income 2046 1232 1650 126 8

- Dmadend income 96 6 117 4 716 712

Interest on loans and recevables 08 17 03 09

Interest on loans secured on residenttal property 121 117 - -

Dividend income from group undertakings - - 94 0 786

3202 2614 3370 284 9

8. Net gains/(losses) on investments

Accounting for net gains / (losses) on investments
- Realised gains or losses

Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and purchase price

- Unrealised gains and losses

Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between the valuation of farr value assets at the Statement of Financral
Position date and their vatuation at the last Statement of Financial Positron date. or where purchased dunng the year, the purchase pnce An
adjustment 1s made to unrealised gains and losses for the pnor year's unrealised element included in the current year's reahsed gains and losses

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m m £m £m
Investment properties (1.2) {(19) (12) (19
Investments at fair value through income
- Debt secunties 108 0 350 3 86 4 3351
- Equity secunties 2950 {33 1) 2415 (34 5)
- Denvatives at far value through income (28 1) 1101 {22.6) 1086
Investments in group undertakings - - (90.0) (34 4)
3747 425 4 214 1 3729
Included within net gams on investments are reahised gains of £148 8m (2011 £174 4m) for the Group and realised gans of £126 Om
{2011 £114 9mj) for the Society
9. Other income
Accounting for other income
Other income primarily relates to interest recewvable and unit inked income
Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Interest recevable 221 176 01 g2
Unit inked income 55 38 §5 38
Other income 141 296 03 151
417 51 0 59 191
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10. Net benefits and claims

Accounting for net benefits and clalms

Long-term Insurance contracts

Matunty claims and regular annuity payments are accounted for when due for payment Surrenders are accounted for on the earler of the date
when paid or when the policy ceases to be included within the long-term insurance contract habiity Death claims and other claims are accounted
for when the Group 1s notified The value of claims on participating Insurance contracts includes bonuses paid or payable Claims vatues mclude
related internal and external claims handling costs Reinsurance recovenes are accounted for in the same period as the related claim

General insurance contracts

Claims incurred comprise claims and related internal and external claims handiing costs paid in the year and changes in the provisions

for outstanding ctaims, including prowisions for ¢laims meurred but not reported and related claims handling costs, together with any other
adjustments to clasms from previous years

The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred in settling claims and a deduction for the expected value of recovenes However, it
15 likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the onginal liability established Provisions are adjusted at the Statement of Financial
Position date to represent an estimate of the expected outcome

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 201t
£ £m £m £im
Gross benefits and claims
Long-term insurance contracts
Benefits and claims paid 649 3 667 7 644 2 661 8
Change 1n the provision for claims 24 (4 6) 24 {4 5)
General insurance contracts
Claims paid 9103 8165 - -
Change 1n the provision for claims 257 3 189 7 - -
18193 16693 646.6 657 3
Claims ceded to reinsurers
Long-term insurance contracts
Benefits and claims paid (61 B) (54 5) (61 8) (102 4}
General insurance contracts
Claims pad (14 9) {7 4) - -
Change In the provision for claims (341) (24 5) - -
(110 8B) (86 4) (61 8) (102 4)
1,708 5 1,5829 584 8 554 9
Net benefits and claims for investment contracts which are deposit |
accounted for and not included above (refer to Note 17) 192 6 1205 192 6 120 5
11. Finance costs
Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m Im £m im
Interest expense on loans and borrowings 0.5 05 - - ‘
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12, Other operating and administrative expenses

Accounting for other operating and administrative expenses

Other operating and administrative expenses are accounted for as incurred Acquisition costs relate to the costs of acquinng new
bustness during the financial year These inctude all commission and incentive payments to sales staff and third parties incurred in
writing new contracts Where the benefit of these costs will be recognised in future accounting periods the costs are deferred

Group Soctlety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Commussion paid on acquisition of business 1956 184 2 577 501
Movement in deferred acquisitron costs (54) (14 Q) - -
Write—off following termsnation of reinsurance contract (see Note 23) - 581 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 120 130 46 47
Depreciation on property and equipment - owned 25 17 08 08
Depreciation on property and equipment - finance leases 09 oo - -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 04 - 04 01
Investment management expenses and charges 128 38 165 236
Auditors' remuneration 22 14 16 o7
Employee benefits expense 216 4 2097 216 4 2097
Impairment of financial assets 04 (0 4) - 01
Management charge allocated to group undertakings - - (191 1) (186 8)
Rent, rate and other facilities expense 286 182 211 132
Marketing and advertising 459 40 4 192 i58
Other staff costs 07 290 131 143
IT costs 394 45 8 216 237
Fees 583 611 250 279 &
Other expenses 278 14 ¢ 177 50 g
Claims handling cost recognised in Gross benefits and claims {60 0) (47 1) {6 0) {31 2} &
608 5 619 8 218 6 1717 ;
[=9
13. Auditors’ remuneration &
]
2012 2011 E
£m £m
Audit of Society o4 05
Fees payable to the Society’s auditors and its associates for ather services 9
Audit of subsidianes 05 03 é‘,
- Audit-related assurance services 6.2 02 g
- Tax advisory services o1 01 &
- Other non-audit services not covered above 10 03 &
22 14
. 14. Mutual Bonus . o
‘ The Board declared a mutual bonus of £20 9m (2011 £18 6m) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 3
£
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Financial assets and liabilities

This section presents Information relating to the financial assets and liabilitles (excluding insurance contract-related assets and
liabilities which are disclosed in Note 20) held by the Society and Group These financial asset and liabilities are held at either fair
value or amortised cost as defined by the Group’s accounting policies

15. Financial assets — Fair value through income

Accounting for financial assets and labilities at fair value through income
Financial assets at fair value through mcome has two sub categories

— Financial assets held for trading, and
— Those designated at fair value through income at inception

All investments of the Group classified as far vatue are designated as fair value through income at inception Such assets are measured
at market prices, or prices consistent with market ratings should no price be available Any unrealised or realised gains or losses are
taken to the Statement of Comprehensive income, as fair value gains or losses, or realised gains or losses respectively, as they occur

Financial assets at fair value through income Include listed and unlisted investments, units in authorised unit trusts, open ended
Investment companies (OEICs), loans secured on residential property and other investments

Financial iablities at fair value through income include denvative financial instruments and investment contract habilities, see Notes 16
and 17 respectively

The IFRS “fair value hierarchy” levels for financial assets and habiiities required under IFRST are disclosed within Note 18

Loans secured on residential property

The fair value of the loans secured on residential property 1s determined using discounted cash flows which take into account the
nterest rolled up on the loans, matunty profiles and expected future funding costs The swap rate used as an input to the discount rate
Is matched to the expected term of the underlying loans A ‘No Negative Equity Guarantee’ liability 1s fair valued using discounted cash
flows and 1s netted off against the fair value of the assets

A Group undertaking provides ‘No Negative Equity Guarantee’ contracts to customers on equity release meorigages The contractual terms
of these guarantees require the company to make payments equivalent to any shortfall between the market valug of customers' property
and the value of the loan plus accrued Interest at the date of redemption

The guarantee 1s initially recognised at the fair value of the iabibty on the date the guarantee Is given and 1S subsequently measured at
fair value The fair value 1s calculated by applying stochastic scenano models, applying assumptions for interest rates, future house pnce
inflation and its volatility, mortality rates and early loan repayment rates, to give management's best estimate of the discounted value of
cash flows required to settle any future financial obligation ansing at the Statement of Financial Position date

The guarantee 1s included within Financial assets - Fair value through income n the Statement of Financial Position The movement in
the fair value of the guarantee i1s taken to the Statement of Comprehensive income

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Fair value of financlal assets

Market observable inputs are used wherever possible In the absence of an active market, estimatton of fair value 1s achieved by using
valuation techniques such as recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models For discounted
cash flow analysis, estimated future cash flows and discount rates are based on current market information and rates applicable

to financial iInstruments with similar yields, credit quality and matunty charactenstcs This valuation will also take into account the
marketability of the assets being valued

Details of the key assumptions used In the absence of an active market are contained in the fair value estimation tables, as required by
IFRS7, disclosed in Note 18
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15. Financlal assets - Fair value through income (continued)

Group Socioty
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets - Fair value through income
Shares, other vanable yetd secunties and units in unit trusts
— UK listed 21078 41,7253 3,051 7 2,756 3
- UK unhsted 112 3 1139 1123 1139
- Qverseas listed 4371.3 409 5 706 485
- Overseas unlisted 929 947 920 915
Debt and other fixed income securities
— UK listed 41899 3,841 2 2,595 7 2,198 9
- Overseas listed 21232 11,4998 765 2 5320
Loans secured on reswdential property 4153 334 2 366 2 1111
Other 54 17 53 17
Loan to group undertaking - - - 162 2
9484.1 88,0203 7,058 9 6,016 1
Within one year 3,186 2 1,852 3 3,5104 2,114 1
Over one year 6,2979 6,1680 3,548 5 3,902 0
9,4841 8,0203 7,058.9 6,016 1
Assets held to cover linked liabilities inciuded above 1,0008 8558 1,000 8 8558

The loan to group undertaking was designated at fair value through income within the Society to avoid an accounting mismatch across

the Group, the loan was repaid in 2012

16. Denvative financial instruments

Accounting for derivative financlal instruments
Derivatives are initially recogmsed at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract I1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their far value There are no designated hedging relationships within the Group that qualfy for hedge accounting,

all are classified as held for trading

Changes in the fair value of dervative instruments are recognised immediately in gains or iosses on investments in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the period Realised gains or losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on cccurrence

2012 2011

Contract/ Contract/
notlonal Falr valus Fair value notional Fair value Farr value
amourt — aaset = llabllity amount — assel - lhathty
Group £m £m £m £m £m im
Interest rate swaps 6350 200 - 486 9 64 2 -
Gilt hedges 1,4171 1.0 - - - -
Cash flow swaps 794 - {51 2) - - -
Swaptions 1519 179 - 196 7 296 -
Forward exchange contracts 33 - - 35 - -
Equity/index derivatives 2336 319 - 1,111 4 500 (36)
Property index swap - - - 200 - o2
2,520 3 708 {51 2) 1,818 5 143 8 (38)
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16. Derivative financial instruments {continued)

The Group uses dervatives to hedge the effect of changes In varable rate borrowings on its fixed rate loan portfolio, to reduce exposure
to payouts under guaranteed annusty contracts and to protect agamst falls in the FTSE 100 In 2012, the general insurance business
entered nto gilt hedge contracts for differences, as a result a significant proportion of the general insurance asset portfolio 1s hedged
against stock market and git yield movements

2012 2011
Contract/ Contract/
national Falr value Falr value notional Fair value Farr value
amount - asgot - llabllity amount - asset - hiabity
Soclety £m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 6350 200 - 486 9 64 2 -
Cash flow swaps 794 - {51 2) - - -
Swaptons 1519 17.9 - 196 7 296 -
Equity/index dervatives 153 6 30.6 - 1,110 0 500 (36)
Property index swap - - - 200 - (02)
1,0199 685 {51 2) 18136 143 8 (38)

17. Investment contract liabilities

Accounting for investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilties are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged These liabilities are mtially
recognised at transaction price excluding any transaction costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of the contract

Deposits and withdrawals are recorded directly as an adjustment to the contract habihity in the Statement of Financial Position, a method
known as deposit accounting Fees charged and investment income received are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
when earned

Fair value adjustments are measured at each reporting date and are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Fair value

1s calculated as the number of units allocated to the policyholder in each unit inked fund multiplied by the unit pnce of those funds at
the Statement of Financial Position date The fund assets and liabilities are valued on a basis consistent with that used to measure the
equivalent assets and hiabilities In the Statement of Financial Position, adjusted for the discounted effect of future tax ansing from any
unrealised gains or losses For a contract that can be cancelled by the policyhotder, the fair value cannot be less than the surrender value

The liability 1s derecognised when the contract expires, is discharged or 1s cancelled

Group Soclety

2012 2011 2012 2011

£Em £m Em £m

Balance at 1 January 8009 7412 £00.9 7412
Deposits received from policyholders 2700 2140 2700 214 ¢
Payments made to policyholders and fees deducted {192 6) (120 5) {192 6) {120 5)
Change in contract habilities as shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 810 {33 B} 810 (33 8)
Balance at 31 December 959 3 8009 859 3 800 9

The change 1n contract liabiiities as shown in the Statement of Comprehensive iIncome compnises pnncipally the allocation of the net investment ‘
return to policyholders of investment contracts less allowances for taxes Investment contracts are not reinsured ‘
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48, Fair value estimation

The following far value estimation tables, as required by IFRS7, present the Group’s and Society's assets and labhties measured at farr
value by level of the fair value measurement hierarchy at 31 Cecember 2012

The fair value of financial Instruments included In the Level 1 category 1$s based on published quoted bid market prices in an active
market at the year-end date A market I1s regarded as quoted in an active market If quoted prices are readily and regularly avaitable from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis

Level 2 financial instruments are not traded in an active market or their fair value 1s determined using valuation techniques These
valuation techniques maximise the use of data from observable current market transactions (where # 15 available) using pricing obtained
via pricing services, even where the market 1s not active It also includes financial assets with prices based on broker quotes

Specific valuation techmques used to value financial instrements classified as Level 3 include

e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments {unlisted shares)

* The fair value of interest rate swaps I1s calcutated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable
yield curves

* The fair value of forward exchange contracts 1s determined using forward exchange rates at the Statement of Financial Position date,
with the resulting value discounted back to present value

* The fair value of the loans secured on residential property 1s determined using discounted cash flows which take into account
the interest rolled up on the loans, matunty profiles and expected future funding costs The swap rate used as an input to the
discount rate 1s matched to the expected term of the underlying loans The No Negative Equity Guarantee llability 1s fair valued using
discounted cash flows and Is netted off against the far value of the assets

* The fairr value of investment contract itabilities are calculated on a consistent basis to the underlying investments as described
In Note 17

e (ther techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysts, are used to determne fair value for the other financial instruments
If one or more of the sigmificant inputs i1s not based on observable market data, the instrument 15 included in Level 3
Any changes to fair value are recognised within net gains/losses on investments within the Statement of Comprehensive income with the

excepticn of Investment contract habilities where the movement 15 recognised within the gross change in contract habiliies Details of
these gains/losses are disclosed within Notes 8 and 22 respectively
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18. Fair value estimation (continued)

2012 2011
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total falr Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair
value value
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Firancial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps - - 200 200 - - 64 2 64 2
Gilt hedges - - 10 10 - - - -
Swaptions - - 179 17.9 - - 296 296
Equity/index dernvatives 12 - 307 319 103 - 397 500
12 - 69 6 708 103 - 1335 143 8
Financial assets held at falr
value through income
Shares, other vanable yield
secunties and units in urut trusts
— UK hsted 1,284 6 8232 - 21078 1,095 6 629 7 - 1,7253
- UK unhsted - - 112 3 1123 - - 113 9 113 9
— Overseas listed 3957 416 - 437 3 3787 308 - 409 5
- Qverseas unlisted - - 929 929 - - 947 94 7
Debt and other fixed
Income securities
- UK listed 2,1551 22,0348 -  4,189.9 2,3029 15376 07 38412
— Overseas listed 29 21203 - 2,123 2 79 1,490 8 11 1,4998
Loans secured on
restdential property - - 415 3 415 3 - - 334 2 3342
Other 54 - - 54 17 — - 17
38437 5,0199 6205 9,4841 3,786 8 36889 544 6 8,0203
38449 5,0199 6901 95549 3,7971 36889 6781 81641
Financial liabllitles
Investment contract Habllities - 8446 114 7 959 3 - 687 5 1134 800 9

Denvative financial instruments

Cash flow swaps - - 512 512 - - - -
Equity/index dervatives - - —- - 36 - - 36
Property index swap - - - - - - 02 02

- -~ 512 512 36 - 02 38

- 8446 1659 1,0105 36 687 5 1136 8047
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18. Fair value estimation (continued)

2012 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Totat talr Level 1 Level 2 Leve! 3 Total far
vatue value
Society £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m
Financlal assets
Derivative financlal instruments
Interest rate swaps - - 200 20.0 - - 64 2 64 2
Swaptions - - 179 7.9 - - 296 296
Equity/index derwatives - - 306 306 103 - 397 500
- - 68 5 68 5 103 - 1335 143 8
Financial assets held at fair
value through income
Shares, other vanable yield
secunties and units (n umit trusts
- UK hsted 6683 2,3834 - 30517 7272 20291 - 2,756 3
- UK unlisted - - 1123 1123 - - 1139 1139
- Overseas listed 68 7 18 - 705 485 - - 485
- Overseas unlisted - - 920 920 - - 915 915
Debt and other fixed
Income securities
— UK lhisted 1,716 5 879 2 - 2,595 7 16705 5277 07 21989
— Overseas listed 28 7624 - 765 2 75 5234 11 5320

Loan to group undertaking - - - - - - 162 2 1622
Loans secured on residential property - - 366 2 366 2 - - 1111 1111

Other 53 - - 53 17 - - 17
2,4616 4,0268 5705 17,0589 24554 30802 4805 60161
24616 4,026 8 6320 7,1274 24657 30802 6140 6,1599

Financial llabilities
Investment contract liablllties - 844 6 1147 959.3 - 6875 113 4 8009

Derlvative financial instruments

Cash flow swaps - - 51.2 51.2 - - - -
Equity/index derivatives - - - - 36 - - 36
Property index swap - - - - - - 02 02
- - 51.2 512 36 - 02 38
- 844 6 1659 10105 36 687 5 113 6 804 7
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18. Fair value estimation (continued)

The table below presents the movements in Level 3 financial instruments for the year ended 31 December 2012

Total gains/
(losses)
At recognised Tranafars At 31
January through tolevel1  December
2012 Income Purchasas Sales* and lavel 2 2012
Group £m Em £m £m £m £m
Financlal assets
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 642 {(01) - {44 1) - 200
Gilt hedges - 10 - - - 10
Swaptions 296 (23) - (24) - 179
Equity/index dervatives 397 {2 0) - - - 307
1335 (10 4) - (63 5) - 696
Financial assets held at fair value through income
Shares, other vanable yield secunties and units in unit trusts
- UK unhsted 1139 116 o8 (14 0) - 112 3
= Overseas unlisted 947 10 06 (34) - 929
Debt and other fixed iIncome securities
- UK listed 07 - - - o7 -
— Overseas listed 11 - - - 11) -
Loans secured on restdential property 3342 108 890 (18 7) - 415 3
544 6 234 204 (36 1) (18) 86205
6781 130 90 4 (892 6) (18) 6901
Financial liabilities
Investment contract habilitles 113 4 i3 - - - 114.7
Derlvative financlal Instruments
Cash flow swaps - {43) 5565 - - 5§12
Property index swap 02 - - (G 2) - -
02 (43) 555 {0 2) - 512
113 6 {30) 555 (C2) - 165 9

* In refation to Loans secured on residential property, sales represents loans repad
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18. Falr value estimation (continued)

Total gains/
{losses) |
Arl recegnised At 31
January through December
2011 income Purchases Sales 2011
Group Em £m im £m im
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 107 535 - - 642
Swaptions 330 89 - {12 3) 296
Equity/index denvatives - a7 300 - 397
437 721 300 (123} 1335
Financial assets held at farr value through income
Shares other vanable yield secunties and umts in unit trusts
- UK unhisted 146 1 {25 8) 41 (105) 1139
- Overseas unlisted 950 14 1 18 (16 2) 947
Debt and other fixed income secunties
~ UK listed 22 04 - {19} o7
- Overseas listed - (3 1) 42 - 11
Loans secured on residential property 187 0 703 87 3 {104y 3342
4303 559 97 4 (380) 5446 "
474 0 128 0 127 4 (513) 6781 b
3
Financial habiliies g
Investment contract habilities 137 4 - - (24 Q) 1134 B
[=9
Denvative financial instruments E
Swaptions 276 - - (27 6) - 2
Property index swap — - 02 — 02 —
276 - 02 (27 8) 02
1650 - 02 (51 6) 1136 9
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18. Fair value estimation (continued)

Tota! gains/
(loases)
At1  recognised Transters At 31
January through tolevel 1l  December
2012 Income  Purchases Sales*  and lovel 2 2012
Soclety £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivative financlal instruments
Interest rate swaps 64 2 (0 1) - {44 1) - 200
Swaptions 296 {2 3) - (9 4) - 179
Equity/index derivatives 397 {91) - - - 306
1335 {11 5) - (53 5) - 685
Financial assets held at fair value through income
Shares, other variable yield secunties and units in unit trusts
— UK unlisted 1139 116 08 {14 ©¢) - 112 3
— Overseas unhsted 5 04 06 {0 5) - 920
Debt and other fixed income secunties
— UK listed 07 - - - (G 7) -
- Overseas listed 11 - - - (1.1) -
Loan to group undertaking 162 2 (22 1) - (140 1) - -
Loans secured on residential property {note 1} 11 430 2194 (73) - 366 2
480 5 329 2208 {161 9) (18) 5705
614 0 214 2208 {215 4) {18) 6390
Financial liabifitles
Investment contract liabllities 1134 13 - - - 1147
Derivative financial Instruments
Cash flow swaps - (4 3) 556 - - 512
Property index swap 02 - - (0 2) - -
02 (4 3) 55.5 {0 2) - 512
1136 (3 Q) 555 {0 2} - 165 9

Note 1 The £219 4m included as purchases of Loans secured on residential properties includes amounts transferred from a subsidiary,
Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited as part of a December 2012 loan restructure with the Society

* In relation to Loans secured on residential property, sales represents loans repatd
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18. Fair value estimation (continued)

Total gains/
{losses}
Atl recognised At 31
January through December
2011 ncome Purchases Sales 2011
Society m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Denvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 107 535 - - 642
Swaptions 330 89 - (12 3) 296
Equity/index dervatives - 97 300 - 397
437 721 300 (123) 1335
Financial assets held at fair value through income
Shares, other vanable yreld secunties and units in unit trusts
- UK unlisted 1403 (25 8) 41 (47) 1139
~ Overseas unlisted 881 14 3 18 (127) 915
Debt and other fixed income securities
— UK listed 22 04 - (19) o7
-~ Overseas listed - (3 1) 42 - 11
Loan to group undertaking 1317 291 64 (50) 1822
Loans secured on residential property - 256 87 3 {18 1111
3623 405 1038 {261) 4805
406 0 112 6 1338 {384) 6140
Financial liabilities EV')
Investment contract liabilities 1374 - - (240) 1134 %
=1
Denvative financial instruments z
Swaptions 276 - - (27 6) - E.
Property index swap - -~ 02 - 02 §’
276 - 02 (27 6) 02 g
1650 - Q2 {516) 1136
o]
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19. Loans and other receivables

Accounting for loans and other receivables

Loans are initially measured at fair value and then subsequently measured at amorused cost using the effective interest rate method

Recewvables are recognised when due and comprise amounts due to the Society from group undertakings and other recewvables They are
initially recognised at fair value and then subsequently held at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each Statement of Financial Position date whether a lcan or recevable, or a group of loans or recewables, I1s
impaired For loans, the amount of any impairment loss 1s measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of future cash flows For recewables, where there 1s objective evidence that the carrying value 1s impaired then the impairment loss
will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Provision for Impairment of ioans

Provisions for impairment of loans and recewvables are based on appraisals of loans and receivables both collectively and individually
Provisions are made 1o reflect the estimated net realisable amount, taking into account potential future recovenes and the onginal
effective interest rate Balances are written off in fuli when the debt 15 considered trrecoverable

Specific provisions have been made in respect of all identified impaired advances In calculating the required provision an appropnate
factor 1s applied based on the present value of expected future cash flows, which i1s subject to periodic review to ensure its continuing
apphecability based on current experience, to reflect the probability that not all such loans will result in eventual toss Collective provisions
have been made in respect of losses which, although not yet specifically identified, are expected from expenence to anse

Group Soclety

2012 2011 2012 2011

£Em £m £m £m

Deposits with credit institutions 146 - - -
Loans secured by policies 04 oceé 04 06
Other loans 03 04 03 a4
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 87.4 109 6
Managing agents rental recewvable 125 17 0 12.5 170
Investments receivable 165 132 16 5 132
Other recevables 58 7 848 115 141
103 0 116 0 128 6 1549

Within one year 98 8 112 4 126 © 154 0
Over one year 42 36 26 09
1030 116 0 128 6 154 9

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate far value at the Statement of Financial Position date

20. Other flnancial liabilities |

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011 ‘
Restated Restated
£m £m Em £m ‘
Collateral receved 655 66 8 655 66 8
Subordinated note (EUR12m - interest payable at the |
3 month Euro Deposit Rate plus a margin of 3 65%) 97 i00 - -
Amounts due to group undertakings - - 157 56 ‘
Other 03 04 02 03
755 772 81.4 727

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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Insurance contract-related assets and liabilities

This section presents Information relating to insurance cantract-related assets and liabilitles held by the Soclety and Group. The
assumptions used in the valuation of the insurance contract liabllities are disclosed within Note 25 with sensitivitles to these
assumptions disclosed separately within Note 3

21. Insurance contract liabilitles

Accounting for insurance contract liabilities

Partlcipating business

The liability is calculated in accerdance with the FSA's ‘realistic’ hability regime  In particular, provision «s made for all bonus payments
(declared and future, reversionary and terminal) estimated, where necessary, In @ manner consistent with the relevant fund's Principles
and Practices of Financial Management (PPFM) The hability includes an allowance for the time and intninsic value of options and
guarantees granted to policyholders and for possible future management actions

The realistic iabilities are based on the aggregate value of policy asset shares reflecting past premiums, Investment return, expenses
and charges applied to each policy Allowance is also made for policy-related habiities such as guarantees, options and future bonuses
calculated using a stochastic model simulating investment returns, asset mix, expense charges and bonuses

Since the realistic liabilities mclude an allowance for future bonuses to participating contract policyholders that wilt be payable out of
returns on non participating business, an amount within the participating contract fund is recogrised representing the value of non-
participating business Such an amount s not recognised for business written outside participating contract funds

In determining the realistic value of liabilities for participating contracts, indirect account 1s taken of the value of future profits on non-
participating business written out of participating contract funds This I1s separately identifiable and 1s all In respect of policyholder habilities
The excess of the value of those future profits has been deducted from the realistic liabiirties rather than recognising + as an asset

Non-participating business

The liability 1s calculated to comply with the reporting requirements under the FSA's Integrated Prudential Sourcebook using a gross
premium valuation method or a method at least as prudent as the gross premium method The principal assumptions are given in the
notes to the financial statements The Society and relevant subsiciaries have adopted the modified statutory solvency basis in the
valuation of provisions for non-participating business

Liabilittes for non-participating business are either included within the long-term insurance contract habilities or the investment contract
habihties, depending upon the product classification

General insurance claims and insurance contract liabilities

Claims incurred compnse claims and related internal and external ¢claims handiing costs paid in the year and changes In the provisions
for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and related claims handling costs, together with any
other adjustments to claims from previous years Where applicable, deductions are made for recovenes from other parties

Provision 1s made for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled, including the cost of clatms incurred but not reported

The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred in setting claims and a deduction for the expected value of recoveries
However, given the inevitable uncertainty in establishing claims prowisions, it 1s likely that the final outcome will prove to be drfferent from
the onginal hability established Provisions are adjusted at the Statement of Financial Position date to represent a best estimate of the
expected outcome Provisions are calculated allowing for reinsurance recovernes and a separate asset 1s recorded for the reinsurers’
share of the provision

Unexpired risks

For general insurance contracts, provision ts made, if required, for any antictpated claims and claims handling costs that are anticipated
to exceed the uneamed premiums, net of deferred acquisition costs An estimate 1s made for future investment income arsing from the
unearned premiums, and used to reduce the unexpired rnisk provision Unexpired risk surpluses and deficits are offset where business
classes are managed together and a provision 1$ made 1f an aggregate defiont anses

Significant accounting estimates and Judgements

Valuation of investment and long-term insurance contract liabilities

The hiability 1s based on assumptions reflecting the best estimate at the time allowing for a margin of nsk and adverse dewviation
All contracts are subject to a hability adequacy test, which reflects management’s best current estimate of future cash flows

The assumptions used for mortality, morbidity and longewity are based on standard industry or reinsurers’ tables, adjusted where
appropriate to reflect the Group’s own experience in particular, for impaired annuities the mortality assumptions are based on reinsurers’
tables with an indvidual loading appled depending on the nature of the imparrment The assumptions used for investment returns,
expenses, lapse and surrender rates are based on current market yields, product charactenstics, and refevant claims experience

The assumptions used for discount rates are based on current market risk rates, adjusted for the Group's awn risk exposure

Due to the long-term nature of these obligations, the estimates are subject to significant uncertainty
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21. Insurance contract liabilities (continued)

Valuatlon of general insurance contract liabilities

For general insurance contracts, estimates are made for the expected ultmate cost of clatms reported as at the Statement of Financial
Position date and the cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) to the Group It can take a significant pencd of ume before the
ultimate cost of claims can be established with certainty, and the final outcome may be better or worse than that provided Standard
actuanal claims projection techniques are used to estmate outstanding clams Such methods extrapolate the development of paid and
incurred claims, recovenes from third parties, average cost per claim and ultimate claim numbers for each accident year, based upon
the observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios  The main assumption underlying these technigues 1s that past
claims development expenence Is used to project ullimate claims costs Allowance for one-off occurrences or changes in legisiation,
policy conditions or portfolio mix are also made in armving at the estimated ultimate cost of claims in order that it represents the most
likely outcome, taking account of all the uncertainties involved To the extent that the ultimate cost I1s different from the estimate, where
experience 1s better or worse than that assumed, the surplus or deficit will be credited or charged to gross benefits and claims within the

Statement of Comprehensive Income 1n future years

a) Analysls of insurance contract llabllities and relnsurance assets

2012 2011
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance
contract hatilities 21b 6,504 9 {2619) 6,2430 5,852 8 (2000) 56528
Long-term linked insurance
contract hatwhties 21c¢c 770 {35 5) 415 779 (23 O} 549
Long-term ¢laims liabilites 21d 42.4 - 42 4 400 - 400
6,624 3 (297 4) 6,3269 59707 (223 Q) 5,747 7
General Insurance
unearned premiums 21le 746 0 {14 8) 7312 747 4 (130) 7344
General insurance claims habihties 21 f 1,287 1 (1360) 11,4521 1,029 9 {1009) 9290
2,0331 {1498) 1,883.3 1,777 3 {113 9) 16634
8,657 4 (447 2} 88,2102 7,748 0 (336 9) 74111
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Rewnsuance Net
Society Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance
contract liabilities 21b 6,484 0 (261 9) 6,2221 5,828 4 (2000} 56284
Longterm finked insurance
contract habilities 2tc 770 (35 5) 41.5 779 230 54 9
Long-term claims liabilities 21d 42 3 - 42 3 399 — 399
6,603 3 (297 4) 6,3059 5,946 2 (223 0) 5,723 2

Included within the “Other” category disclosed in tables 21b and 21c are amounts totaling £48 4m, as at 31 December 2011, in
relation to the termination of the reinsurance agreement between the Society and Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited Further details |

on this transaction are disclosed in Note 47

b) Movement in long-term insurance contract liabilities 2012 2011

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Re:nsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m ‘
Balance at 1 January 5,852 8 (200.0) 65,6528 50380 (1205) 49175
Premiums receved 105 7 {26 1) 796 2077 (276) 1801 ‘
Liabihties paid for death maturities,
surrenders, benefits & claims {624 6) 237 (600 9) (543 6) 245 (b19 1)
New business 6524 (332) 619.2 5728 (421) 5307 ‘
Benefits and claims vanation 98 8 (01) 98 7 25 (3 4) (0 9)
Fees deducted (36 4) - (36 4) (17 4) - (17 4)
Accretion of investment income or change tn unit prices 404 1 {19) a02 2 6139 (01) 6138
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
- Mortainty/mortidity 301 (13 3) 168 (29) 95 66 |
- Investment return 356 (13) 343 (18 Q) - (18 O}
- Expense (16 7) 19 (14.8) o7 30 37
- Lapse and surrender rates (30 2) - {30 2) 112 {0 3) 109
- Discount rate {28 3) {4 1) (32 4) 768 (18 9) 579
- Model changes 632 - 632 {49 5) 1086 (389)
- Other (22 5) (75) (30 0) {58 0) 347y (927)
Mutual bonus 209 - 209 186 — 186
Balance at 31 December 6,504 9 {(2619) 6,243 0 58528 (2000) 56528
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21. Insurance contract labilities (continued)

b) Movement In long-term insurance contract liabilities {continued)

2012 2011

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Soclety £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 58284 (2000} 5,6284 5,011 8 (1656) 4,8462
Premiums received 1049 {26 1) 788 2157 (538) 1619
Liabthties paid for death maturities, surrenders,
benefits & claims {619 9) 237 {596 2) (547 5) 373 (510 2)
New bustness 652 4 {33 2) 619 2 569 8 (322) 5376
Benefits and claims varnation 991 (0 1) 99 0 0o 18 27
Fees deducted {36 4) - (36 4) (18 4) 31 {15 3}
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 404 0 {(19) 402 1 614 4 (19) 6125
Adjustment due to changes In assumptions
- Mortality/morbidity 301 (13 3) 16 8 02 {0 6) {(04)

Investment return 356 (13) 343 (18 O) - (18 0)
- Expense (16 7) 19 (14 8) 02 62 60
- Lapse and surrender rates {30 2) - (30 2) 112 (0 3) 109
- Discount rate (28 5) (41) (3286) 810 {32 8) 482
- Model changes €627 - 627 (51 4) 16 7 (34 7)
- Other (22 4) (7 5) (29 9) (59 7) 221 (37 6)
Mutual bonus 209 - 209 186 - 18 6
Balance at 31 December 6,484 0 (261 9) 6,2221 5,828 4 (200 0) 5,628 4
¢) Movement in long-term linked insurance contract liabilities
2012 2011

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m im £m £m
Balance at 1 January 779 (230) 549 68 7 (6 5) 622
Premiums recewved 812 (15 7) 655 319 (10 Q) 219
Liabilities paid for death maturities, surrenders,
benefits & claims (40 8) 142 (26 6) (35 8) 88 (27 0)
New business (12 9) (22 5) (35 4) 01 87 (8 8)
Benefits and claims vanation (9 5) (0 1) {9 6) 38 12) (5 0}
Fees deducted (6 4) - {6 4) 24) - (2 4)
Accretion of investment income or change n urit prices 35 (12) 23 05 - 05
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
- Mortality/ morbidity (91) (8 0) {17 1) 32 34 66
- Expense {15 4) 11 {14 3) (4 8) 11 (37}
- Lapse and surrender rates - - - 02 {0 1) o1
- Discount rate 86 (2 5) 61 162 {4 1) 121
- Model changes - - - 87 38 49
- Other (G1) 222 221 128 {9 5) 33
Balance at 31 December 770 {35 5) 415 77 9 (23 0) 54 9
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21. Insurance contract liabilities (continued)

¢) Movement in long-term linked insurance contract liabiltties (continued}

2012 2011
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 779 (23 0) 549 687 {50 4) 183
Premiums received 812 (15 7) 655 23¢9 (19 4) 45
Liabilities paid for death maturities, surrenders,
benefits & claims (40 8) 14 2 (26 6) (31 7) 136 {18 1)
New business (12 9) (22 5) {35 4) 29 5 1) 22)
Benefits and claims variation {95) {01) (9 6) (22) 086 {16)
Fees deducted (6 4) - (6 4) (15) 11 0 4)
Accretion of investment thcome or change In unit prices 35 {12} 23 - 07 07
- Mortaliy/morbidity {91) (8 0) (17 1) 01 (02) (01)
- Expense {15 4) 11 (14 3) (39 22 (17)
- Lapse and surrender rates - - - 02 (01) 01
- Discount rate 86 {2 5) 61 119 91) 28
- Model changes - - - (6 8) 60 {0 8)
- Other (01) 222 221 16 3 385 54 8
Balance at 31 December 770 {35 5) 415 779 (23 Q) 54 9
d) Movement in long-term claims liabllities
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £im
Balance at 1 January 400 - 400 44 6 - 44 6
Claims notified 6517 (61 8) 5899 663 1 (545) 6086
Claims paid dunng the year (649 3) 618 {587 5) (667 7) 545 (613 2)
Balance at 31 December 42 4 - 42 4 400 - 400
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 399 - 399 44 4 - 44 4
Claims notified 646 6 (61 8) 584 8 657 3 (102 4) 5549
Claims paid during the year (644 2) 618 (682 4) {661 8) 1024 (559 4)
Balance at 31 December 423 - 42 3 399 - 399
€) Movement in general insurance unearned premiums
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gress  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 747 4 {13 0) 734 4 624 7 (102) 6145
Premiums written in the year 1,484 9 (350) 1,4499 1,4556 (27 7) 1,427 9
Premiums earned dunng the year {1,486 3) 332 (1,4531) {1,332 9) 249 (1,308 0)
Balance at 31 December 746 0 (14 8) 7312 TAT 4 (130) 7344
f) Movement in general insurance claims hahiilities
2012 2011
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Remnsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 1,029 9 (100 9) 9290 840 1 (76 4) 7637
Movement in claims incurred in prior accident years 327 {23 5) 92 350 (227) 123
Claims incurred In the current accident year 1,080 1 (2565) 11,0546 9275 92y 9183
Claims paid dunng the year (855 6} 149 (840 7) (772 7) 74 (7653
Balance at 31 December 1,287 1 (1350) 1,152.1 1,029 9 {(1009) 9290
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22, Net (increase) / decrease In long-term contract liabilities

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Gross {Increase) / decrease in long-term contract liabilities
(Increase) / decrease In long-term insurance contract labtlittes {652 1) {814 8) (655 6) (816 6)
Decrease / (increase) m tong term linked insurance contract habilities 09 {9 2) 09 (92)
(Increase)} / decrease in Investment contract liabilities (81 0) 338 (81 0) 338
(732 2) {790 2} (7135 7T) (7920}
Mutual bonus {disclosed separately In Note 14) ' 209 186 209 186
{711 3) {771 6) (714 8y (773 4)
Increase / {decrease) In long-term contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers
Increase / (decrease) in long term msurance contract liabilities 619 795 619 344
Increase / (decrease) in long-term linked insurance contract lrabilities 125 16 5 125 {27 3)
74 4 96 0 74 4 71
(636 9) (675 6) (640 4) (766 3)

23. Deferred acquisition costs

Accounting for deferred acquisition costs

The costs of acquiring new business, other than for participating business, which are incurred during the financial year, but where
the benefit of such costs will be obtained in subsequent accounting penods are deferred and recognised as an asset to the extent
that they are recoverable out of margins in future matching revenues

In respect of insurance contracts, acquisition costs compnise all direct and indirect costs incurred In writing new contracts g
Deferred acquisition costs for insurance contracts are amortised over a penod which 1s consistent with the assessment of the g
expected pattern of receipt of future revenue margins for each product type a2
For investment contracts, the costs of acquinng Investment contracts are limited to the direct transaction costs associated with the 5.
acquisition of the business Deferred acquisition costs for iInvestment contracts are amortised over the expected contract penod ?<§’
2
All deferred acquisition costs are tested for recoverability at each reporting date The carrying values are adjusted to recoverable “
amounts and any resulbng impairment losses are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Long-term General Q
insurance Insurance -
contracts contracts Total =4
Group £tm £m £m 2
I
z
At 1 January 2012 - 947 247
Acquisition costs deferred - 1990 1890
Amortusation and impairment - (193 86) {193 6)
At 31 December 2012 - 1001 1001 =
-
At 1 January 2011 546 B42 1388 §,
Acquisition costs deferred 177 185 6 2033 .,;.";
Amortisation and impairment (14 2) (1751) (1893) ?b
Wnite-off following termination of remsurance contract (58 1) - {58 1) 2
At 31 December 2011 - 94 7 947
Deferred acquisition costs are all due within one year for both 2011 and 2012 '9?
i
o]
Acquisition costs are costs of acquinng new business and include commissions, underwnting expenses and policy ISsue expenses %
There were no deferred acquisition costs held by the Society in 2012 (2011 £rul) g
In 2011 the £58 1m write off In relation to the termination of the reinsurance contract was offset by a £57 4m movement in long-term E
Insurance contract liabilities disclosed within Note 21 The overall impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income was a loss of £0 7m a
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24. Reinsurance assets

Accounting for relnsurance assets

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for its long-term and general Insurance businesses Reinsurance
assets represent balances recoverabie from reinsurance companies Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner consistent with
the outstanding claims provision Reinsurance premiums are recognised In the same perniod as the underlying contract that they relate to

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes £m £m £m £m

Reinsurers’ share of provision for unearned premiums 2ia 148 130 - -
Reinsurers’ share of long-term insurance contract habihties 21a 2619 2000 2619 2000
Rewnsurers’ share of long-term linked insurance contract habilities 21a 355 230 35.5 230
Rewnsurers’ share of claims habilities 21a 1350 1009 - -
447 2 3369 2974 2230
Within one year (107 7) (33 1) (1415) (63 7)
Over one year 554.9 3700 438 9 2867
447.2 3369 2974 2230

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

25. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions

The basis of the calculation of the long-term insurance contract habilities i1s described in the accounting policies The hability 1s
calculated separately for each hfe operation Matenal judgement is required In calculating the liabiity In particular there 1s discretion
over the assumptions used For participating business, the llability 1s calculated in accordance with the FSA's realistic capital regime
adjusted to exclude the associated tax hability Non participating habilities are valued using a gross premium method

In calculating the realistic labilities, account has also been taken of future management actions consistent with those set out in the
Principles and Practices of Financital Management The most significant of these are changes to bonus assumptions and level of payouts

The assumptions used to calculate the hability depend on the circumstances prevailing in each of the Iife operations The assumptions
used in determining the hability are estimated to give a result withuin the normal range of outcomes To the extent that the ultimate cost
differs to the amounts provided, for example where experience 1s worse than that assumed, the surplus or deficit will be credited or
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in future years

When valuing options and guarantees the asset model used was the Barrie and Hibbert Market-Consistent Asset Model This 1s a
deflator mode! based on published financial economic theory that 1s capable of market-consistent valuations for multiple asset classes in
multiple currencies For this valuation 1t was calibrated to market data as at 31 December 2012 representative of the nature and term of
the guarantees inherent in participating insurance contracts within the participating insurance contract funds

The accounting policies for long-term insurance and investment contract liabiities are included within Notes 21 and 17 respectively,
sensitivities to changes n assumptions are included within Note 3

a) Society

1) Particlpating Insurance contracts

For participating insurance contracts, a market consistent valuation 1S used to calculate the hability This involves placing a value on
llabiities similar to the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns The key assumptions used in this valuation are set out in
the tables below

Interest Rates
The nsk-free interest rates assumed are

Year 2012 2011
5 0 91% 114%
15 2 60% 281%
25 3.29% 33"
35 3.62% 3 48%

Other assumptions
Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption 1s
modelled as RPI plus 0 5% (2011 RPI plus O 7%), where RPl in both 2012 and 2011 15 modelled stechastically

Asset mix for assets backing asset shares at the valuation date 2012 2011
Cash 2 38% 273%
Fixed interest 40 68% 39 75%
Equities 48 79% 49 45%

Property 8 15% BO7%
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25. Long-term Insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions {continued)

Mortality rate tables

2012

2011

Conventional Life Business
Conventional Pensions Business
Conventional Industrial Branch Business

Non Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business
Unitised Accumulating Life Business

Uniised Accumulating Pensions Business
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business
Unitised Accumulating Life ISA Business
Annuities in Payment

75% AM80 Femnales -3
60% AMBO Females -3
80% up to age 80, rising linearly
to 100% at age 100 ELT16

65% AMBO
80% AMBO/AFB0
80% AMBO
80% AMBO
80% AMBO0 select/AF80 select
Males* RMY00 CMI_2009 2% LT
Females RFVOQ CMI_2009 1.5% LT

75% AM8B0 Females -3
65% AMB0 Females -3
80% up to age 80, nsing linearly to
100% at age 100 ELT16

65% AM8BO
80% AMSO0/AFB0
80% AMSBO
80% AMEO
80% AMB80 select/AF80 select
Males RMVYOQ0 CMI_2009 2% LT
Females RFV00 CMI_2009 1 5% LT

Per policy expenses — regular premiums 2012 2011
Conventional Life Business £34 90 £32 60
Conventional Pensions Business £45 30 £42 00
Conventional Industral Branch Business £6 80 £6 90
Non Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £28 30 £26 30
Unitised Accumulating Life Business £40 50 £36 50
Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £45 30 £42 00
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business £42 80 £37 50
Unitised Accumufating Life ISA Business £49 20 £43 40
Annuities in Payment £48 20 £43 40

A percentage of these amounts 1s used for single premium and paid up policies

Persistency - lapses, surrenders and paid up rates

A review of persistency 1s carned out annually Assumptions for each product class are adjusted where necessary to reflect more recent
experience as evidenced in the persistency trend analysis or to reflect expected future trends as a result of anticipated future events

Options and guarantees

There are no guaranteed annuity or financial options within the Society participating contract funds There 1s an additional reserve
calculated on a market consistent basis to cover market value restncter (MVR) free guarantees on with-profits bonds

Bonuses

The cost of bonuses incurred dunng the year ended 31 December 2012 was £96 3m (2011 £84 6m) of which £19 6m (2011 £22 5m)
was Included in the long:term insurance contract liabilities and £76 7m (2011 £62 1m}was included in Gross benefits and claims paid

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

il} Non participating Insurance contracts

Interest rate 2012 2011
Non-profit temporary assurances (original LVFS) 2 40% 190%
Non-profit temporary assurances Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Whole of life assurances Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Permanent health insurance

a) actve lives Yield Curve* 2 50%*
b) claims reserves Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Cntical iliness Yield Curve* 2 50%*
Other assurances Yleld Curve* 2 50%*
Annurties Iin payment Yield Curve* + 1 2% 4 00%

* Adjusted by a margin for risk and uncertainty whrch varies by product line
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25. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilitles valuation assumptions (continued)

Mortality rate tables 2012 2011
Non-profit temporary assurances (original LYFS} AMBO/AF80 AMBO/AF80
Non-profit temporary assurances TMNOO,/TMS00 TFNOO/TFS00 TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOO/TFSO0
Whole of life assurances AMCO0/AFCO0 AMCOQ/AFCOO
Other assurances AMS2/AF92 AMO2Z/AF92
Annuities (in payment Males 100% RGA 2011 tables Males 100% RGA 2011 tables
with CMI_2009 1 25% LT with CMI_2009 1 25% LT
Females 100% RGA 2011 tables Females 100% RGA 2011 tables
with CMi_2009 1% LT with CMI_2009 1% LT

Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard mortalty tables to take account of actual experience and publicly available market
data

Morbidity rate tables 2012 2011
Permanent health insurance

a) active lives CMIR12 CMIR12

b) claims reserves CMIR12 CMIR12
Cntical iliness Relnsurer rates Remsurer rates

Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard morbidity tables to take account of actual experience and publicly available market
data

Per policy expenses - regular premiums 2012 2011
Non-profit temporary assurances £18 15 £18 11
Whole of life assurances £14 71 £16 06
Permanent health insurance

a) active lives £27 54 £25 16
b) claims reserves {per policy in ¢laim}) £650 49 £552 29
Critical diness £27 61 £29 86
Other assurances £34 93 £32 54
Annuities in payment £48 00 £38 00

Other assumptions
Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption s
modelled as RPI (2011 RPI + O 7%)

Options and guarantees
There are no significant options and guarantees in the non-participating business

ili) Investment and long-term linked insurance contracts

The provision for urt hinked pensions 1s equal to the value of the assets to which the contracts are linked There 1s one product included
within the hinked fund which is classified as an investment product and the lability 15 included within the long-term linked insurance
contract habilities

The prowvision for property-linked liabilities 15 equal to the value of the assets to which the contracts are linked and (s included within
investment contract habiities

The provisions for index-linked permanent health insurance claims and index-linked temporary assurances have been calculated using the
same mortality and morbidity assumptions as used for the corresponding non-inked habilitigs for both 2012 and 2011

Interest rate 2012 2011
Unit inked pensions (onginal LVFS) Gilt yield + risk premlum + margin for risk and uncertainty 1 90%
Mortality rate tables 2012 2011
Unit linked pensions (original LVFS) 92% AX92C20 80% AX92C20

b) Liverpoo! Victoria Life Company Limited - Ordinary Long Term Fund

i) Participating insurance contracts
Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited has no participating business
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25. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

ii) Non participating insurance contracts

Interest rate 2012 2011

Non-profit temporary assurances 176% 1 88%

Cther assurances 176% 1 88%

Mortality rate tables 2012 2011

Non-profit temporary assurances TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOC/TFS00 TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOQ/TFSO0
Other assurances AM92/AF92 AMO2/AFS2

Appropnate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tables to take account of actual experience

Per policy expenses — regular premlums 2012 2011
Non-profit temporary assurances £27 17 £19 92
Other assurances £27 17 £3579

Optlons and guarantees
There are no significant options and guarantees in the non-participating business

¢} RNPFN fund
RNPFN denotes Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses, which I1s a ring-fenced fund The free assets attributabie to this fund are
reported as insurance contract habilities of the Society

i) Particlpating business
For participating business, a market-consistent valuation 1s used to calculate the liability This involves placing a value on habilities similar to
the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns The key assumptions used i this valuation are set aut iy the tables helow

Interest Rates
The risk-free interest rates assumed are

Year 2012 2011
41 091% 114%
15 260% 281%
25 3 39% 337%
35 3 62% 3 48%

Other assumptions
Best estrmate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption I1s
modelled as RPI plus 0 5% (2011 RPI plus O 7%), where RPIin both 2012 and 2011 s modelled stochastically

Asset mix for assets backing asset shares at the

valuation date 2012 2011

Cash 16 32% 14 03%
Fixed interest 57 59% 57 86%
Equities 23 47% 25 40%
Property 262% 271%
Mortality rate tables 2012 2011
Conventional Life Business 60% AM /FO0O ult 100% AM/F92 ult
Life Deferred Annuities 50% AM/F0O ult 100% AM/FO2 ult
Pension Deferred Annuities 50% AM/FO00 ult 100% AM/F92 ult
Unitised with-profits Business 60% AM/F0O ult 100% AB7/70 ult
Per policy expenses - regular premiums 2012 2011
Conventional Life Business £34 84 £3253
Pensions Deferred Annuities £45.34 £42 06

Life Deferred Annuities £34.84 £3251
Unitised with-profits ISA £49 30 £43 06
Unitised with-profits Bond £41 18 £38 14
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25, Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions {continued)

Persistency - lapses, surrenders and pald up rates
A review of persistency 1s carned out annually Assumptions are adjusted where necessary to reflect more recent experience as evidenced in the
persistency trend analysis or to reflect expected future trends as a result of anticipated future events

Options and guarantees
The provisions held in respect of guaranteed annuity options are determined on a market consistent basis The total amount provided in respect
of the future costs of the guaranteed annuity options was £92 3m (2011 £86 &m)

Bonuses

The cost of bonuses curred dunng the year ended 31 December 2012 was £15 9m (2011 £21 Om) of which £0 7m (2011 £0 8m) was
included In the long-term nsurance contract liabilities and £15 2m (2011 £20 2m) was included 1n gross benefits and clams paid in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income

ii} Non participating business

Interest rate 2012 2011
Non-profits assurances 1 68% 144%
Non-profits general deferred annuities 1 68% 144%
Annusties in Payment (post 31/12/91) 1 68% 144%
Annuities in Payment (other) 210% 1 80%
Pension Deferred Annuities 2 10% 1 80%
Mortality rate tables 2012 2011
Non profits assurances 72 0% AM/FO0 ult 115% AM/F92 ult
Non-profits general deferred annuities 42 5% AM/F00 ult 85% AM/F92 ult
Annuities In Payment (Male) 61 2% as 2011 basls up to 2007, 61 2% IMLOO with improvements of
then CMI_2009, with 120% medium cohort over 2000 to 2004
a long-term improvement and future improvements 120%
rate of 2 0% medium cohart subject to a floor of 1 5%
Annuities i Payment (Female) 72.3% as 2011 basis up to 2007, 72 3% IFLOO with improvements of
then CMI_2009, with a long-term greater of 90% of medium cohort and
improvement rate of 1 5% CMIR17 over 2000 to 2004 and future

improvements of greater of 90%
medium cohert and CMIR17
subject to a floor of 1 5%

Pension Deferred Annuities 42 5% AM/FO00 ult 85% AM/F32 ult
Appropnate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tables to take account of actual experence and publicly avaitable market data

The provision for inked and unitised with-profits contracts 1s equal to the value of the units A non-unit llability consistimg mainly of a sterling
reserve calculated by carrying out cash flow projections on appropnate bases 1s included within the hability

Optlons and guarantees
There are no sigruficant options or guarantees In the non participating business

ill) Linked fund

The provision for unit inked assurances 1s equal to the value of the assets to which the contracts are linked There are two products included
within the linked fund, one 1s classified as an nsurance product and the liabiity 1s included within the life and pension unit inked Insurance
contract rabiliies, the other i1s classified as an investment product and the hability 1s included within the investment contract liabilves

Interest rate 2012 2011
Unit inked assurances 1 68% 1 44%
Mortality rate tables 2012 2011

Unit inked assurances 72% AM/F00 ult 115% AM/F92 ult
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Fixed assets and investments
This section gives detail on the tangible, intangible and investment assets of the Soclety and Group that are used to generate profit for the
business

286. Intangible assets

Accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwlll

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identfiable assets of the acqusred 1:
subsidiary/associate at the acquisition date and s included tn intangible assets Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment at the end of the first fult
year of acquisition Thereafter, it 1s tested at each Statement of Financial Position date for imparrment against the recoverable amount (being the
higher of value in use or fair value less cost) of the relevant cash generating unit and cammed in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less
accumulated impairment losses Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions prior to 1998 has been elminated against the Unallocated divisible surplus This goodwill woufd be recognised in |
the Statement of Comprehensive Income should there be a subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates

Other Intangibles
Where an acquisition takes place that gives access to existing customers, distnbution channels or the night to charge for investment or policy
administration services, the present value of these 1s recogruised as an intangble asset

The carrying value of the asset 1s amortised, on a straight line basis over its expected economic hife, and 1s assessed annually for impairment

The expected economic life of other intangibles carned by the Group 1s determined by reference to acquired business, considering factors such as
the remaining terms of agreements, the normal lives of refated products and the competitive position, and hes within the range of 10 to 20 years

Present value of acqulired in-force business (PVIF)

On acguisition of a portfolio of long term Insurance contracts, the net present value of the Group s interest in the expected cash flows of the
inforce business Is capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position as an asset and 1s amortised, in ine with the onginal expected run-off
of 20 years, based on the anticipated lives of the related contracts

The carrying value of the asset Is assessed annually using current assumptions In order to determine whether any impairment has arisen,
compared to the amortised acquired value

Any amortisation or impairment charge 1s recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within other operating and admenistrative
expenses

Significant accounting estimates and judgements
The Group determines whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired at least on an annual basis This requires an estimation of

the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill 15 allocated The Group has allocated the goodwill to two single cash
generating units based on the key operating segments of the Group

‘ sassamsng InQ ‘ SMIATY PUR SIUSIEIS

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwll 15 reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently when there are indicators that impairment may have occurred, by comparnng
the carrying value to its recoverable amount The recoverable amount of the ¢ash generating unit 1s based on value-n-use calculations The
calculations are based upon discounting expected pre-tax cash flows at a nsk-adjusted interest rate appropnate to the cash generating unit,
the determination of both of which requires the exercise of judgement The estimation of pretax cash flows Is sensitive to the periods for
which forecasts are available and to assumptions regarding the long-term sustamable cash flows While forecasts are compared with actual
performance and external economic data, expected cash flows reflect management’s view of future performance
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Details of the key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amounts and the carrying value at the reporting date are contatned
at the end of this note
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26. Intangible assets (continued)

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets PVIF Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost-
At 1 January 2012 2360 951 634 3945
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Increase in buy out value (see Note 40) 24 - - 24
At 31 December 2012 2384 951 63 4 3969
Accumulated amortisation N
At 1 January 2012 206 68 3 44 1 1330
Charge for the year - 81 39 120
Disposals - - - -
Impairment in year - - - -
At 31 December 2012 206 76 4 480 145 0
Net book value at 31 December 2012 2178 18 7 154 2519
Cost
At 1 January 2011 2307 951 634 389 2
Increase 1n buy out value 5 3y - - 53
At 31 December 2011 2360 951 63 4 394 5
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2011 206 598 396 1200
Charge for the year - 85 45 130
At 31 December 2011 206 68 3 44 1 1330
Net book value at 31 December 2011 2154 26 8 193 2615

Present Value of acquired In-Force business (PVIF) 1s amortised n line with the onginal expected run off of 20 years, ending in 2018,
based on the market value of the life policies

Other intangible assets comprise the value of the future benefit denved from the customer bases of RNPFN {(in the Society),
Britannia Road Rescue and Highway, and the value of the Tomorrow/Retirement Solutions distnbution channel

Amortisation of £12 Om (2011 £13 Om) 1s presented within Other operating and administrative expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income There 1s no impairment in 2042 (2011 £ni)

Goodwill has been allocated to the individual cash generating units which are based on the key segments of the Group as follows

Growp
2012 2011
m m
Long-term insurance business 66 7 66 7
General insurance business 1717 169 3

238 4 236 0
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26. Intangible assets {(continued)

Other
Intangible
assets
Soctety £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 509
At 31 December 2012 509
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 46 3
Charge for the year 46
At 31 December 2012 509
Net book value at 31 December 2012 -
Cost
At 1 January 2011 509
At 31 December 2011 509
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2011 416
Charge for the year 47
At 31 December 2011 46 3
Net book value at 31 December 2011 46

Key assumptions used in the annual impairment testing of intanglble assets
The key assumptions used for impairment testing are set out below for both the long-term insurance business and the general insurance business
The long-term insurance business (ncorporates both the Heritage and Life businesses

Long-term insurance business

The recoverable amount of the long-term insurance business has been determined using cash flow predictions based on financial plans approved
by management covenng a five-year period, with a termmal growth rate of 2% applied thereafter The forecast cash flows have been discounted at
a pre-tax rate of 10% Based con the above assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount incluging goodwll by £156 8m

A two percentage point increase In the discount rate would reduce the recoverable amount by £52 3m, the discount rate would need to be
increased to 23% to reduce the recoverable amount to zero

A reduction n the forecast cash flows of 10% per annum would reduce the recoverable amount by £55 7m, the forecast cash flows would need to
be reduced by 25% per annum to reduce the recoverable amount to zero

‘ SMDTATY PUE SIUILANLIS

General insurance business

The recoverable amount of the general insurance bustness has been determined using cash flow predictions based on financial plans approved
by management covenng a five-year peniod, with a terminal growth rate of 2% apphied thereafter The forecast cash flows have been discounted at
a pretax rate of 10% Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill by £755 1m

A two percentage point increase in the discount rate would reduce the recoverable amount by £285 9m, the discount rate would need to be
increased to 20% to reduce the recoverable amount to zero

A reduction in the forecast cash flows of 20% per annum would reduce the recoverable amount by £151 4m, the forecast cash flows would need
to be reduced by 50% per annum to reduce the recoverable amount to zero
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27. Property and equipment

Accounting for property and equipment

Operational property and equipment are held at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes the onginal purchase price of the asset and

the costs attnbutable to bringing the asset to its working condition for 1ts intended use Both property and equipment are depreciated on a
straight ine basis over thew estimated useful ives The penods used are as follows

Freehold buildings and finance lease property* 50 years

Leasehoid property enhancements™* 10 years or lease term If shorter
Fixtures, fittings and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

IT systems (spend over £1m) 3 years

Prowiston 1s made for any 'imparment in property and equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful ives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each Statement of Financial Position date
Assets under construction represent the cost of assets under development These assets are not depreciated, the total cost 1s transferred
to the appropriate asset class on completion and then depreciated over their estimated useful lives

*These are properties used by the Group for operational purposes and are not investment properties which are dealt with in Note 28

Fixtures,
Freehold and Loasehold fittings Assats
feasehold property and mator under

property hicl IT 8y truct Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 January 2012 411 91 79 21 - 60 2
Additions 02 35 23 10 - 70
hsposals - (0 5) (0 1) - - {0 6)
At 31 December 2012 413 121 101 31 - 66 6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 321 36 37 02 - 396
Provided in the year i0 10 07 o7 - 34
Disposals - 02 (0 1) - - (03)
At 31 December 2012 331 44 43 09 - 42 7
Net book value at 31 December 2012 82 77 58 22 - 239
Cost
At 1 January 2011 411 79 74 - 09 573
Additions - 12 o7 12 - 31
Disposals - - (02) - - (0 2}
Transfers - - - (o 5°] {09) -
At 31 December 2011 411 91 79 21 - 60 2
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011 311 28 33 - - 372
Provided in the year 10 08 06 02 - 26
Disposals - - (02) - - (0 2)
At 31 December 2011 321 36 37 02 - 398
Net book value at 31 December 2011 90 55 42 19 - 206

Included within the Freehold and leasehold property category are assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £5 2m
(2011 £5 7m)

During 2011 £0 9m of assets were transferred from Assets under construction to IT systems representing the development cost of the

claims centre computer system that became operational in 2011
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27. Property and equipment (continued)
Fixtures,
Leasahold fittings
property and motor
t hick Total
Society £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 47 60 107
Additions 16 15 31
Disposals 085 (O8] (0 6}
At 31 December 2012 58 74 132
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 23 34 57
Provided n the year 04 04 08
Disposals C2) - (02)
At 31 December 2012 25 a8 63
Net book value at 31 December 2012 33 36 69
Cost
At 1 January 2011 45 60 105
Additions 02 02 04
Disposals - (02) (02)
At 31 December 2011 47 60 107
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011 19 31 50
Provided in the year 04 04 o8
Disposals - 01) (01)
At 31 December 2011 23 34 57
Net book value at 31 December 2011 24 26 50
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28. Investment properties

Accounting for Investment properties

Investment properties are freehold and |easehold land and buildings held for long-term rental yields and capital growth They are held at
fair value and changes In fair value are recorded as fair value gains or losses In the Statement of Comprehensive Income Fair value 15
determined annually by independent professional valuers based on market conditions

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Freeholds 1291 183 8 96 1 1153
Long leaseholds 3586 361 356 361
164 7 2199 131 7 151 4

All iInvestment properties held by the Group and the Society are occupied by third party tenants All properties occupied by Group
undertakings are shown separately within Note 27

The market value movements In the year on land and bulldings were

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £em £im
Balance at 1 January 2199 3154 151 4 246 6
Additions 02 125 02 29
Disposals (49 1) {89 2) (16 4) {89 2)
Net fair value adjustment (6 3) {18 8) (3.5) (8 9)
Balance at 31 December 164 7 2199 131.7 151 4
Due withint one year 475 - 145 -
Over one year 117 2 2199 117 2 151 4
164.7 2199 131 7 151 4

Investment properties due within one year represent £33m of properties held within the Threadneedle UK Property Fund i ICVC thatis in
the process of being wound up (refer Note 45) and an additional property held directly by the Society that 1s 1n the process of being sold

All investment properties are valued annually at farr value They were valued as at 31 December 2012 by qualified professional valuers
working for Colliers International (UK) Plc who are professional, third party, independent Chartered Surveyors All valuations were carried
out In accordance with the RICS Appraisat and Valuation Standards

The Group and Society enter into operating leases for all investment properties All rents are payable in advance and the rental income
ansing during the year amounted to £8 1m (2011 £8 9m) for the Group and the Society, which Is included in investment income

Non recaverable expenses are deducted from rental income for Investment properties and amounted to £2 Om {2011 £1 8m) for the
Group and the Society
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29. Investments in group undertakings

Accounting for Investments in group undertakings

The subsidiaries are held in the Society’s Statement of Financial Position at cost less any provision for impaiment  An assessment of
the reahisable value 1s made at the year end and, if the Directors assess that there has been a permanent fall in that value below the
carrying value, a provision 1s made to bring the carrying value down to the assessed realisable value

2012 2011
Society £m £m
Shares in subsldiaries
Cost less provisions at 1 January 7232 748 3
Additions 399 6 40
Sale of LVGIG Group to subsidiary undertaking (484 6) -
Increase / (reduction) tn buy out provision (refer to Note 40) 24 53
Impairment wte-off (90 O) (34 4)
5506 1232
Loan stock in subsidiaries
Cost at 1 January 234 4 2232
Additions 3003 112
Redemption (183 0) -
3517 2344
Shares and loan stock in subsidlarles at 31 December 902 3 957 6

During the year the Society sold its investment in Liverpool Victona General insurance Group Limited (LVGIG) to LV Capital PLC,
a subsidiary undertaking at cost In addition the Society invested in £300m of loan notes 1ssued by LV Capital PLC

The Saciety made capital contributions during 2012 of £nil to Liverpool Victoria General insurance Group Limited (2011 £4m),
these are disclosed within additions n the table above

The Society has examined the carrying value of its subsidiaries and concluded that a provision for impairment of £90m was necessary
in regard to its investment in Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited {2011 £28 1m), this impairment arose due to the payment of
dividends to the Society thereby reducing the value of the company

Further details of the Group’s loan stock are given in Note 47 and the Group's investments in Notes 43 and 44
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Other assets and liabilities

This section describes the other assets and liabilitles arising from the life insurance business within the Society and the life

Insurance and general insurance businesses within the Group

30. Insurance receivables

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m im £m £m
Due from policyholders 1481 1351 10 38
Due from agents, brokers and intermedianes 675 748 - -
Due from reinsurers 117 66 1.6 64
227 3 216 5 12.6 102
Insurance recevables are all due within one year for both the Group and the Soctety
The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate far value at the Statement of Financial Position date
31. Prepayments and accrued income
Groimp Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Accrued dvidends 40 35 156 11
Accrued interest 823 45 2 527 386
Other prepayments and accrued income 203 126 101 84
106 6 613 64 3 48 1
Prepayment and accrued income balances are alt due within one year for both the Group and the Society
32. Insurance payables
Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Due to policyholders 332 301 255 301
Due to brokers and intermedianes 0.4 08 04 08
Due to reinsurers 11 107 03 07
44 7 416 26 2 316

The carrying amounts disclosed above reascnably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

33. Trade and other payables

Accounting for trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised as they falt due They are measured inbially at farr value and subsequently at amortised cost

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m im £m £m
Trade payables 158 112 154 105
Amounts owed to group undertakings . 371 377
Other taxes and social secunty costs 313 322 94 101
Other creditors 49 8 595 158 217
Deferred rental income 33 33 26 22
Finance lease liabilities 50 51 - -
Accruals and deferred income 885 94 3 559 652
193 7 2058 136 2 147 4

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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Taxation

This section presents Information relating to tax charge and movements In the corporation and deferred tax assets and liabilities held

by the Society and Group

34. Income tax expense

- Current income tax

Current income tax habities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authonties
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of

Financial Position date

- Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s recogmised, using the liability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and
llabihties and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax rates
(and laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and are expected to apply when the

related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled Deferred income tax assets are recogrised to the

extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

a) Current year tax charge

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Current tax charge
Current year 200 393 856 239
Adjustment in respect of prior years {2 5} 54 02 66
Total current tax 175 a4 7 87 3056
Deferred tax
Excess of depreciation 02 10 (03) -
Adjustment n respect of prior years - (10 5) - (69
Temporary differences 128 {7 B) 50 33
Tax losses 38 145 - -
Total deferred tax 168 {2 5) 47 3 6)
Total income tax expense 343 422 134 269
b) Reconciliation of tax charge
Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£Em £m £m £m

Profit/(loss) before tax 103 2 (16 9) 33 (47 7)
Tax calculated at the average standard rate of corporation tax in the UK at 24 5%
(2011 26 5%) 253 {4 5) o8 127)
Income and expenses not subject to tax {18) 132 27 17
impact of change in UK corporation tax rate on deferred tax 05 o7 - -
Unprovided deferred tax asset (111) 221 (11 1) 221
Transfer pricing - - 25 -
Policyholder tax 239 158 237 161
Adjustment to current tax charge In respect of prior years (25) 54 02 66
Adjustment to deferred tax charge In respect of pnor years (10 5) - [(R:))]
Total charge 343 42 2 134 269

The standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK changed from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012

accounting pertod are taxed, where applicable, at an effective rate of 24 5%

35. Corporation tax asset

Accordingly, the profits for this

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m Zm
Corporation tax recevable - - 20
- - 20
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36. Deferred tax asset

Group Society
T &m — &m
Balance at 1 fanuary 2012 310 177
Amounts recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (16 8) {47)
Balance at 31 December 2012 14 2 130
Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
1} Analysis of deferred taxation temporary differences £m £m £m £m
Excess of depreciation 30 30 08 05
Temporary differences on expenses 114 185 122 192
Temporary differences ansing on consolidation {1 6) (2 3) - -
Temporary differences on unrealised gains 14 80 - {(20)
Tax losses - 38 - -
Deferred tax asset 14 2 310 13 0 177
Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
ii) Deferred taxation asset not recognised £m £m £m £m
Temporary differences on expenses 223 96 223 96
Temporary differences on unrealised gains (14 9) {4 8) {14 9) (4 8)
Temporary difference for changes in actuarial base 08 59 08 (5 9)
Tax losses unrecognised 192 336 139 276
274 325 221 265

The value of deferred tax assets expected to be recovered after more than 12 months 1s £7 6m In the Group (2011 £9 8m) and £7 7m
in the Society (2011 £12 4m)

Deferred tax balances have been measured taking into account the change in the rate of UK Corporation Tax from 24% to 23%
This change was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012 and will be effective from 1 April 2013

In addition to the changes in rates of Corporation Tax disclosed above, a number of further changes to the UK Corporation Tax system
were announced in the 2013 draft Finance Bill and the March 2013 Budget Statement Further reductions to the main rate are proposed
to reduce the rate to 21% by 1 April 2014 and then to 20% by 1 April 2015 These further changes had not been substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these financial statements Furthermore, the Finance Act 2012 introduced
changes to the taxation of UK life companies, which will take effect from 1 January 2013 These changes have been taken into account
in caleulating the deferred tax position of the Society as at 31 December 2012 The irmpact of these changes has been to reduce the
value of deferred tax assets by £5 1m when compared to the value of these assets had the changes not taken place

The valuation and recoverabifity of deferred tax assets relating to capital allowances in excess of depreciation, differences on expenses
and gamns and tax losses, 1s dependent on the availability of future taxable profits within the Society and Group Management forecasts
currently support the future recoverability of the deferred tax asset recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2012

37. Corporation tax liahility

Group Soclaty
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Corporation tax 76 284 - 130

76 284 - 130
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Employee benefits
This section details the costs and commitments assoclated with employing our staff.

38. Employee benefits expense

Accounting for staff costs under IAS19
The Society and Group applies IAS 19 Employee benefits in its accounting for staff costs

Short-term employee henefits .
Salaries, acerued bonuses and soglal secunty costs are recognised aver the period in which the employees pravide the services to which

the payments relate

Post retirement beneflts
The accounting policies and significant accounting judgements relating to pension benefits are disclosed within Note 39

Group Soclety
2042 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Wages and salanes 181.9 1727 1819 1727
Social security costs 17.2 i61 172 161
Defined benefit and defined contribution pension costs 17.3 209 173 209
216.4 209 7 216.4 2097

The number of employees during the year, including executive directors, calculated on a monthly average basis, was as follows

Group Soclety
2012 2031 2012 2011
Number Number Number Number
Member and customer contact 3,782 3,269 3,782 3,269
Administration 1,670 1,513 1,670 1,513
5,452 4,782 5,452 4,782
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39. Pension benefit asset / (obligation)

Accounting for pension benefits under IAS12

For defined benefit schemes, the net surplus or deficit I1s calculated annually with the assets measured at the fair value at the Statement |
of Financial Position date and the habilities discounted at the rate of return available on high quality corporate bonds The net surplus, w
to the extent recoverable, or deficit 1s recognised as a pension benefit asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position

The penston cost for the schemes 1s analysed between current service cost, past service cost and net return on pension scheme assets
Current service cost IS the actuanally calculated present value of the benefits earned by the active employees in each period Past
service costs, relating to empioyee service In prior periods ansing in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or improvement
to, retirement benefits, are recognised in Other operating and administrative expenses on a straight-line basis over the penod in which
the increases In benefits vest or are earned

All movements other than actuarial gains and losses 1n respect of the pension benefit obligation are recognised in other operating and
administrative expenses In the Statement of Comprehensive Income Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income after profit/(loss) before tax and are disclosed net of tax

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The valuations of the pension benefit obligations for the two defined benefit schemes are determined using actuanal valuations These
involve making assumptions about discount rates, expected future returns on assets, future salary increases, longevity and future
pension increases Due to the long-term nature of these obligations, the estimates are subject to significant uncertainty

Detalls of the pnincipal assumptions used for each of the defined benefit schemes are disclosed within the valuations of the individual
schemes disclosed in sections (1) and () below

i} Summary

Pension henefit asset/{obligation)
2012 2011
LV Schems Ockham Total LV Scheme Ockham Totat
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Asset - - - 1081 - 1081
Obligation (77) (25) (10 2) - 12 (12)
(77) {2.5) {10.2}) 108 1 (12) 1069
Actuarial net (loss)/gain
2012 2011
LV Scheme Ockham Total LV Scheme Ockham Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Actuartal net {loss) / gain (138 0) {7 5) (145 5) 66 5 39 704
Income tax credit/{expense) - - - - {07} {07}
Amount charged to total comprehensive income (138 0) (75) (1455) €66 5 32 697

Cumulative actuarial gain/(loss) recognlsed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income 44 0 {07) 433 182 0 68 1888
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39. Penslon benefit asset/(obligation) {continued)

{l} LV Scheme

a} Information about the scheme

The Soctety 15 responsible for the LV= Employee Pension Scheme (LV Scheme), a defined benefit pension scheme The scheme closed
to new entrants on 31 December 2009 and on 1 November 2012 1t was announced that the scheme would close to future accrual for
existing members from July 2013 Accordingly allowance has been made for the closure to future accrual within the 31 December 2012
figures with a curtarlment gain being recognised as a remeasurement event at the year end reporung date

On 6 December 2012 the Trustees of the LV Scheme entered into a Longevity Swap to mitigate the future mortality risk Further details
on this are included within the Business Review section

From 1 January 2011 the rate of increase in deferred pensions changed from being refated to RPI to CPI The impact of this was a
reduction in the calculation of the liabilities

b) Net Statement of Financlal Poslitlon

2012 2011
£m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation (1,052 0) (242 0)
Fawr value of plan assets 10513 10501
Pension benefit {obligatton)/asset at the end of the year {(77) 1081
2012 2011
The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows £m £m
Beginning of year 9420 854 4
Current service cost 220 191
Interest cost 44 4 46 2
Gam on curtaiment (13 0) - g
Actuanal losses 104 3 64 4 g
Benefits paid (371) (39 2) e
Past service cost 01 05 &
Administrative expenses paid (37) (34) §.
End of year 1,059 0 942 0 E
2012 2011 S
The movement In the fair value of plan assets over the year is as follows £m £m -
Beginmng of year 1,060t 8703
Expected return on plan assets 429 47 9 9
Actuanal (losses)/gains (337) 1309 =
Employer contributions 328 436 g
Benefits paid {(371) (392) g
Administrative expenses paid (37) (3 4)
! End of year 1,0513 1.0501
g
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39. Pension benefit asset/{obligation) (continued)
ii) LV Scheme {continued}

2012 2011
¢} Amounts recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income £m £m
Current service cost 220 191
interest cost 44 4 462
Expected return on assets {42 9) (47 9)
Curtailment gain (13 0) -
Past service cost 01 05
Amount charged to income 106 179
Actuanal net loss/{gain} 1380 (66 5)
Total amount charged/{credited) to comprehensive Income 148 6 (48 6)
The actual return on plan assets was £9 2m (2011 £178 8m)

d) Principal assumptions used 2012 2011
Discount rate 41% 4 7%
Rate of salary mcrease 3 0% 3 65%
Expected return on plan assets n/a 4 1%
RPI Inflation 30% 29%
CPI Inflation 2 0% 20%
Pension icreases for in-payment benefits

- RPI pnce inflation capped at 5% pa, floor of 3% pa 35% 35%
- RPI price inflation capped at 5% pa 30% 29%
- RPI pnce inflation capped at 2 5% pa 2 2% 21%
- CPI price inflation capped at 3 0% pa 19% 19%
Pension increases for deferred benefits

- pre 6 Aprit 2009 accrual 20% 2 0%
- post 8 April 2009 accrual 20% 2 0%
Scheme member valuation date 31 March 2012 31 March 2009
Mortality for members is assumed to follow the tables below as at 31 December 2012

Pre-retirement moertality Deferred pensioners

- Males 1NMA x 0 95 table  1NMA x O 95 table
- Females 1NFA x 0 98 table 1NFA x O 98 table
Postretirement mortality Non-pensioners

- Males LV specific tables from Club Vita  1NMA x O 95 table
- Females (former employees) LV specific tables from Club Vita 1NFA x O 98 table
- Females (dependants} LV specific tables from Club Vita ANFA x 1 12 table
Post-retirement mortality current pensioners and dependants

- Males LV specific tables from Club Vita  1NMA x O 85 table
- Females (former employees) LV specific tables from Club Vita ANFA x O 88 table
- Females (dependants) LV specific tables from Club Vita 1 NFA x 1 02 table

In all cases as at 31 December 2012 CMI Core 2011 projections with a long term trend of 1 25% have been applied (31 December
2011 medwum cohort improvements have been applied from 2002 onwards and from 2009 a mimimum annual rate of improvement of
1 25%pa has been apphed)
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39. Pension benefit asset/{obligation) {continued)
i) LV Scheme (continued)

e) Sensitivity analysis Impact on defined benefit obligation of making changes to key assumptions

Change In assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate Increase by 0 25% Decrease by £48 Om (4 6%)
Inflation rate Increase by 0 25% Increase by £30 5m (2 9%)
Cash commutation Nil Increase by £16 1m (1 5%)
Mortality improvements long term rate Increase by 0 25% Increase by £14 Om (1 3%}
f) Plan asset Information
Plan assets are compnsed as follows Aliocation  Allocation
percentage  percentage
2012 2011
Equities 14.5% 11 3%
Debt secunties 734% 690%
Real estate/property 8 6% 8 9%
Other 3.5% 10 8%
Total 100 0% 100 0%

Expected contributions to the scheme for the year ending 31 December 2013 are £20m

g) Historical disclosure information 2012 2011 2010 2000 2008
Em £m im £m £m

Asset experience

Asset (gains)/losses dunng year 33.7 {130 9) (639) (304) 1076
Liability experience

Obligation (gains)/losses dunng year 17.2 32 (14 6) (15 5)

Funded status

Defined benefit obligation {1,059 0) {942 0} (854 4) {813 9) (667 1)
Fair value of assets 1,051 3 1,050 1 8703 7297 6717
Net asset/(obligation) {77} 108 1 159 (84 2) 46

h) Defined contribution penslon schemes
New employees are eligible to join the defined contnbution scheme The assets of this scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund The Group's contnibution under this scheme amounted to £5 8m (2011 £4 2m)
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39. Pension benefit asset/{obhgation) (continued)
iii) Ockham Penslon Scheme

a) Information about the scheme

The Society 1s responsible for the Ockham Pension Scheme, a defined benefit scheme that 1s closed to new entrants

2012 2011

b) Net Statement of Financial Position £m Em
Present value of defined benefit obligation {117 5) (107 Q)
Fair value of plan assets 1150 105 8
Penston benefit obligation at the end of the year (2 5) (12)
2012 2011

The movement in the defilned benefit obligation over the year is as follows £m £m
Beginning of year 1070 976
Interest cost 49 52
Actuanal losses 96 48
Benefits paid (40} 37
Past service cost - 31
End of year 117 5 107 Q
2012 2011

The movement in the fair value of plan assets over the year is as follows £m im
Beginning of year 1058 88 8
Expected return on plan assets 40 50
Actuarial gains 21 87
Employer contributions 71 70
Benefits paid (4 0) {37)
End of year 1150 105 8
2012 2011

¢) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income £m £m
Interest cost 49 52
Expected return on assets (4 0) (5 0}
Past service cost - 31
Amount charged to income 09 33
Actuanal net loss/{gain} 75 39
Total amount charged/{credited) to comprehensive Income 8 4 {0 6)

The actual return on plan assets was £6 1m (2011 £13 7m}
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39. Pension benefit asset/(obligation) (continued)

i) Ockham Pension Scheme (continued)

d) Principal assumptions used 2012 2011
Discount rate 41% 4 7%
Rate of salary increase 3 00% 365%
Expected return on plan assets n/a 37%
Pension increases

- linked to inflation 30% 29%
- fixed rate 5 0% 50%
Pnce inflation

- RPI 30% 29%
-CPi 2 0% 20%

Mortality rate assumptions are based on the same mortality tables as disclosed within the LV Scheme

€) Sensitivity analysis Impact on defined benefit obligation of making changes to key assumptions

Change in assumption Impact on defined benefit obilgation
Discount rate Increase by © 25% Decrease by £4 8m (4 1%)
Inflatton rate Increase by O 25% Increase by £3 3m (2 8%)
Cash commutation Nit increase by £3 7m (3 2%)
Mortality improvermnents long term rate Increase by O 25% increase by £1 6m (1 4%)

f) Plan asset information

Plan assets are comprised as follows ¥
=
Allocation Allocation g
percentage percentage E
2012 2011 L
Equities 41 2% 83% ot
Debt securities 290% 63 9% g
Derivative swaps 14 8% 16 8% g
Cash 36% 41% _—
Property 0 8% 07%
Other 10 5% 6 2% E
Total 100 0% 100 0% o
g
Expected contnbutions to the scheme for the year ending 31 December 2013 are £7m B
g
g) Historical disclosure information 2012 2011 2010 2009 “
£m £m £m £m
Asset experience
Asset gains dunng year {(21) 87) (6 5) (6 2) =
Llability experience =
Obligation loss duning year 20 - 11 37 g
Funded status &
Defined benefit obligation (117 5) (107 0} (97 6) (88 6) g
Fair value of assets 1150 1058 888 752 g
Net obligation {2 5) {12) (8 8) (13 4)
o
g
k
2
2
8
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments

This sectlon describes the provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments of the Society and Group arising from the ongoing life
and general insurance businesses and the exit from the banking and asset management businesses In prior years.

40. Provisions
Accou_ntlng for pro‘rlsi(;l;s

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 1s more likely than

not that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the cblhigation and the amount has been reliably estimated Where the Group b
|
|
|

expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed it 1s recognised as a separate asset when the reimbursement s certain
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the obligation

The expense relating to provisions 15 presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Onerous contracts
A provision 1s made for onerous contracts in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation exceed the expected future economic
benefits

Movement during the year on provisions

Group Soclety
Buy out PP Otber Buy out PPI Other

payment: provist provisi Total p s provisk provisi Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2012 386 6.6 103 55.5 386 66 68 520

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income - 150 33 18.3 - 180 30 180

Capitalised within goodwill 24 - - 2.4 24 - - 24

Utihised during the year - (8 2) 20) {10 2) - (8 2} {11) (93)

Balance at 31 December 2012 410 134 116 66 0 410 134 87 631

Other provisions relate to
Group Society

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £Em £m £m

Employer taxes 57 53 57 53

Onerous contracts on property leases 30 18 21 04

Compensation payable on customer complaints 20 19 - -
Other 09 13 09 11 |

116 i0 3 87 68

The buy out payments provision relates to the acquisition 1n 2006 by the Scciety of 95% of LV Insurance Management Limited (then

known as ABC Insurance Solutions Limited) The 2006 contract provides for the Society to purchase the remaining 5% of LY Insurance
Management Limited from its vendors, who include John O Roarke, for a price based on the market value of the general imsurance

business at 31 December 2012 The consideration under this contract Is being determined but was provisioned on 31 December 2012 ‘
at £41m Mr O'Roarke has a 22% interest in this hability

The payment protection insurance (PP provision 1s held to cover future payments in respect of claims relating to PPI policies potentially ‘
mis-sold to customers Following a review of outstanding PPi claims carnied out dunng the year LV= increased the provision by £15m

to cover the costs of expected future redress and administration At 31 December 2012, following payments made dunng the year of ‘
£8 2m, the provision was £13 4m Given the assumptions made 1t 1s expected that up to £10m of payments will be set against this
proviston during 2013, with the remainder of the provision utiised within five years

There are a large number of inter-dependent assumptions underpinning the PPI provision When considering the key assumptions
separately, the most significant driver of the provision 1s complaint flow If the level of complaints were 10% higher (lower) than the
estimated level for all policies, assuming no change 1n other assumptions, then the provision would have increased (decreased) by
approximately £1 2m

The Group will re-evaluate the assumptions underlying its analysis at each reporting date as more information becomes availlable
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41. Contingent liabilities

Accohnting for contingent liabilities

Contingent llabllities are disclosed If there is a possible future obligation as a result of a past event, or if there is a present obligation
as a result of a past event but either a payment Is not probable or the amount ¢cannot be reasonably estimated

The Society has granted a contingent loan facility to the RNPFN fund, a closed fund within the Group, up to a maximum of £100m,

to be used in the event of a shortfall in the capital resources of that fund No drawdown of thus facility 15 anticipated The Society has
also granted a capital facility of £20m to the board of Liverpool Victona General Insurance Group Limited to be used in the event of a
shortfall in the capital solvency

As part of the arrangements whereby the Society transferred responsibility for the management of its investment portfolio to
Threadneedle Asset Management Ltd and Threadneedle Investment Services Ltd (“Threadneedie”), Liverpool Victonia Portfollo Managers
Ltd (“LVPMT) resigned, and Threadneedle was appointed, as the Authonsed Corporate Director (“ACD™) of the V= Property QEIC
Simultaneous with the change in ACD, the Society provided an indemnity to Threadneedle for any fosses incurred by Threadneedte

as a result of any actual or suspected mis-pricing of the LV= Property OEIC by LVPM, including any costs of rectification or investor
compensation No claims have been made under this indemnity

42. Cgmmitments

Accou_.mtlng for assets held under leases

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements and the nsks and rewards are substantially transferred to the Group, such finance
leases are treated as if the assets had been purchased outright and the corresponding hability to the lessor 1s included as an obligation
In trade and other payables Depreciation on leased assets 1s charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line
basis over the lower of the term of the lease or its estimated useful Iife The capital element on finance leases 1s shown in the property
and equipment note

Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest 1s charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

All other teases are operating leases and the costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight Iine basis over the lease
term The value of any lease incentive received to take on an operating lease (for example, rent free periods) 1s recognised as deferred
Income and 15 released over the hife of the lease

a) Caphtal commitments Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m

Authonsed and contracted commitments payable after
31 December not provided for in respect of

— property investments 07 14 o7 14
- other financial investmenis 352 495 352 49 5
— property and eguipment - 09 - 09

359 51 8 359 518
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42. Commitments (continued)

b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various properties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewat rights The future aggregate minimum lease payments net of income under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m m
Within one year 67 67 48 50
Between one and five years 194 196 143 138
Over five years 33 57 21 33
294 320 212 221

The Group has entered into commercial subleases for some of its properties that are unoccupied These leases have varying terms
and escalation clauses Where these subleases are insufficient to cover the Group’s operating lease agreements an onerous contract
provision for unused premises 1s set up The future aggregate mimimum sublease payments expected to be received under operating
subleases 1s as follows

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 10 04 T g1
Between one and five years 26 o7 23 -
36 11 30 01

c) Finance lease commitments

It 1s the Group's policy to lease certain of its properties under finance leases The average lease term is 99 years Interest rates are
fixed at the contract rate All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent
payments The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

Group
2012 2011
£m m
Gross finance lease lhiabilities - mintmum lease payments
Within one year 11 11
Between one and five years 48 47
Over five years 882 89 4
941 95 2
Future finance charges on finance leases {89 1) {90 1)
Present value of financial lease liabilities 50 51
Group
2012 2011
£m £m
The present value of finance lease labilities 1s as follows
Within one year 02 02
Between one and five years 07 o7
Over five years 41 472
50 51

d) Other financlal commitments

The Group has entered into several long-term coniracts following service outsourcing These contracts will end no later than 2018 An
optien to withdraw from some of these commitments in 2013 15 available The present value of the remaiming commitment 1s estimated
at £89 5m (2011 £89 1m) for the Group and the Society These amounts have not been provided for in the finanoal statements
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Scope of consolidation

This section presents information on the Group's Investments In subsidiarles, joint ventures, associates and open ended Investment
companlies (OEICs)

Detail 15 also given of the unallocated divisible surplus of the Society and Group

43. Subsidiary undertakings

The princtpal subsidiary undertakings of the Society at 31 December 2012 are shown below

The Group and all pnincipal undertakings are incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales All holdings are in relation to
ordinary shares

The registered office 1s County Gates, Bournemouth BH1 2NF

Name Princlpal Activity Percentage Held
Subsldlaries

Frizzell Financial Serwices Limited Property management 100 0%
Highway Insurance Company Limited * General insurance 100 0%
Highway Insurance Group Lid * (Note 1) General insurance holding company 100 0%
Liverpool Victona Financial Advice Services Limited {Note 1) Financial advice services 100 0%
Liverpool Victona General Insurance Group Limited * General insurance holding company 100 0%
Liverpool Victona Insurance Company Limited * General Insurance 100 0%
Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited Life insurance 100 0%
Liverpool Victona Portfolio Managers Limited Investment management 100 0%
v Capital PLC Holding company 100 0%
LV Equity Release Limited Equity release lifetime morigages 100 0%
LV Insurance Management Limited * (Note 1) Management services 95 0%
LV Life Services Limited (Note 1) Management services 100 0%
NM Pensions Trustees Limited (Note 1) Self invested personal pension (SIPP) admimstrator 100 0%

* Owned by a subsidiary undertaking of the Society

Note 1 - The financial statements of these subsichary undertakings have not been audited for the year ended 31 December 2012 These
subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by
virtue of Section 479 of the Comparues Act 2006 The following other subsidiaries are also taking advantage of thus exemption from the
audit requirement LV Protection Limited, Liverpoo! Victona Asset Management Limited, Ayresbrook Limited, NLC Name No 2 Limited, NLC
Name No 7 Limited and Liverpool Victoria Banking Services Limited

All the principal subsidiaries have the same year end as the Society and all have been included in the consolidation

44, Associates and joint ventures

The associates and joint ventures of the Society at 31 December 2012 are shown below
They are incorporated and domicited 1in England and Wales

Name Class of shares Year end Principal activity Percentage heid

Joint ventures
Great Victona Partnership * 31/03/2012 Investment property 50 0%

* The percentage held represents the share of the partnership capital and partner loans held by Liverpool Victona Fniendly Society as at
31 December 2012
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45, Open ended investment companles

The Open ended investment companies (OEICs) of the Society and Group at 31 Becember 2012 are shown helow

All OEICs are incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales

Name Princlpal Activity Year end Percentage of Units Held’
Threadneedle Investment Funds Il ICVC Open Ended Investment Company 31/12/2012 86 21%
which consists of

Threadneedle Eurcpean ex UK Growth Fund 97 16%
Threadneedle Japan Growth Fund 100 00%
Threadneedle Pacific ex-Japan Growth Fund 100 00%
Threadneedle UK Equity Income Fund 92 31%
Threadneedle US Equity Income Fund 99 99%
Threadneedle UK Growth Fund 93 11%
Threadneedle Investment Funds 1l {CVC Open Ended Investment Company 3171272012 72 03%
which consists of

Threadneedle UK Corporate Bond Fund 95 61%
Threadneedle UK Fixed Interest Fund 99 70%
Threadneedie UK Index Linked Fund 96 01%
Threadneedie UK Money Market Fund 99 52%
Threadneedle Balanced Managed Fund 96 11%
Threadneedle Medium Long Corporate Bond Fund 40 47%
Threadneedle Short Dated Corporate Bond 88 74%
Threadneedle Worldwide Select Fund 69 58%
Threadneedle Investment Funds IV ICVC Open Ended Investrment Company 31/03/2012 83 34%
which consists of

Threadneedle Diwversified Income Fund 40 10%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolo 3 79 28%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 4 84 51%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 5 85 43%
Threadneedle Managed Partfolio 6 89 50%
Threadneedle Managed Portfolio 7 86 21%
Threadneedle UK Property Fund Il ICVC Qpen Ended Investment Company 31/12/2012 31 41%
which consists of

Threadneedle UK Property Fund 31 41%

In December 2012 1t was announced that the Threadneedle UK Property Fund Il ICVC was to close Threadneedle have consequently
obtained permission from the Financial Services Authonty to close the Company and have commenced the winding up process, which 1s

expected to be completed 1n 2013 -

* excludes units held by the V= Employee Pension Scheme
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46. Unallocated divisible surplus

Accounting for the Unallocated divisibie surplus

The Unallocated divisible surplus represents the excess of assets over and above the long-term insurance contract habrlities and other
habihnies kit represents amounts that have yet to be formally declared as bonuses for the participating contract policyholders together
with the free assets of the Society and Group Any profit or 10ss for the year arising through the Statement of Comprehensive Income
{for the Society and for the Group) is transferred to or from the Unallocated divisible surplus

UK regulations, the Group's Principles and Practices of Financial Management, and the terms and conditions of participating contracts
set out the bases for the determination of the amounts on which the participating additional discretionary contract benefits are based
and within which the Group may exercise its discretion as to the quantum and uming of their payment to contract holders

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 958 4 966 4 10551 1,0786
Transfer to the Statement of Comprehensive Income ({97 5) (8 0) (176 5) (23 5)
Balance at 31 December 860 9 958 4 8786 1,0551

Cumutative goodwitl of £199 8m 1n the Group (£62 2m In the Society) ansing on acquisitions prior to 1998 has been elminated against
the Unallocated divisible surplus This goodwill would be recogmised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income should there be a
subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates

S
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Other disclosures

This sectlon details other disclosure matters, compnsing related party transactions, directors’ emoluments, with-profit actuary
details and other relevant Society Information.

47. Related party transactions

The Group and Society enter into transactions with key management personnel Iin the normal course of business All transactions
between group companies took place in accordance with relevant agreements Details of significant transactions carned out dunng the
year with related parties are as follows

a) Sales of Insurance contracts and other services

The Group has related party transactions with the V= Employee Pension Scheme Until 31 October 2011 the Society provided fund
management and administration services to the Scheme

In 2012 and 2011 the following amounts were charged to the Pension Scheme for the following services

Fund Managemaent Administration
Services Sarvices Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Liverpool Victenia Fniendly Society Limmited - - - 24 - 24
Liverpool Victona Asset Management Lunited - 11 - - - 11

As at 31 December 2012 the LV= Employee Pension Scheme owed the Society £nil in respect of admimistration services (2011 £1 8m)

b) Other retated parties disclosure
As disclosed 1n Note 41, the Society has granted a contingent loan facility to the RNPFN fund, a closed fund within the Group, which 1s
disclosed in contingent labiities

c) Key management compensation

Key management personnel of the Group compnise all executive and non-executive directors and senior management The summary of
the compensation of key management personnet for the year i1s as follows

Group
2012 2011
£000 £000
Short-term employment benefits 6,139 6,740
Other long-term benefits 2,865 2,746
Post-employment benefits 216 440
TJermination benefits - 240
Total compensation of key management personnel 9,220 10,166

The Scciety makes contributions to the Lv= Employee Pension Scheme of an average of 17 8% of pensionable salaries (2011 17 1% of
pensionable salanes), subject to annual allowance mits, in respect of all permanent staff, including executive directors

Included within key management personnel are all the vendors of ABC Insurance Solutions Limited who, as part of the acquisition in ‘
2006, entered into a contract with the Society Further details are disclosed within Note 40

The aggregate premiums payable for the year by the Group Executive and Non-Executive Directors in respect of the Group's products was
£57,827 (2011 £58,756) ‘
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47. Related party transactions (continued)
d) The following transactions have taken place between the Soclety and other greup companies

2012 2011

£m £m

Management charge by the Society 1911 186 8

Investment management charge to the Society - {7 9)

Reinsurance ceded by the Society - ¢claims recovernes - 479

Reinsurance ceded by the Society - premiums paid - {31 5}

Deferred margin {included in other financial habiities) 101 58

Beneficial interest of subsidiary in loans sold to the Society 2256 80 4

Intra-group loans - net interest received by the Soctety 58 38
Balances outstanding between the Society and other Group companies

2012 2011

£m £m

Payable by the Seciety (528) (433)

Recewable by the Society 874 1096

Loans owed to the Society 3517 396 6

e) Loans to related parties

Loans owed to the Society represent a subordinated loan of £n11 (2011 £183m) to Liverpool Victonia General Insurance Group Limited,
secured loans of £51 Tm {2011 £51 4m) to Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited and two new loans of £130m {unsecured
subordinated loan) and £170m (unsecured senior loan note) to LV Capital PLC 1ssued on 21 December 2012 All these loans are
disclosed within loan stock in Note 29

In addition the Society has a loan of £nil (2011 £162 2m) to Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited destgnated at fair value through
income disclosed in Note 15 This loan was repaid in December 2012 as part of the loan restructure with the Society

in March 2013 the remaiming loan balance of £51 7m to Liverpool Victonia Equity Release Limited was repaid

The subordinated loan to Liverpool Victona General Insurance Group Limited bore interest at 1% above UK six month LIBOR and was of a
medium to long:term nature, this loan was repaid in full in December 2012

The terms of the loans to LV Capital PLC are

(1) A £130m unsecured subordinated loan note repayable in 2015 with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 8 5%

(1) A £170m unsecured senior loan note repayable in 2047 with an interest rate of 9%

LV Capital may, subject to one month's notice and obtaining written agreement of the Society repay all or part of these loans

In addition to the |loan notes disclosed above a £300m loan note was issued to LV Capital PLC by the Society on 10 December 2012 and
subsequently cancelled on 21 December 2012

The loans to Liverpool Victona Equity Release Limited have fixed interest and repayment terms established at the outset of each
advance

b On 30 November 2011 the Critical lliness and Income Protection reinsurance agreement between the Society and Liverpool Victona Life
Company Limited was terminated Assets totaling £34 4m were transferred to the Society In settiement of £91 8m of insurance contract
habibties less the value of the estimated future profits for the business stream A loss of £0 7m was recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive income as a result of this transfer

48. With-Profits Actuary

The following information has been provided In accordance with section 77 of the Fnendly Societies Act 1992

a) The With-Profits Actuary of the Scciety until 1.6 February 2012 was Mr P M Downey, who 1s employed by Liverpoo! Victona Friendly
Society The total emoluments of Mr Downey during this period on a pro rata basis were £23,604 (2011 £175,312) including car
allowance and medical benefits Mr Downey 1s a participant tn the Society’s long term incentive plan and holds ene tnsurance policy
1ssued on normal staff terms by a subsidiary of the Society

b} On 16 February 2012, Mr N J Dumbreck took over as the Society’s With-Profits Actuary from Mr P M Downey Mr Dumbreck Is a
Principa! with the London office of Miliman LLP, an external consultancy firm The Society paid fees of £388,491, inclusive of VAT and
expenses, to Milllman LLP dunng 2012 1n respect of Mr Dumbreck’s professional services It also paid fees of £54,000, inclusive of
VAT and expenses, to Miltman LLP durning 2012 in respect of services unrelated to Mr Dumbreck’s role as With-Profits Actuary

¢} Mr Dumbreck held four insurance policies 1ssued on standard terms by one of the Society's subsidianies He had no other pecuniary
Interest In any transactions with the Society at any time during the year
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49. Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amount of directors’ emoluments was as follows

2012 2011
a)} Aggregate emoluments Inctuding pension contributions and LTIPs £m £m
Aggregate emoluments 6.3 46

b) Emoluments of Indlvidual directors, Including emoluments of the Chalrman and highest paid director were as follows

for the Soclety:

Annual rermuneration £ 000

Total remuneration £ 000

Deferred Other Totat Tota! LTt Total Total

Salary Bonus bonus benefits 2012 2011 2010-12 2012 2011

M J Rogers 505 827 132 127 1,191 1,131 1,431 2,622 2177
PW Moore 346 208 52 55 661 609 732 1,393 609
R A Rowney 306 2490 - 51 597 568 585 1,182 943
J B 0O Roarke (appointed 23 November 2011) 281 220 - 45 546 54 - 5486 314
D Holt 153 - - - 153 150 n/a 153 150
M E Austen 72 - - - 72 68 n/a 72 68
J Edwards 62 - - - 62 58 n/a 62 58
C HKeers 61 - - - 61 57 n/a 61 57
D I'W Reynolds (ressgned 31 October 2012) 60 - - - 60 64 n/a 60 64
C Burton (appointed 9 November 2011} 56 - - - 56 15 n/a 56 15
J Dean (appomted 256 July 2012) 22 - - - 22 - n/a 22 -
G Nott (resigned 26 May 2011} - - - - - 28 n/a - 28
Total 1,924 1,095 184 278 3,481 2,802 2,748 6,229 4,483

Deferred bonus represents the amount of the 2012 performance bonus payable over the next three years Further details are disclosed

within the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Other benefits include cash allowance in heu of pension, car allowances, medical, relocation, Iife assurance and other benefits in kind or

ther equivalent monetary value

¢) Penslon arrangements

R A Rowney and J B O'Roarke are members of the LV= Employee Pension Scheme, which 1s a defined benefit scheme PW Moore left

the defined contnbution scheme dunng the year

The directors’ emoluments table above excludes the Soctety contributions to defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes

The Society makes contributions to the LV= Employee Pension Scheme of an average of 17 8% of pensicnable salaries (2011 17 1% of
pensionable salanies), subject to annual allowance limits, in respect of all permanent staff This included amounts on behalf of executive

directors of £0 1m (2011 £0 1m)

The Society has made no contributions to personal pension arrangements during 2012 (2011 £mul)

There were £8,500 of contributions to defined contnbution pension schemes i 2012 (2011 £42,542)

2012 2011
Accrued pension at end of penod £000 £000
R A Rowney 27 23
J B QO'Roarke 30 26
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50. Cash generated from operating activitles

Group Soclety
2012 2011 2012 2011
Restated Restated
£m £m £m £m
Profit/(loss) before tax and mutual bonus 103.2 (16 9) 33 {47 7)
Investmeant income (320 2) (261 4) (3370) (284 9)
Net gains on investments (374 7) {425 4) (3041) (407 3) ‘
Finance costs 05 05 - -
Net decrease/(increase) In denvatives 923 (12 7) 1001 {14 1)
Noncash items ‘
Expenses deferred dunng the year {5 4) 441 - .
Amortisation of intangible assets 12 0 130 4.6 46
Depreciation on property and equipment a3 26 [1F:] 08
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 04 - 04 01
Increase n capitahsed goodwill (24) (53) (2 4) (5 3)
Decrease in provisions and penston obligation (17 9) (25 5) {17 3) (16 6)
Impairment wnite-offs in subsidianes - - 900 34 4
Mutual bonus (20 9) (18 8) (20 9) (18 6)
Changes in working capital
Decrease/(increase) In loans and recervables 130 (36 8) 263 {77 6}
Increase n reinsurance assets (110 3) (123 3) (74 4) {7 O}
{Increase)/decrease in insurance receivables (10 8) {23 3) (24) 47
Increase in other prepayments and accrued income (77) (12) (1L7) (18)
Increase in insurance contract liabilities 909 4 1,131 9 6571 821 3
Increase in investment contract abilities i584 597 158 4 597
Increase in borrowings - - - o6
(Decrease)/Increase in other financial iabilities 1n 553 87 559 |
Increase/(decrease) In insurance payables 31 90 {54) 79
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (11.9) a8 7 {11 8) 26 4
Caﬂgenerated from operating actlvitles 4118 414 4 2725 140 5

51. Valuation

The latest published report on the valuation of Assets and Liabiities of the Society {the Annual FSA Insurance Return) was made at
31 December 2012 and 1s available on request from the Group Company Secretary, County Gates, Bournemouth, BH1 2NF and LV com

52. Soclety information
Liverpool Victoria Friendly Society 1s a UK-incorporated and domiciled Fnendly Society registered under the Friendly Societies Act 1992

Lv=and Liverpool Victoria are trademarks of Liverpool Victonia Friendly Society Limited LV= and LV= Liverpool Victonia are trading styles
f the Liverpoo! Victonia group of compamies Liverpool Victorta 1s authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority and I1s a
member of the ABI, AFS and ILAG

‘Registered office

County Gates
Bournemouth

BH1 2NF

Telephone 01202 292333
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